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On behalf of the board of directors of China Ting Group Holdings
Limited, | hereby present the annual operation report of the Company
and its subsidiaries for 2021.

In 2021, the COVID-19 pandemic and the precautionary and social
distancing measures implementation in different PRC cities continue to be
important challenging factors for our business. The Group’s OEM/ODM
business recorded a slight decline as the demand of the Group’s main
product, woven apparels is rather sluggish. Also, the COVID-19 pandemic
brand
companies, remarkably. However, with the significant business expansion

affected our major customers, the mid-to-high-end apparel

to the domestic brand customers in the PRC and non-US customers, a
more balanced and diversified allocation of customer base is resulted. In
addition, the Group's accelerated the production base establishment in
Vietnam this year also helps the Group to pave way for future OEM
business expansion.

With the consideration of the COVID-19 pandemic situation, the Group’s
retail business in the PRC is affected and the retail channel expansion has
been slowed down in 2021. In response to this, the Group has focused
on promoting its products through e-commerce platform by using
livestreaming and the use of franchise business model. All these efforts
contributed an impressive year-on-year growth of 16% in the retail
business. The Group will continue to concentrate on the business
development under China Ting's own brands and other brands of which
the Group has been granted the rights to use and develop, as well as key

business model development, such as livestreaming e-commerce.

The Group’s property investment business also achieved a significant
growth of 96.8% in 2021, with the contribution of the increased leasable
area following the completion of certain new buildings in the industrial
park and successful attraction of the high-quality tenants. The successful
industrial park operation business plays an important contribution of the
Group's business model and future development.
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Chairman’s Statement
TERE

In 2022, the recovery process and of the global economy and the pace of
recovery of the international demand are expected to slow down. Other
unstable factors, like the military conflicts in Russia- Ukraine, different
variants of the COVID-19 including the Omicron are likely to lead to
uncertainties and challenges. Hence, the Directors expect 2022 will
continue to be a stressful year. To tackle these challenges, the Group will
actively seek suitable business partners around the world, expand its
overseas production capacity, improve the quality and the trendiness of
the Group’s products through continuous equipment update, new
products research and development, as well as enhance the close
institutions to strengthen the pool of
professional and technical personnel. Furthermore, due to the increasing

cooperation with education

uncertainties in the domestic retail business in the PRC, the Group plans
to aggressively develop the proportion of online sales through the
cooperation with first-class platform providers such as Douyin, Vipshop
and Tmall to ensure the continuous growth of retail business.

Last but not least, the Group will strive for the best from the its property
leasing business through exerting great efforts on the operation of
existing properties and new industrial and commercial buildings
construction. Approximately 300,000 square meters of new buildings are
expected to be completed and put into use within two years. We expect
it will become an valuable revenue contributor for the Group in the

future.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all our shareholders for
their confidence in and support for us, and to express my gratitude to our
management team and staff for their diligent and hard work as always.
In 2022, we will dedicate our united efforts to tackle the challenges and
strive for the best.

TING MAN YI
Chairman

Hong Kong
31 March 2022
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Business Review

In 2021, the production volume of the apparel industry has
experienced a stable growth due to the positive factors from
recovery of COVID 19 during the year and the increasing demand
from the local and the overseas and more important, the increase
in the overseas bulk purchase orders. The production volume of the
apparel industry increased generally to the levels before the
outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic. In terms of the production
volume by main categories, according to China National Garment
Association, the production volume of knitted apparels, driven by
the increase in exports, continued the growing momentum at the
growth rate of 10.86%, while the production volume of woven
apparels increased only by 4.85% basis,
report.
represented a substantial decrease as compared to the production

on a Yyear-on-year

according to the same Such modest increase still

volume before the COVID-19 pandemic.

The amount of revenue generated from the Group’'s OEM/ODM
business slightly declined by 1.4% in 2021, as compared to the
same amount in 2020, which was mainly due to the constraining
factors that the main products of the Group are in the category of
woven apparels, and that most of the Group’s customers are mid-
to-high-end apparel brand companies, which were remarkably
affected by COVID-19. However, a notable trend in 2021 was that
the proportions of the Group’s OEM business to the domestic
brand customers in the PRC and non-US customers had
significantly increased, which resulted in a more balanced and
diversified allocation of customer base. In addition, the Group
accelerated the establishment of overseas production base in 2021
in Vietnam, which would facilitate the Group to continue to
expand its OEM business in the future.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis
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Although the retail business of the Group in the PRC was also
affected by the COVID-19 pandemic and more importantly, the
precautionary and social distancing measures implemented at
different PRC cities in 2021 and failed to expand the number of
shops as scheduled, the Group managed to achieve a significant
growth in such business by focusing on the livestreaming
e-commerce business and the use of franchise business model for
expansion. As a result, the retail business of the Group had
recorded a year-on-year growth at the rate of 16%. Such
impressive growth has boosted the confidence of the Group in its
overall transformation into a retail business with established brands
well recognised amongst the target customers in the PRC. The
Group will continue to focus on the development of businesses
under China Ting’s own brands and other brands of which the
Group has been granted the rights to use and develop, with extra
efforts to be devoted on the development of the retail business
models key components, such as livestreaming e-commerce.

The property investment business also achieved a growth of 96.8%
in 2021, which was attributable to, on the one hand, the
increased leasable area following completion of certain new
buildings in the industrial park and, on the other hand, the
successful attraction of high-quality tenants for the industrial park
because of its outstanding facilities and property conditions. The
great performance of the industrial park operation business makes
it as one of business segments of the Group that would contribute
the development of the Group in the future.

Financial Review

Review of operations

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s revenue
amounted to HK$1,609.3 million, representing an increase of 4.3%
when compared with the total revenue of the Group of
HK$1,542.4 million in 2020. The gross profit for the year ended
31 December 2021 was HK$133.9 million, representing a decrease
of 40.2% as compared with HK$223.7 million in 2020. The net
loss attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2021 was HK$333.3 million and the net asset
value per share as at 31 December 2021 was HK$1.29.

OEM and ODM business

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue derived
from our OEM/ODM business recorded a decrease of 1.4% from
HK$1,138.3 million in 2020 to HK$1,122.1 million in 2021.
Products made from silk, cotton and synthetic fabrics continue to
be the major products which contributed HK$283.7 million (2020:
HK$881.6 million), representing 25.3% (2020: 77.4%) of the total
turnover of our OEM/ODM business for the year ended
31 December 2021.
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In respect of market concentration, sales to the market in the
United States of America (“US”) amounted to HK$366.9 million in
2021 (2020: HK$494.8 million), which accounted for 32.7%
(2020: 43.5%) of the OEM/ODM revenue. Sales to European Union
and other markets in 2021 were HK$105.6 million (2020:
HK$174.9 million) and HK$649.6 million (2020: HK$468.6 million),
respectively.

Fashion retail business

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the retail sales of the
Group amounted to HK$443.9 million, representing an increase of
16.2% when compared with the revenue of HK$382.1 million in
2020. Finity, the major brand of the Group, contributed HK$238.8
million to the retail business in 2021, representing an increase of
8.1% as compared with HK$220.9 million for the year 2020.

In terms of retail revenue analysis by sales channels, sales from
concessionary counters amounted to HK$83.7 million (2020:
HK$111.4 million), accounting for 18.9% of total retail turnover for
the year ended 31 December 2021. Sales from e-commerce,
freestanding stores and franchisees for the year ended
31 December 2021 amounted to HK$232.2 million (2020:
HK$179.8 million), HK$7.7 million (2020: HK$7.9 million) and
HK$120.3 million (2020: HK$83.0 million), respectively.

Property Investment Business

In 2019, the Group has changed part of the industrial complex to
the China Ting International Fashion Base (" ZE & B [5 B it & ¥ 5
i) in order to facilitate the regional development, fashion expert
localisation and e-commerce development for the fashion industry.
All these provide significant contribution to the fashion industry in
Yu Hang District, Hangzhou, while allowing the Group to develop
diversified business models and enhance revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue from our
property investment business amounted to HK$43.3 million (2020:
HK$22.0 million).

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group continues to retain a solid financial position. During the
year, the Group's working capital needs were principally supported
by the financial resources generated from its ordinary course of
business. As of 31 December 2021, the cash and cash equivalents
were HK$752.2 million, representing an increase of 30.3% from
HK$577.2 million as of 31 December 2020. The Group had bank
borrowings of HK$251.0 million as of 31 December 2021 (2020:
HK$270.1 million). The debt to equity ratio (total borrowings as a
percentage of total equity) was 9.2% (2020: 9.4%). The Directors
consider that the Group has adequate financial resources to
support its working capital requirement and future expansion.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Business Outlook

In 2022, the recovery process and of the global economy and the
pace of recovery of the international demand are expected to slow
down. Together with the unstable international geopolitical
circumstances, such as the military conflicts in Russia-Ukraine, the
PRC’s economy is expected to encounter significant downward
pressure. This is particularly the case that different variants of the
COVID-19,

the daily lives of a significant part of the world’s population. All of

including the Omicron, continue to spread and affect

these will continue to lead to uncertainties in the supply chain for

production materials, freight charges for international
transportation and the demand markets. Against this background
the Directors expect the apparel industry in 2022 will continue to

be sluggish in general.

From the perspective of the domestic brand development, the
growth of the online is expected to slow down following the boost
as a result of the stringent precautionary measures against the
COVID-19 pandemic. The most recent tax recovery steps launched
by the PRC government, particularly in the livestreaming industry,
has resulted in slow down the growth to a certain extent.
Meanwhile, the continuous implementation of dynamic-zero
measures for COVID-19 prevention and control and the frequent
outbreak at various places have resulted in unforeseeable and
negative impact on the operations of stores at different locations.
Hence, the Directors believe that the year of 2022 will continue to

be a stressful year for the domestic brand retail market in the PRC.

In light of the unfavorable factors in the PRC domestic market and
abroad, the Group will take the bull by the horns and continue to
seek suitable business partners around the world, especially in the
countries with fast-growing emerging markets. The Group will
expand its production capacity overseas to strengthen the Group's
continuous competitiveness in production capacity and production
cost. In terms of the domestic operation, the Group will improve
the quality and the trendiness of the Group’s products through
continuous equipment update and new product research and
development, enhance the close cooperation with colleges and
universities, and strengthen the pool of professional and technical
personnel. In terms of the domestic retail business in the PRC,
given the increasing uncertainties in the operation of stores, the
Group plans to aggressively develop the proportion of online sales
through the cooperation with first-class platform providers such as
Douyin, Vipshop and Tmall to ensure the continuous growth of
retail business.

Management Discussion and Analysis

(3

ERENB R

KERE

—ERoCF PREEEHERMBIRFER
MEREEREARRE  MZBESESH
REDBENBEFABOABR - HELE
Tt HERAN TTEN - LER - &
BYERSEREK(BERERI)FES

- NHEEEE2RREBAONATELRE -
NEFBRZRERREEEHHERE B
REHEBMFERMIZHRTEEN - £t
EEN BERF T _FRETELR
1 R AT IR 55 AR o

HEAMEERRE  BREENEREE
TE RS B AR e R B B R 4 e 1 2 BB R AR
& PEBF SRR mAER CEZ
HEETR) - ERELEETERE
B o BRI - BAKETRNRISEERE
TERERNZ RS ENRBRITERY - 8
KﬁﬂEWEmWE%XTTEWmEE

Z-Alt  EERAE-ZT__FHERNM
ﬁg%m%mkmrﬁiémfﬁ

Eﬁﬁwwm%m%%KﬂI%~$¢@%
NEmME HECXRBEANSRKEENE
ERH  FRIReRIEROFTEMISER -
NEBKEBINEREERS  BIEEBRE
ERFAEERAFENFERT N EEAR
Hr EEBBRBFENREENNNER
W ReEBEROREMEHEE B
HERMEE MR EERIMAT RS -
EEATEXBAE  SEEFE@BER

T MmE RMEE-AFEENAE &
FﬁJE%&?%KﬁEE’\EI%i*ME’J’I&?RT TEN
RAMELHELD - RETEEBOFEEL
£ o




Q
=
=
o
=
=
Q
@
=
o
c
o°
a5
o
=
=]
Q
)
C
3
=
©
o
>
=]
=]
c
[
By)
@
e}
o)
>
N
o
N
=

N
N

Management Discussion and Analysis
EREN®m RO

Last but not least, the Group has achieved a stable profit from the
property leasing business in 2021. In 2022, the Group will, on the
basis of exerting great efforts on the operation of existing
properties, construct new industrial and commercial buildings of
approximately 300,000 square meters. These new buildings are
expected to be completed and put into use within two years, and
will accelerate the growth in the operating revenue to the Group.

(4) Human Resources
As of 31 December 2021, the Group had approximately 3,660
full-time employees. Staff costs for 2021 stand at HK$364.0
million, representing an increase of 5.8% when compared with
HK$343.9 million for the year 2020.

The Group recognises the importance of good relationships with its
employees and has adopted an incentive bonus scheme for them,
under which bonuses are determined every year based on the
performance of individual employees and with reference to the
Group's annual profits and performance. Our Directors believe that
a competitive remuneration package, a safe and comfortable
workplace, and career development opportunities are incentives for
employees to excel in their areas of responsibilities.

Pursuant to the applicable laws and regulations, the Group has
participated in relevant defined contribution retirement schemes
administrated by the Chinese government authorities for the
Group’s employees in China. For the Group’s employees in Hong
Kong, all the arrangements pursuant to the mandatory provident
fund requirements set forth under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) are
duly implemented. There is no mandatory retirement schemes
under the applicable laws and regulations in the US. The Group
has not implemented retirement schemes for the Group’s
employees in the US.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND COMMITMENTS

The Group exercised careful control over capital expenditure. The Group
incurred capital expenditures of HK$138.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 which was primarily used in the expansion of the
China Ting International Fashion Base and the leasehold improvement of
the Group’s retail outlets and factories. Capital commitments contracted
for but not incurred by the Group as of 31 December 2021 amounted to
HK$1,074.0 million, which were mainly related to the construction of the
China Ting International Fashion Base.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

The industrial park with a total site area of 456,031 sq.m. located at
Linping Economic Development Zone, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province,
the PRC (“China Ting Industrial Park”) has been established by the
Group since 2003 as its principal place of business and manufacturing
base in the PRC, and it currently includes low-rise production buildings
and warehouses and a seven-storey commercial building. Certain land
parcels on which the China Ting Industrial Park is situated are under-
utilised, particularly in light of the rapid urban development in the
surrounding areas and the connection of highway/railway networks with
other PRC cities. For the purpose of the redevelopment proposal (the
“"Redevelopment Proposal”) of certain land parcels at the China Ting
Industrial Park with a total site area of 154,584.7 sq.m. for the
construction of 12 new buildings with a total gross floor area of
587,246.71 sq.m. for the Group’s headquarters and offices, factories,
warehouses and staff quarters as well as for leasing purpose, the
industrial park construction contracts (the “Industrial Park Construction
Contracts”) have been entered into solely for the land foundation and
the concrete structure construction on 24 November 2021. The Industrial
Park Construction Contracts comprise (a) 2 individual contracts entered
into between Zhejiang Huzhou Construction Engineering Group Co., Ltd.
CIT MM MZETIE®ABR AR and the members of the Group with an
aggregate contract sum of RMB375.0 million (equivalent to HK$457.3
million) (the “Huzhou Construction Contracts”); (b) 5 individual
contracts entered into between Hangzhou Dongsheng Construction
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Engineering Co., Ltd. (MR FAZEZ TIZHRAF)) and the members of
the Group with an aggregate contract sum of RMB265.8 million
(equivalent to HK$324.1
Contracts”); (c) 2 individual contracts entered into between Zhejiang
Yangfan Construction Co., Ltd. (T MEFRBR A RF]) (the “Yangfan
Construction Contracts”) and the members of the Group with an

million) (the “Dongsheng Construction

aggregate contract sum of RMB155.2 million (equivalent to HK$189.3
million); and (d) 3 individual contracts entered into between Zhejiang
Zigiang Construction Engineering Co., Ltd. (T B & EETIZHR A F])
and the members of the Group with an aggregate contract sum of
RMB87.2 million (equivalent to HK$106.3 million) (the
Construction Contracts”). In addition, the Group has formulated detailed

“Zigiang

plans and schedules on other related works for the Redevelopment
Proposal, such as installation of curtain walls, facade, lifts and elevators,
fire prevention facilities, electrical and water works and facilities and
gardening, and will implement as and when the concrete structure
construction is about to complete. The total investment for the
Redevelopment Proposal would be approximately RMB1.6 billion

(equivalent to HK$2.0 billion).

Since one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (as defined under
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules) in respect of each of the Huzhou
Construction Contracts, Dongsheng Construction Contracts and Yangfan
Construction Contracts exceed 25% but all such percentage ratios are less
than 100%, the transactions contemplated under each of the Huzhou
Construction Contracts, Dongsheng Construction Contracts and Yangfan
Construction Contracts constitute a major transaction for the Company
and are therefore subject to the notification, announcement and
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules.

As the applicable percentage ratios (as defined under Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules) are more than 5% but less than 25%, the transactions
contemplated under the Zigiang Construction Contracts constitute a
discloseable transaction for the Company and are therefore subject to the
notification and announcement requirements under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules.

Details of the Industrial Park Construction Contracts were set forth in the
announcement dated 24 November 2021 and the circular dated 17

January 2022 issued by the Company.

Saved as disclosed above, there was no significant investment, material
acquisition and disposal
31 December 2021.

of subsidiaries during the year ended
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TREASURY POLICIES AND EXPOSURE TO
FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE RATE

The Company uses Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") as its functional currency
and the Group’s presentation currency. Since HK$ was pegged against
United States dollars (“USD"), the Directors consider the Group's foreign
currency exchange exposure arising from USD transactions to be minimal
during the period.

The sales and purchase of raw materials of the Group are mainly
denominated in USD and Renminbi (“RMB"”). During the period,
approximately 31.2% and 68.8% of revenue were denominated in USD
and RMB respectively, and approximately 5.7% and 93.8% of purchase
of raw materials were denominated in USD and RMB respectively.

As of 31 December 2021, approximately 30.1%, 69.2% and 0.7% of
cash and bank balances were denominated in USD, RMB and HKS$,
respectively, and approximately 10.3% and 89.7% of bank borrowings
were denominated in RMB and HK$, respectively.

Regarding the trade disputes between China and the United States, it is
expected that on-going currency fluctuation of RMB against USD is
unavoidable. To minimise the impact, we will monitor the foreign
currency risk closely to ensure the net exposure is at an acceptable level.
The Directors may consider using financial instruments to reduce the
currency risk exposure when necessary.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Directors and Senior Management
EELRSEERAS

Executive Directors

Mr. TING Man Yi, aged 65, is the Chairman of the Group and an
executive Director. He is also a director of Longerview Investments Limited
("Longerview”) and Firmsuccess Limited (“Firmsuccess”), both are the
substantial shareholders of the Company. Mr. TING is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. TING started the business of the
Group in December 1992 and has considerable experience in the silk
fabric and silk garment manufacturing and trading business. Prior to
establishing the initial company of the Group, Mr. TING worked for
Hangzhou Silk Industrial Company (T 4441 T% A &) from 1981 to
1986. Mr. TING is currently responsible for the overall strategic planning
of the Group, especially overseeing the expansive manufacturing industrial
complex in Hangzhou, as well as the planning and implementation of
major new investments and projects of the Group. Mr. TING is the elder
brother of Mr. TING Hung Yi and Mr. DING Jianer.

Mr. TING Hung Yi, aged 61 is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group
and an executive Director. He is also a member of the nomination
committee and the remuneration committee of the Company, a director
of Longerview, In Holdings Limited (“In Holdings”) (a substantial
shareholder of the Company) and certain subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. TING joined the Group in May 2002 and is principally responsible for
the strategic development of the Group’s OEM, ODM, and retail
businesses. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. TING was the general manager
of a trading company in Hong Kong between 1991 and 2002. Mr. TING
graduated from Zhejiang Sci-Tech University GH/TI3E T AZ), formerly
known as Zhejiang Institute of Silk Textiles (HiT #4443 T £F%), in 1987
and has over 30 years of experience in the operations of garment export.
Mr. TING is the younger brother of Mr. TING Man Yi and Mr. DING

Jianer.

Mr. DING Jianer, aged 62, is an executive Director. He is also a director
of Longerview, Willport Investments Limited (“Willport”) (a substantial
shareholder of the Company) and certain subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. DING joined the Group in October 1996 when he was first involved
in the management and business operations of Shenzhen Fuhowe Fashion
Company Limited. He has considerable experience in the silk garment
manufacturing business, with focus on various specific areas ranging from
the operations of weaving plants, sales and marketing to printing and
dyeing and s
development along with innovative techniques. Mr. DING is the younger
brother of Mr. TING Man Yi and the elder brother of Mr. TING Hung Yi.

responsible for the Group’s fabric research and
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Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter, aged 58, is an executive Director and the
managing director of China Ting Garment Mfg (Group) Limited and
Concept Creator Fashion Limited. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. CHEUNG has extensive experience in the
garment and textile industry and joined the Group in January 2000, and
oversees the Group's sales and marketing teams. Mr. CHEUNG obtained a
Bachelor of Arts (cum laude) Degree from the University of Washington in
1987, and a Master's Degree in Business Administration from Simon
Fraser University in 1990. Mr. CHEUNG was admitted as a member of the
Golden Key National Honor Society and Phi Beta Kappa in 1986 and
1988, respectively.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Chi Pang, aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in November 2005. He is also a member of the audit
committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration committee of
the Company. Mr. CHENG obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in Business in
1992, a Master's Degree in Business Administration in 1997 and a
Master’s Degree in Laws (Chinese and Comparative Law) in 2009.
Mr. CHENG is an associate member of each of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, CPA Australia, the Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales.

Mr. CHENG is a Certified Public Accountant practicing in Hong Kong with
over 30 years of experience in auditing and business advisory as well as
financial management. Mr. CHENG was chief executive and group
financial controller of NWS Holdings Limited (“NWSH") (Stock code:
0659), the shares of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Prior to joining NWSH, he was a
senior manager of an international accounting firm. Mr. CHENG has been
appointed as the chairman of Vantage Partner CPA Limited with effect
from 1 January 2020. He is also an independent non- executive director
and chairman of audit committee of Tianjin Port Development Holdings
Limited (stock code: 3382) which is listed on the Stock Exchange and
chief executive officer of L&E Consultants Limited. Mr. CHENG was an
independent non-executive director of Fortune Sun (China) Holdings
Limited (stock code: 0352), a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
from June 2006 to June 2019.

Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. WONG Chi Keung, aged 67, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in November 2005. He is also the chairman of the
audit committee and the remuneration committee of the Company.
Mr. WONG holds a master’s degree in business administration from the
University of Adelaide in Australia. He is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and CPA Australia, an associate member
of Chartered Governance Institute (formerly renown as The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) and The Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants. Mr. WONG is also the Responsible Officer of
CASDAQ International Capital Market (HK) company Limited and is
licensed to carry out certain regulated activities under the Securities and

Futures Ordinance namely asset management and advising on securities.

Mr. WONG has over 40 years of experience in finance, accounting and
management, and was, for over 10 years, an executive director, deputy
general manager, group financial controller and company secretary of
Yuexiu Property Company Limited (stock code: 0123), a company listed on
the Stock Exchange. He is also an independent non-executive director of
Asia Orient Holdings Limited (stock code: 0214), Asia Standard Hotel
Group Limited (stock code: 0292), Asia Standard International Group
Limited (stock code: 0129), Century City International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 0355), Changyou Alliance Group Limited (stock code: 1039),
Golden Eagle Retail Group Limited (stock code: 3308), Paliburg Holdings
Limited (stock code: 0617), Regal Hotels International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 0078), Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited (stock code: 0332)
and Zhuguang Holdings Group Company Limited (stock code: 1176), all
of the companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. WONG was also
an independent non-executive director of TPV Technology Limited (stock
code: 0903) and Nickel Resources International Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 2889), which are listed on the Stock Exchange until their
withdrawal from listing effective on 14 November 2019 and 13 February
2020,
non-executive director of Guoan International Limited (stock code: 0143),

respectively. Mr. WONG was appointed as an independent
a company listed on the Stock Exchange with effect from 13 April 2021

and resigned on 9 June 2021.
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Mr. LEUNG Man Kit, aged 68, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in November 2005. He is also the chairman of the
nomination committee and a member of the audit committee of the
Company. Mr. LEUNG obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Science from
the University of Hong Kong in 1977. Mr. LEUNG has over 30 years of
experience in project finance and corporate finance and has held senior
positions with Peregrine Capital (China) Limited, Crosby Securities (HK)
Limited and Swiss Bank Corporation, Hong Kong Branch. Mr. LEUNG was
also a director of Emerging Markets Partnership (Hong Kong) Limited
which was the principal adviser to the AIG Infrastructure Fund L.P.

Mr. LEUNG is an independent non-executive director of NetEase, Inc., a
company listed on NASDAQ (stock code: NTES) and the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 9999). Mr. LEUNG is also an independent non-executive
director of Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited
(stock code: 1132) and Luye Pharma Group Ltd (stock code: 2186), both
of them are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. LEUNG was an
independent non-executive director of China Electronics Optics Valley
Union Holding Company Limited (stock code: 0798) from March 2014 to
May 2020 and China Huiyuan Juice Group Limited (stock code: 1886)
from June 2012 to January 2019, both of them are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Leung was also a responsible officer (Type 6) of Grand
Moore Capital Limited from 18 September 2019 to 31 October 2021.

Corporate Management Team

Export, OEM and ODM Business

Ms. TING Lai, aged 37, is a vice president of the Group. Ms TING joined
the Group in August 2009, and is responsible for overseeing its export
business and product development in Hangzhou. Ms TING obtained a
Bachelor of Economics from the University of California, Los Angeles
(UCLA) in 2008 and a Master of Business Administration (MBA) from the
University of Hong Kong in 2014, and is currently studying courses for
the Doctor of Business Administration (DBA) in the City University of Hong
Kong, with extensive experience in apparel production management and
product quality control. Ms. TING is the eldest daughter of Mr. TING Man
Yi, Chairman of the Group.

Weaving and Apparel Production Management

Mr. WEI Dong, aged 45, is a vice president of the Group and is
responsible for overseeing the Group’'s production management and
managing the third manufacturing business division. He joined the Group
in August 2004. Mr. WEI obtained a Bachelor of International Accounting
from Zhejiang Institute of Finance & Economics, with over ten years of
experience in apparel production management and product quality
control. He is also the husband of the niece of Mr. TING Man Yi,
Mr. TING Hung Yi and Mr. DING lJianer, the executive Directors.

Directors and Senior Management
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Directors and Senior Management
EELRSEERAS

Mr. CHEN Guo Lin, aged 61, is a vice president of the Group and is
responsible for overseeing the Group’s production management and
managing the second manufacturing business division. He joined the
Group in August 2004, with over 20 years of experience in apparel
production management and product quality control. Mr. CHEN is the
brother-in-law of Mr. TING Man Yi, Chairman of the Group.

Mr. DING Lurui, aged 43, is a vice president of the Group and is
responsible for overseeing the Group’s production management and
managing the first manufacturing business division. Mr. DING graduated
from China Central Radio & TV University, and joined the Group in
September 1999, with extensive experience in apparel manufacturing
management, production management and product quality control.
Mr. DING is the nephew of Mr. TING Man Yi, Mr. TING Hung Yi and
Mr. DING lJianer, the executive Directors.

Retail and Brand Management

Mr. TING Yu, aged 33, is a Vice President of the Group. Mr. TING joined
the Group in 2011, and was initially responsible for the operation and
development of the brand of RIVERSTONE and is mainly responsible for
the operation and development of all the brands of the Group at
present. Mr. TING graduated from The University of Manchester with a
bachelor’s degree in 2010, and then from Cass Business School of City
University of London, U.K. with a master’s degree in 2011. Mr. TING has
advanced concepts of innovation and vyears of experience in retail
management. Mr. TING is the eldest son of Mr. TING Hung Yi, the Chief
Executive Officer of the Group.

Mr. TING Fan, aged 33, is a Vice President of the Group and a director
of a subsidiary of the Group. Mr. TING joined the Group in 2011 and is
mainly responsible for investor relations and global business development
at present. Mr. TING graduated from The University of Manchester in
2010, and then from Cass Business School of City University of London,
U.K. with a master’s degree in 2011. Mr. TING has extensive experience
in market development and sales management, and has been in charge of
the introduction and management of some international fashion brands,
like TRENTA and SPRAY GROUND. Mr. TING is the second son of
Mr. TING Hung Yi, the Chief Executive Officer of the Group.
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Accounting and Finance

Mr. CHENG Ho Lung, Raymond, aged 44,
and also the company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) of the Group.
Mr. CHENG joined the Group in May 2005, and is responsible for the
Group's overall matters related to financial and treasury management,

is the Financial Controller

financial accounting and reporting, budgetary control, taxation and
statutory audit. Mr. CHENG graduated from the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology and also holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration (MBA) from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is an
Institute of Certified Public

and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered

associate member of the Hong Kong
Accountants,
Certified Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. CHENG worked as
audit manager for an international accounting firm in Hong Kong.

Administration and Public Relations

Ms. CHEN Shu, aged 41, is a vice president of the Group. Ms CHEN
in August 2003, and is
administration, human resources and public relations of the Group. Ms

joined the Group responsible for the
CHEN obtained a Bachelor of Law from Wuhan University and a Bachelor
of Management from Central China Normal University in 2003, and a
Master of Human Resources Management from Monash University in
2009. She has accumulated over 15 years of extensive experience in
human resources management and public relations.

Directors and Senior I\/Ianagement
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The Directors recognise the importance of corporate governance and are
committed to maintain high-standards of corporate governance in the
management structure and internal control procedures of the Group, in
order to make sure that all business activities of the Group and the
decision-making process are properly regulated to safeguard shareholders’
interests and as well as the Company’s assets. We recognize the value
and importance of achieving high corporate governance standards to
promote corporate transparency and accountability and to enhance
shareholders’ value. This report summarises how the principles as set forth
in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
have been applied in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021. The
company has complied with the principles and code provisions set forth in
“CG Code”) under Part 2 of
Appendix 14 to The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the

the Corporate Governance Code (the

Stock Exchange (the
31 December 2021.

“Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended

We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance
practices with reference to the latest corporate governance developments.
The key corporate governance principles and practices of our Company
are summarized below.

The Board of Directors
Board Composition
The Board currently comprises seven directors for the year ended

31 December 2021 and the composition is set forth as follows:

Mr. TING Man Yi

EERA/CEELRUARBEERE AR
FMEEREE  IHNEFRKFNEEER
INFERANEE I EBERHRRFBIRETALER
T RERRFNEEARBANEE - RARBHIE
HARKFHEEE AU RECEBERARE LA M
RRABRREEZEERERN - AREHARE
ECE - FH A=t ALFERARALE
ERTRARMEEARSAENRA - KRBT
BE— 2*—¢+ A=t+—RLEEBEFERNET
B Rz praE s B AR R (T ET AR A BT 8%1458 —
%TWE%Em#WUﬁ%Em#WD%ﬁW%W
RSP RIRE -

BMETEH2ERTNLEEREERT RASEK
PEEERTHR - ARRMEECEESRAIKR
BT o

E=g
EERMEM

BE_ZT-—F+-A=1T—HILFE"
Bl E R - HEKEIIWT

E£2H

Chairman and Executive Director

THREE ITRRPITES

Mr. TING Hung Yi Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
THEREA THRHFNTES

Mr. DING lJianer Executive Director

TrR%EE BiTES

Mr. CHEUNG Ting VYin, Peter Executive Director

REBRE BiTES

Mr. CHENG Chi Pang Independent Non-Executive Director
BN £ BIUFRITES

Mr. WONG Chi Keung Independent Non-Executive Director
|2 AR E BIUFRITES

Mr. LEUNG Man Kit

REREFRE BIUFITES

Independent Non-Executive Director



The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group. The
principal roles of the Board are:

— to formulate the medium and long-term strategies of the Group;
— to lay down the objectives, policies and business plans of the Group;

— to monitor and evaluate the Group’s operating and financial
performance;

— to review and approve the Group’s annual operating and capital
expenditure budgets, interim and annual results, material contracts
and transactions, declaration of dividend, Directors’ appointment or
re-appointment following the recommendation(s) by the Nomination
Committee as well as other ad hoc matters which need to be dealt
with by the Board;

— to establish effective control measures so as to assess and manage
risks in pursuit of our objectives; and

— to review and ensure the Group has in place adequate accounting
systems and appropriate human resources to fulfill the accounting
and financial reporting functions.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Company to the
management of the Group, who possesses extensive operating experience
and industry knowledge,
implement the Board’s decisions and resolutions. In addition, the Board

and also instructs the management to
has also delegated certain specific responsibilities to various Board
committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. The Board currently comprises four executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. Details of the
Directors are set forth on pages 28 to 31 of this report.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in its terms of reference, including:

— to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

— to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

— to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

— to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors of the
Company; and

Corporate Governance Report
TEERMS

$AE ERERAEE BEEE 2 IRAG

— BIEFTAREZFHRRERRE

—  RINVAREZBR BEREBTE

— ERRFEAREEZZERMBRE

— EHRMERERZFEZEREAFXE
g hHRFEES  ERAOERS K
BER KEREZEGZHEBEAZER
ENZEERUANEMBEEEGRIENS
EEIA

— BUAMENEEACETRRERE
EEAKEEZBR K

A

— BIRBRAEEARENE RS
AN ERIATETT & 5t K B 15 o B BE -

BEESRARANBAREEEBREASEEEE

RE - EEERAEENZELRNITEMNE 7T
BREEERITEESHREREER - ﬁt@%'
ZeTBETRARBERESEEZSRES
ENVLZEE FHNZEGRREZBERE- §$

SHAARNUMHTEER -NBIIFNTESA
Ko BEEMNFBFEHINAREE28EE31E ©

EEeNER
BIE

THRERE M 2 CEERBEL

—  BEREBIARFZEEERBRLER

—  RHREEEERSEERARLE
HELBR

EIPSEST

—  BREREBAAAABYT

ZBERRER

—  BR BRIMEEERARAAREENE=R
ZORTARERFM@E) &



()
=
=
[V
=
=

«Q
®
G
o
C

©
T
)
)
>

«Q
(2]
C
3
=
[0}
o
>
=)
3
=
<3
By}
D

©
o
i
N
o
N
5

w
()]

Corporate Governance Report
rEERME

— to review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions as set
out in Part 2 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and disclosure in
the corporate governance report.

The four executive Directors include three brothers, namely Mr. TING Man
Yi, Mr. TING Hung Yi and Mr. DING lJianer, and Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin,
Peter. Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter has no family relationship with any of
the other executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors.

The Company has entered into service contract with each of the

executive Director and letter of appointment with each of the
independent non-executive Director setting out their duties, terms and

conditions of service and appointment, respectively.

The articles of association of the Company ("Articles of Association”)
provides that all our Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and at each annual general meeting, one-
third of our Directors for the time being or, if the number is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation and offer themselves for re-
election. As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have been
put in place to ensure our Company’s corporate governance practice in
this aspect provides sufficient protection for the interests of shareholders
to a standard commensurate with that of the code.

The Articles of Association also provides that any Director appointed to fill
a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only
until the Company’s next following general meeting and shall then be
eligible for re-election at that meeting.

The Board considers that its diversity is a vital asset to the business. The
Board adopted a board diversity policy for better transparency and
governance. Board appointments are based on merit and candidates are
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board, including but not limited to age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and

length of service.
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Board Meetings

The Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee had held four, two, one and one meetings respectively in
2021. The attendance at the Board meetings, respective Board Committee
meetings and general meeting held in 2021 are as follows:

Corporate Governance Report
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Exeel
Exg FEZZEe FHZBEeMRERZEERN
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Meetings attended/held

HEBITEERH

Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
S EEg EREER FHEES REZES BRERE
Executive Directors
BITES
Mr. TING Man Yi 3/4 — — — 11
TEREE
Mr. TING Hung Yi 4/4 — 11 11 11
THEREE
Mr. DING lJianer 3/4 — — — 7
TEREE
Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter 4/4 — — — iVl
REBLE
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHTES
Mr. CHENG Chi Pang 4/4 2/2 11 11 11
BEMEE
Mr. WONG Chi Keung 4/4 2/2 11 — 11
BB
Mr. LEUNG Man Kit 4/4 2/2 — 11 11
RREFE
The Board is responsible for the formulation of the overall business EEEEBEH TEEBEREBREIE ERNIHG

strategies and objectives, the monitoring and evaluation of the operating
and financial performance, the review of the corporate governance
standard and the supervision of the management of the Group. The
management of the Group is responsible for the implementation of the
business strategies and the day-to-day operations of the Group under the
supervision of the Chief Executive Officer. The Directors have full access
to information on the Group. All senior management of the Group also
provide the Directors from time to time with information on the business
of the Group.

Training and Development

The Company places great importance on directors training and annually
holds a Board of Directors conference to reaffirm Directors’ duties and
responsibilities and to advise the Directors on various subjects including,
Listing Rules compliance, updates to the Listing Rules, rules and
regulations of the Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC"),
enforcement actions taken by the SFC and Stock Exchange and how the
rules and regulations impact on the Company’s business and corporate
governance.
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All Directors are provided with a Directors Manual with summaries of the
directors’ duties and responsibilities as a director of a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (including connected and notifiable transactions;
disclosure of interest in securities of the Company and the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set forth in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”)) and also contains
the group chart and the Articles of Association. All Directors have
participated
develop their knowledge and skills as well as to receive updates on

in continuous professional development to refresh and
developments in corporate governance practices. This is to ensure their

contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

A record of the Director’s participation in the continuous professional
development program is kept with the Company Secretary.

Directors’ Training

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills by attending training and by reading materials
in relation to the roles, functions and duties of a listed company director
and the latest developments in the relevant rules and regulations.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the code provision
C.1.4 of the CG Code for the year ended 31 December 2021 and they
participated
development:

in the following types of continuous professional

FEEEHERH-—DESZTM  REEARBR
FrEmR T§$m§$%ﬁ&&ﬁ$(@%§ﬁ§&m
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REENMBEIEE  TESAHCEEATERE

REOVRIEFR - kAR ELECABRZEER
LOEMBNBEATHEESEHER

EE2HFER
.

RERTEOTHEARAIMER

FEEI
BIEEXEERTANSTAIRNECIAGK  EHE
FRSNEILEEEHELTAREZNAG « B
Be B E A RMARBR A RAOI S ERENERHTE
SEEERR - DS LES NS R

HE_Z-_—F+_A=+—"HILFE EEER
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Type of continuous
professional development

BESERRER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. TING Man Yi THREE (0, (m
Mr. TING Hung Yi TR - (1,
Mr. DING Jianer TEREAE (1,
Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter REE LA (1,
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. CHENG Chi Pang B RS IS 5 A4 (), (Im
Mr. WONG Chi Keung w|2RAEL (), (Im
Mr. LEUNG Man Kit RRESEE (I, qm

(): Attending internal training sessions.

(IN): Attending seminars.

(n: Reading materials in relation to the roles, functions and duties of a listed company director
and the latest developments in the relevant rules and regulations.

(1) 2R EIEIRE -

(I : S -

a: HEEEETAREENAS - R RBEUKEEER
RRBISFEREOER -



Directors’ and officers’ liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the
liabilities of the Directors that may arise out of the corporate activities.
The insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.

Compliance with Model Code

The Company adopted the Model Code as set forth in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for Directors in their dealings in
the Company’s securities. Formal written notices are sent to the Directors
prior to the commencement of the periods of 30 days immediately
preceding the publication of our interim results announcement and 60
results
in the
securities of the Company during those periods up to and including the

days immediately preceding the publication of our annual

announcement, as a reminder that Directors may not deal

date of publication of results. Having made specific enquiry with the
Directors, all the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards under the Model Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2021.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are separate
and are held by Mr. TING Man Yi and Mr. TING Hung Yi, respectively,
who are siblings. The Chairman is responsible for the overall strategic
planning of the Group, overseeing the manufacturing business of the
Group in Hangzhou and the planning and implementation of major new
investments and projects of the Group. The Chairman will ensure that the
Group maintains good measures and effective corporate governance
practices and procedures. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for
the day-to-day management of the business of the Group and the
strategic development of the Group’s OEM and retail business. With the
assistance of other members of the Board and other senior management,
the Chief Executive Officer closely monitors the operating and financial
results of the Group, identifies weakness of the operation and takes all
necessary and appropriate remedial steps.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and Rules 3.10A
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors, one independent non-executive
Director of which has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related finance management expertise and the independent
non-executive Directors represent at least one-third of the Board. All three
independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term of
three years, commencing from 18 November 2020. All of them have
satisfied the independence criteria, and each of them has made such
confirmation on independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Directors are of the view that all independent non-executive Directors
have met the independence guidelines set forth in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.
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Board Committees

As an integral part of good corporate governance, the Board has
established the following committees whose authority, functions,
compositions and duties are set out below:

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Board has three members, namely
Mr. TING Hung Yi, Mr. CHENG Chi Pang and Mr. WONG Chi Keung. The
chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. WONG Chi Keung. The
Remuneration Committee is established primarily for the purpose of
ensuring that we can recruit, retain and motivate high quality personnel
who are essential to the success of the Group. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee include reviewing the terms of remuneration
packages of the executive directors and senior management and
determining the award of bonuses. Its terms of reference are available on
request, and are also posted on the website of the Company. The
Remuneration Committee was established on 18 November 2005.

The Company has adopted the model to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of executive Directors and senior
management of the Company. The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for formulating and recommending remuneration policy to the
Board and reviewing and making recommendations on
compensation-related issues. The fees for Directors are subject to the
approval of the shareholders at the general meetings in accordance with
the Articles of Association of the Company. The Remuneration Committee
consults with Chairman on its proposals and recommendations if
necessary, and also has access to independent professional advice if
necessary. The Remuneration Committee is also provided with sufficient
resources enabling it to perform its duties. The Remuneration
Committee’s specific terms of reference are posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

One Remuneration Committee meeting was held in 2021 to review and
make recommendations to the Board the Directors’ fees and the
emoluments of the executive Directors and remuneration package of
senior management. All the committee members attended the meeting.

The remuneration package for the executive Directors and senior
management is made up of two parts, namely a fixed component and a
variable incentive. The fixed component comprises mainly salary,
retirement benefit scheme contributions and other allowances which are
determined by reference to the remuneration benchmark in similar
industry or industry with similar market capitalization and prevailing
market conditions. The variable incentive is bonus, which s
performance-based and determined by the Board and the Group based on

the Group’s and individual work performance.
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Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management (other than Directors) by band
for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set forth below:

In the band of
BN A8 Bl

Below HK$1,000,001
1,000,001/ 7L AT

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Board consists of Mr. TING Hung Yi,
Mr. CHENG Chi Pang and Mr. LEUNG Man Kit. The chairman of the
is Mr. LEUNG Man Kit.
Committee is established primarily for the purpose of regularly reviewing

Nomination Committee The Nomination

the structure, size and composition of the Board and making
recommendations to the Board on nominations and appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors. The Nomination
Committee selects and recommends appropriate candidates, based on his
to the Board on the

appointment of Directors of the Group. The Nomination Committee has

or her prior experience and qualifications,

recommended to the Board the Directors who should retire and make
themselves available for election pursuant to the Company’s Articles of
Association, assessed the independence of all independent non-executive
Directors. Its terms of reference are available on request and are also
posted on the website of the Company. The Nomination Committee was
established on 18 November 2005. One Nomination Committee meeting,
discussing the nomination procedures, was held in 2021 and all the

committee members attended the meeting.

The Nomination Committee’s specific terms of reference are posted on
the websites of the Company and Stock Exchange.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. WONG Chi Keung, Mr. CHENG Chi Pang and
Mr. LEUNG Man Kit. Mr. WONG Chi Keung is the chairman of the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee assists the Board to review the financial
reporting process, evaluate the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems, and corporate governance of the Group and
oversee the auditing processes. The authority, role and responsibilities of
the Audit Committee are set out in written terms of reference which are
available on request and are also posted on the website of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. The Audit Committee was established on
18 November 2005. The Company has been in full compliance with
requirements of Rule 3.21 in the Listing Rules throughout the year. Two
Audit Committee meetings were held, together with senior management
and the external auditor in 2021. All the committee members attended
these meetings.

During 2021, the Audit Committee reviewed the recent updates and
development of accounting and financial reporting standards and assessed
their potential impact on the Group, overseeing the relationship with the
Company’s external auditor (including making recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditor), considered the external auditor’'s proposed audit fees; discussed
with the external auditor their independence and the nature and scope of
the audit; reviewed the interim and annual financial statements,
particularly judgemental areas, before submission to the Board; reviewed
the Group’s adherence to the code provisions in the CG Code, reviewed
the Group’s financial control, internal control and risk management
systems and discussed with the external auditor on the Group’s financial
reporting function, in particular on the adequacy of resources of the
Group's accounting and financial reporting function, qualifications and
experience of our staff and their training program, conducted an annual
review of non-exempt continuing connected transactions of the Group.
The Audit Committee recommended the Board to adopt the interim and
annual report for 2021.

The Audit Committee’s specific terms of reference are posted on the
websites of the Company and Stock Exchange.

The remuneration of the auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
for audit and non-audit services (namely taxation services, interim review
and agreed-upon procedures) rendered during 2021 was HK$2.6 million
and HK$0.9 million, respectively.

Accountability and Audit

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2021 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and
audited by external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers.
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Director’'s Responsibilities for the

Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for overseeing the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the Group with a
view to ensure that such consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, selecting suitable
accounting policies, applying the selected accounting policies consistently,
and making prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the Group and of
its results and cash flows in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and statutory requirements.

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the Group is
set forth in the independent auditor’s report on pages 69 to 77.

Internal Control

The Board and the management of the Group have overall responsibility
for maintaining a sound and effective internal control system of the
Group so as to ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of the operations
of the Group in achieving the established corporate objectives,
safeguarding assets of the Group, rendering reliable financial reporting
and complying with the applicable laws and regulations. The Board
assessed the effectiveness of internal control by considering reviews
performed by the Audit Committee, management team and both internal
and external auditors.

The Board is also responsible for making appropriate assertions on the
adequacy of reporting and the
effectiveness of disclosure controls and procedures. For the year ended
31 December 2021, the Board has, through the Audit Committee of the
Board with the assistance of the management, conducted reviews of the
effectiveness of these internal control systems, including without limitation

internal controls over financial

to financial control, operations control, compliance control and risk
management functions, on a regular basis. For the year ended
31 December 2021, based on the assessment made by the Audit
Committee, the senior management and the internal audit team, the
Board is satisfied that there is an ongoing process in place for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group.

Company Secretary

Mr. CHENG Ho Lung, Raymond, the Company Secretary of our Company,
has confirmed the completion of relevant professional training of not less
than 15 hours pursuant to the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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Shareholder Relations

The Company is committed to ensure that the Group complies with
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and other applicable laws
and regulations, and that all shareholders and potential investors have an
equal opportunity to receive and obtain information provided by the
Company. The Board recognizes the importance of good communication
with shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal channels,
which include interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for exchange of
views and direct communication between the shareholders and the Board.
The Chairman of the Board, the Directors and senior management of the
Company and where applicable, the independent non-executive Directors,
are available to answer questions at the shareholders’ meeting.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual directors. Poll voting
was adopted for all decisions to be made at all general meetings. Details
of the poll voting procedures are included in all circulars to shareholders
which call

for a general meeting and are explained during the

proceedings of the meeting.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with its shareholders. Enquiries from shareholders are dealt with in an
informative and timely manner. We maintain a website www.chinating.
com.hk to keep our shareholders and the general public informed on our
latest corporate news, interim and annual results announcements,
financial reports and other public announcements. We always welcome
shareholders’ views and input. Shareholders may send their enquiries in
writing to the Board by addressing them to our Company Secretary. The
contact details of our Company Secretary are as follows:

Address: The Company Secretary

China Ting Group Holdings Limited
27/F, King Palace Plaza

55 King Yip Street Kwun Tong

Hong Kong
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http://www.chinating.com.hk

Shareholders’ right to convene a
shareholders’ meeting and putting forward

proposals at shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, shareholder(s) of the
Company holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company (the “Requisitionist(s)”) shall
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company, to require (the “Requisition”) an extraordinary
general meeting (the "EGM") to be called by the Board for transaction of
any business specified in the Requisition.

The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit of the
Requisition. In the event that the Board fails to convene the EGM within
twenty-one days of the deposit of the Requisition, the Requisitionist(s)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Investor Relations

A printed copy of the memorandum and articles of association of the
Company has been published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

There has been no changes in the Company’s

constitutional documents during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Dividend Policy

The Company may declare and pay dividends to the shareholders of the
Company by way of cash or by other means that the Board considers
appropriate. It is the policy of the Board, in recommending dividends, to
allow the shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits, and at the
same time, to ensure that the Company is to retain adequate reserves for
future growth.

Any proposed distribution of final dividends shall be formulated by the
Board and will be subject to the shareholders’ approval. A decision to
declare or to pay any dividends in the future, and the amount of any
dividends, will depend on a number of factors, including the results of
operations, cash flows, financial conditions, operating and capital
expenditure requirements, distributable profits and other applicable laws
and regulations and other factors that the Board may consider important
and appropriate.
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Significance and important statement 1- EHEZRXREEZEH
According to the Corporate Risk Management and Internal B(hERREREANIPIEGEE R

Control Regulation Rules and relevant guidance and other
internal control regulation requirements (hereafter referred as
the “Corporate Internal Control Standard System”),
combining with the internal control policy and appraisal
measures of China Ting Group Holdings Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the “Company”), on the basis of regular
supervision and special supervision on internal control, we
have conducted an investigation on the risk management
and internal control for the period from 1 January 2021 to
31 December 2021.

It is the responsibility of the Board of the Company to
establish, complete and implement effectively the internal
control and appraise its effectiveness and truly disclose the
internal control appraisal report in accordance with the
Corporate Internal Control Standard System. The Board of
Supervisors conducts the supervision in terms of establishing
and implementing internal control by the Board. The
executives of the Group and general managers of companies
are responsible for the organization of daily operation of the
corporate internal control. The Board, Board of Supervisors,
directors, supervisors and senior managements assure that
there is no false, misleading statement or significant
omission in the report, and assume several and joint legal
liability on the truthfulness, correctness and completeness of
the report.

The corporate internal control is conducted to properly
assure the legal compliance of operation and management,
assets safety, truthfulness and completeness of financial
reports and relevant information, to improve the operation
efficiency and effectiveness and accelerate to realize our
development strategy. Due to the inherent restriction of
internal control, it only provides reasonable assurance for
above purposes. In addition, as any change of circumstance
may cause improper risk appraisal and internal control or low
compliance degree on the control policy and procedure, thus
to predict future effectiveness of the internal control based
on internal control appraisal may bring risk to some extent.
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Risk Identification and Risk Analysis

Scope of internal control appraisal

In accordance with enterprise development condition and
new trend of social policy and regulation in 2021,
businesses and items involved in this appraisal comprise
development strategy, human resource, social responsibility,
enterprise culture, capital event, procurement, assets
management, business event, research and development,
construction, guarantee business, outsourcing business,
financial management, budget management, contract
management, internal information transmission, information
system, environmental factors and emergency management;
and high risk areas with attention mainly include business
management risk, financial management risk, labor
management risk, production management risk, inventory
risk, sale risk and major decision legal risk.

Risk level identification

The Company leverages on risk matrix method to identify
risk level by categories. Through risk matrix, loss caused by
risk event is categorized to six levels, and the possibility of
risk event is also correspondingly categorized to six levels.
With loss level in line of table and possibility level in row of
table, to assign figures of 6—1 score according to the degree
from high to low, and then categorize risk level basing on
figures calculated by multiplying such corresponding figures
of intersection point. Following risk matrix table shows: 1-2
score represents low risk, 3—8 score represents general risk,
9-16 score represents moderate risk, 18-25 score represents
significant risk, 30—-36 score represents especially serious risk.
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iii. Significant risk categories and summary 3 EXREAKREREER
According to feedbacks on our internal control KIBRNERSRE - BEIEFKED
questionnaires and by ways of interviewing with our #o U KEREEEZESEFR &5
president group, monitoring risk indexes and others, the AT7IERBRASBE T _—F—A
following seven risks were identified as significant risks of the — E:Kt—zj:7¢+ A=+—HBH
Group during the period from 1 January 2021 to FHRARRE - FE2HRAB R ERE
31 December 2021, for which we need to adopt efficient EIEFE -

risk management and control measures.
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Risk Risk description Assignment
[2 B% & 7B [ B 4 B {E
COVID-19 becoming a In 2021, the world was in a new stage of “co-existing with COVID-19". 30
normal Although the economic constraints imposed by COVID-19 in 2020 had Especially serious
eased, considering the persistence and recurrence of COVID-19, especially in risk

B
(o]

Europe and the United States where the epidemic had not been alleviated,
together with the factors such as unbalanced vaccinations and the need to
verify the immunity brought by vaccines, the recovery of the manufacturing
industry is still expected to face constraints, and the fact that COVID-19 is
becoming a normal will bring continuous impacts and risks to the restart of
the economy.
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Legalization of labor In 2021, the units in China Ting's industrial park involved in the viaduct 20
relations construction project of the government completed land acquisition and  Significant risk

demolition. The demolition process increased the possibility and frequency
of labor disputes, which, together with the factors such as the uneven
management of labor relations among companies and the increasing
awareness of the employees for rights protection, had raised the possibility
of the outbreak of labor disputes, making the legalization of labor relations
increasingly important.
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Risk Risk description Assignment
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Industrial park modification ~ According to government requirements, the preliminary work of the 20
project industrial park modification project in 2021 needed to be carried out as  Significant risk

scheduled. Due to the significant amount of work and the possibility of
being affected by relevant government policies at any time, the uncertainty
in the approval process of the construction project had increased.

[ [ 22 IR B REBFAER  — - FERKXZRAMNPTEFOHFER ANEAT 20
REEX BEERAEXBNERREYE  SERRRAERULBESRHN BARR
NHEFEMIA -

Inventory risks After the outbreak of COVID-19, the original business structure of the 20

companies under the Group was materially affected, and the proportion of  Significant risk
foreign trade business dropped dramatically, which could only be balanced
by increasing the proportion of domestic retail business. However, factors
such as the repeated domestic outbreak of COVID-19 and the returns from

e-commerce business had led to an increase in inventory risks that are
common in the retail industry.
7R BREBEHR  KEQXRRANEBEBRIBATZE  IEMHEBELX 20
B TFE ReERmBEMBEAZTEERELTUTE - A BARBEHR EPNERA
B EREBRESER GUTENTEERFEMNEFRRBREAENK -

International trade risks Affected by COVID-19, the market risks faced by the companies worldwide 18
had been increasing, and trade risks were bound to rise. The probability of  Significant risk
customers going bankrupt had increased, especially for the customers who
were unable to buy insurance. Once such an event takes place, stranded
inventory and delayed payment will cause extremely adverse losses to the
Group.

R E 5 AR REEBETE  2HCE@MEBENTISARBENK - ESRARBL EH - BF 18
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Risk management summary

The Group’s business and market are both at risk. Facing
constant change of market, we need to continuously identify
and control relevant risks, so as to decrease, transfer,
prevent or master risks. Therefore, we need to adopt
scientific measures to actively carry out comprehensive and
in-depth analysis, and implement an efficient structure of
corporate risk management. In respect of strategy, the
Group focuses on identifying and managing significant risks
that may affect the Group, its business and functions, so as
to realize the Group’s strategy and business target. In
seeking growth opportunities, the Group will aim at
optimizing risk and return decision mechanism and
establishing strong and independent approval procedures. In
respect of operation, the Group aims at being able to
identify, analyze and appraise management harm and risk to
provide safe, healthy, effective and environmental friendly
working condition for employees; to ensure public safety and
health and at the same time minimize the impact on the
environment.

Significant risk indexes supervision and control
The Company has set up supervision indexes for each risk
identified and conducts close supervision for the indexes. A
risk will be highly likely to occur when corresponding
indexes go beyond warning scope. In order to prevent risk or
try to decrease the probability of risk as much as possible,
the Company has pre-formulated relevant risk control
measures against each risk identified, so as to minimize the
probability of the risk occurred.

In terms of seven risks identified in this internal control
survey of the Group, we suggest following risk supervision
indexes and actively cope with such risks, expecting to
realize the basic objective of controlling risks, avoiding risks
or minimizing damage brought by such risks.
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Risk Risk supervision index Risk control measures
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COVID-19 becoming a normal 1. Real-time development of 1. Actively resuming our efforts in the domestic market
COVID-19 pandemic and with our customers against the backdrop of the
worldwide relatively stable COVID-19 situation in China and the

2. Impact of COVID-19 recovery of market activities.
pandemic on the 2. Actively exploring the growth points of the post-
economy of various pandemic market as a result of COVID-19 pandemic,
countries and paying attention to the product and market
development in the fields of health and sports.
3. Operating prudently, reducing inventory and increasing

cash to fight against the sustaining sluggish market
performance resulting from COVID-19 pandemic.

ZIEERIL 1. R a,a%ibﬁﬁ 1. BINZIBEEEEIRTE - MI5EEHERE - Bt 2EIERM
2. RII B 4% i 2 A Y A TISME P IE -
KREBZE 2. ERREEEEMSRAZEETISES - BITERE
EEE M ERM ISR -
3. HEEBE  RAOER  EMRE  URBREZE BT A 88
EERFETISEX -
Legalization of labor relations 1. Chinese labor laws and 1. Comprehensively improving the management and
regulations and cases control of labor relations within the Group, and
2. Monitoring the harmony conducting regular internal audits on the compliance in
degree of labor relations terms of labor relations.
within the Company 2. Enriching the work level of the mass organizations of
the Group to improve the happiness of employees, and
enhance the harmony of employment relations.
3. Establishing an internal mediation agency to resolve
employment conflicts in advance.
EBRERA AL 1. EF'IM ERERRRA 1. FHRESSEEANMBLHEEREETIE  THETAHS
2. N EA RS BB R AN A E PEERARUET -
g 2. @E%lﬁiiﬁﬂw? CREBEIFBRR RASEHW
BEAEE
3. Eilﬂ*ﬂuﬂﬂﬂ%% L E T B REEAT o
Industrial park modification 1. Planning documents and 1. Keeping close contact with government authorities, and
project implementation progress ensuring to smoothly obtain the planning permits,
of the government construction permits and other qualifications for the
2. Relevant laws and park modification project.
regulations of the 2. Exerting great efforts on the follow-up and management
construction of the construction work of the industrial park to
administration authorities ensure the construction quality, construction period and
of the government construction cost control.
3. Price indicators of bulk 3. Making preparations for investment promotion and
commodities such as steel operation of the new industrial park in advance to
and cement ensure that the new industrial park will become a new

profit-making point for the Group after its completion.



Corporate Risk Management and Internal Control Report

tERBREEEANBIEH RS

Risk Risk supervision index Risk control measures
[ B 7B [ B BE 1 fE AR [, By 4R 4 i
B = M2 TE B 1. BUFREIXHRREEMR 1. HEBAFMPARBEBRE - BRERNEEE BN ES

()
=
=
[V
=
=

«Q
®
G
o
C

©
T
)
)
>

«Q
(2]
C
3
=
[0}
o
>
=)
3
=
<3
By}
D

©
o
i
N
o
N
5

(9]
N

for inventory
consumption
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Inventory risks 1. Regular inventory 1. Further promoting the small-order quick-turning mode

reporting system for new branded products to lower the possibility of

2. Regular reporting system inventory generation from the source.

2. Expanding inventory consumption channels in various
dimensions, lifting the clearance rate of inventories,
and maintaining cash flows in a good condition.

3. Properly managing the inventories to avoid physical
damage and impairment to their value.
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International trade risks 1. Macroeconomic indices 1. Continuing to explore international and domestic high-

B E 5 2k

of the global economy,
especially the major
economies such as the
United States

2. Credit risk rating
indicators of customers,
market performance

3. Monitoring the impact of
international logistics,
international epidemics
and other factors on
trade
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quality customers to ensure the continuous growth of
the Group’s orders in general.

2. Constructing and managing overseas production bases
to ensure the stable and sufficient production capacity
of the Group.

3. Actively taking advantage of insurance and financial
means to prevent international trade risks.
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Continuous improvement measures

Internal Control and Risk Management Committee and the
Board will finalize and issue the risk management manual,
and further enhance measures to cope with risks. Internal
Control and Risk Management Committee promotes the risk
in other business

management and gradually

manage such risks in stages in order from high to low.

process,

Person in charge of relevant risk constantly supervises the
effectiveness of measures on risk warning indexes and risks
identified, so as to control risks in a reasonable and timely
way. Regular report mechanism is
established to regularly report risk management to the Board
and Audit Committee. The Board of the Group is fully liable

for maintaining complete and effective internal supervision

risk management

and risk management procedures, and will also include the
risk management in strategy development, business plan,
capital allocation, investment decision on internal supervision
and daily operation.

Conclusion
Based on the results of the internal control review for the year

ended 31

December 2021 and the assessment of the Audit

Committee thereon, no significant deficiency in risk management
and internal controls systems are noted. The Board therefore is
satisfied that appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems have been maintained for the year ended
31 December 2021.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended
31 December 2021.

Principal Business Activities

The principal business activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal business activities of the subsidiaries of the
10 to the consolidated financial

Company are set forth in note

statements.

The Group's principal business activities during the financial year ended
31 December 2021 were garment manufacturing for export, retailing

branded fashion apparel and property investment in Mainland China.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the financial year ended
31 December 2021 by business and geographical segments is set out in
note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review

Details of the activities during the year as required by Schedule 5 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including fair review of the Group’s
business, a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future development in the Group's
business, are set out in the sections “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 10
to 14, "Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 15 to 26 and
Corporate Risk Management and Internal Control Report on pages 46 to
53 of this report.

Environmental policies of the Group is to maintaining the highest
environmental standards to ensure sustainable development of its
business, with compliance of all relevant laws and regulations having
significant impact on the Group in relation to its business including health
and safety, workplace conditions, employment and the environment.

Subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as of 31 December
2021 are set forth in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations
The Group’s consolidated
31 December 2021
comprehensive income on pages 80 and 81 of this report.

ended
are set forth in the consolidated statement of

results for the financial year

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021.
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Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set forth on pages 186 and 187 of this
report.

Borrowings
Details of the borrowings of the Group are set forth in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital and Share Options
No new shares or share options were issued during the year. Details of
shares issued by the Company are set forth in note 19 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Principal Properties

Details of the principal properties held for investment purpose are set
forth on note 8 to the consolidated financial statements. Further details
of the Group's investment properties are set forth on page 188 of this
report.

Distributable Reserves

As of 31 December 2021, the Company's
distributions amounted to HK$1,532.9 million comprising share premium,
contributed surplus and retained earnings.

reserves available for

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, sales made to the
Group's top five customers are less than 30.0% of the total sales. The
Group purchased less than 30.0% of its goods and services from its five
largest suppliers.

At no time during the year did the Directors, their close associates or
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) have any beneficial interest in
the Group's five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

Relationship with Customers, Suppliers and

Employees

The Group values relationships with, and have been maintaining good
relationships with its customers, raw material and garment manufacturing
suppliers and the employees of the Group. During the year ended
31 December 2021, there were no material dispute between the Group
and its customers, suppliers and employees.

Report of the Directors
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Environmental Policy and Performance

The Company has always been closely communicating with its
stakeholders, actively responding to their needs, and taking those into
consideration during corporate strategy formulation and decision making
process. The Company sees sustainable development as the key for a
corporation to succeed and therefore, it aims to seek a win-win situation
for the Group, society and environment by balancing between the
creation of economic value and the impact on the environment.

The Group strictly complies with various national environmental protection
laws and regulations. It has implemented a series of measures to alleviate
environmental impacts of weaving, dyeing and garment manufacturing.
The Group has established rules for pollutant control and waste disposal,
including airborne dust and sewage during the process of dyeing and
manufacturing; electricity consumption has been reduced by improving the
Group's facilities and technologies, thereby controlling greenhouse gas
emission; the Group supports green operations and encourages its
employees to adopt environmentally friendly working habit. For further
information about the Company’s environmental performance during the
year, please refer to the Company’s separate Environmental, Social and
Governance Report to be issued by the Company. The report will be
available on the Stock Exchange's website (www.hkexnews.hk) and the
Company’s website after its publication.

Compliance with laws and Regulations

The Group and its activities are subject to requirements under various
laws. These include, among others, the Work Safety Law of the PRC*
("hEARLMEL 24 EL"), Labour Law of the PRC* (“FH1%E A R
B4 EDE "), Environmental Protection Law of the PRC* (“mzE A RF0
BIIRE(R#L "), Labour Contract Law of the PRC* ("R ZEARKEFIE L
)& [RVE"), Regulations of the PRC on Prohibiting the Use of Child
Labour* (“ZL|H{EMAE LA E "), Fire Protection Law of the PRC* ("
#= ARLMBEEP L"), Law of the PRC on Wholly Foreign-Owned
Enterprise* (“AZEARKLFBINERZEL") and Law of the PRC on
Enterprise Income Tax* ("F#EARKEMBIGEMBRE") and the
applicable regulations, guidelines and policies issued or promulgated
under or in connection with these statutes. In addition, the Listing Rules
also apply to the Company. The Company seeks to ensure compliance
with these requirements through various measures such as internal
controls, trainings and oversight of various business units at different
levels of the Group. The Group highly values the importance of ensuring
compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

During the year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations
by the Group that have significant impact on the business and operations
of the Group.

* The English name is the translation for identification purpose only.
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Directors

The Directors of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021

and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. TING Man Yi (Chairman)
Mr. TING Hung Yi (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. DING Jianer

Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHENG Chi Pang
Mr. WONG Chi Keung
Mr. LEUNG Man Kit

In accordance with article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. TING Man Yi, Mr. TING Hung Yi and Mr. CHENG Chi Pang will retire
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming

annual general meeting (the “Annual General Meeting”).

Changes in Information of Directors

The changes in the information of the Directors subsequent to the date
of the 2021 interim report of the Company, which is required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are set forth

below:
Name of Director

Mr. WONG Chi Keung

Mr. LEUNG Man Kit

Details of changes

Resigned as an independent non-executive
director and member of each of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and
the nomination committee of Guoan
International Limited (stock code: 0143), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with
effect from 9 June 2021.

Appointed as the member of the nomination
committee of Asia Orient Holdings Limited
(stock code: 0214), Asia Standard Hotel Group
Limited (stock code: 0292) and Asia Standard
International Group Limited (stock code:
0129), all of them are listed on the Stock
Exchange with effect from 23 December
2021.

Ceased to be a responsible officer (Type 6) of
Grand Moore Capital Limited as of 1
November 2021.

Report of the Directors
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Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Confirmation of Independence of

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company received from each of Mr. CHENG Chi Pang, Mr. WONG
Chi Keung and Mr. LEUNG Man Kit a confirmation of their independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all
of them to be independent.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group are set forth on pages 27 to 33 of this report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The annual salary and bonus of each of Mr. TING Man Yi, Mr. TING Hung
Yi, Mr. DING lJianer and Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter for the financial
year ended 31 December 2021 was HK$3.0 million, HK$3.0 million,
HK$2.1 million, and HK$1.5 million, respectively. The annual salary and
bonus of each executive Director shall be recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and decided by the Board and subject to the
annual review by the Remuneration Committee of the Company, provided
that any increment shall not be more than 15% of the annual salary
received by each executive Director for the immediate preceding year.

Each of the executive Director is also entitled to a management bonus,
the amount of which is determined with reference to the audited
consolidated net profits of the Group after taxation and minority interests
but before extraordinary items (the “Net Profits”) as the Board may, in its
absolute discretion, approve, provided that the aggregate amount of the
management bonus payable to all executive Directors in respect of any
financial year shall not exceed 4% of the Net Profits for the relevant
financial year.

Each of the independent non-executive Director has signed a letter of
appointment dated 18 November 2020 with the Company under which
each of them has agreed to act as an independent non-executive Director
for a period of three years, commencing from 18 November 2020, unless
terminated in accordance with the terms and conditions specified therein.
The initial annual fee payable to Mr. WONG Chi Keung, Mr. CHENG Chi
Pang and Mr. LEUNG Man Kit is HK$360,000, HK$240,000 and
HK$240,000, respectively.
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Save as mentioned above, none of the independent non-executive
Directors is expected to receive any other remuneration for holding their
office as an independent non-executive Director. Save as disclosed above,
there is no service contract, which is not determinable by the Company or
its subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation), entered into with any of the executive
Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General

Meeting.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements and contracts that are
significant in relation to the Company’s

business

Except for the continuing connected transactions disclosed on pages 65
to 66 of this report, no significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year (2020: Nil).

Emolument Policy of the Group
The Company’s policies concerning remuneration of the Directors are as
follows:

(i) the amount of remuneration is recommended by the Remuneration
Committee and decided by the Board on the basis of the relevant
executive Director's experience, responsibility, workload and the
time devoted to the Group;

(ii) non-cash benefits may be provided to the executive Directors under
their remuneration package; and

(i) the Directors may be granted, at the discretion of the Board with
the endorsement of the Remuneration Committee of the Board,
options pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the
Company, as part of their remuneration package.

The emolument policy of the Group is aimed at attracting, retaining and
motivating talented individuals. The principle is to have performance
based remuneration which reflects market standards. The employee’s
remuneration packages are generally determined based on their job
nature and position with reference to market standards. Employees also
receive certain welfare benefits. The Group’s emolument policy will be
adjusted depending on a number of factors, including changes to the
market practice and stages of the Group’s business development, so as to
achieve the Group’s operational targets.
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Interests and/or Short Positions of Directors
and Chief Executive in the Shares,
Underlying Shares or Debentures of the

Company and its Associated Corporations

As of 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO")) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions), or were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register required to be maintained, or were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(@) Interests in the shares of the Company

EERBRSTRAEREARAR
HEBZENRG - HEROIE
BETEENESER KR

HE-_Z-_—%+-_A=+—H0 BEZRARA&
SITHRABRART REREEZE (REHARHAE
&0 ([#FEFH REBEIEG D E+RIHRE) MK
7 HEARDIERES  HAEREBESRBER
PIE+REMETRID EERE DGR A) K E
RETMERRAE (BERBEZSHRXHTEHEIE
IWREHEBNEELAR) IBEEHFLHE
&I 3521E R T BB LN T T E N E LM AR E
wm Ok E - RIRBIEAEST AR E A MG AR A 7] [
RS AR IT

(a) RAEQFARGHES

Approximate percentage of

Name of Directors Capacity Number of shares interest in the Company*
EEHE 514 BB E AT ERBN BT
(Note 1)
(PH5ET)
Mr. TING Man Yi Interest of controlled corporation 1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
THREE REGEE R (Note 2)
(B 7E2)
Mr. TING Hung Yi Interest of controlled corporation 1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
THREE ZEGEE R (Note 3)
(B 7E3)
Mr. DING Jianer Interest of controlled corporation 1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
TREREE ZEGEE R (Note 4)
(B 5E4)
Mr. CHENG Chi Pang Directly beneficially owned 200,000 (L) 0.01%
BN 5L 4 BEEERES
Mr. WONG Chi Keung Directly beneficially owned 1,000,000 (L) 0.05%
BHZRAEAE BEEE=HES
# The approximate percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued # AR REEBAOB DL NIRARRBE_S=—

share capital of the Company as of 31 December 2021.

FH—A=+—HMEBITRAH -



Notes:

The letter “L" stands for the Director’s long position in the shares.

Longerview Investments Limited (“Longerview”) is owned as to 41.5% by
Firmsuccess Limited (“Firmsuccess”) which is wholly-owned by Mr. TING Man Yi.
Longerview is a controlled corporation (within the meaning of the SFO) of
Mr. TING Man Yi. As such, under the SFO, Mr. TING Man Yi is deemed to be
interested in the 1,490,000,000 shares held by Longerview.

Longerview is owned as to 40.5% by In Holdings Limited (“In Holdings"”) which
is wholly-owned by Mr. TING Hung Yi. Longerview is a controlled corporation
(within the meaning of the SFO) of Mr. TING Hung Yi. As such, under the SFO,
Mr. TING Hung Yi is deemed to be interested in the 1,490,000,000 shares held
by Longerview.

Pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement dated 18 November 2005 and entered into
between Mr. TING Man Yi, Firmsuccess, Mr. TING Hung Yi, In Holdings,
Mr. DING lJianer, Willport Investments Limited (“Willport”) and Longerview
(collectively the “Controlling Shareholders”), each of the Controlling Shareholders
(other than Longerview) has agreed to enter into pre-emptive arrangements in
respect of their shareholding in Longerview. For the purpose of Part XV of the
SFO, each of Mr. TING Man Yi, Mr. TING Hung Yi and Mr. DING lianer is
therefore deemed to have effective voting power in respect of the
1,490,000,000 shares held by Longerview. As such, under the SFO, Mr. DING
Jianer is also deemed to be interested in the 1,490,000,000 shares held by
Longerview.

e
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FEIIBESRBEOTNER -

Firmsuccess Limited ([Firmsuccess]) # A&
Longerview Investments Limited ([ Longerview )
#741.5% © M T BRZ AR 2 E A Firmsuccess ©
Longerview 5 T 8 52 S £ B LR A B (FREH K
HERGIERE) - Bt - BIEZEHF RBEHKR
T 85 5 A BAR fE B A Longerview i A &)
1,490,000,000 & B {3 HO #E 2 ©

In Holdings Limited ([In Holdings]) # A&
Longerview#140.5% + 1 T HREARIZEHEAIN
Holdings © Longerview 4 T 4 /R 5t 4 #) % 12 il 7 B
(REHFLBEGRINRE) Bt BREFEHR
HEARD) - T MRS WA IEE S Longerview 5
#)1,490,000,000 /% & 17 &) 25

IR T 852 58 4 - Firmsuccess * T HE/R B4~ In
Holdings « T # 5 5t 4 » Willport Investments
Limited ([ Willport |) % Longerview (478 & [ 12 3% A%
RNDR-ZZTRF+— A+ N\BIZHRRRGZ

& 2 I% AR 3 (Longerview Bk 41h) B A & 5t i 5 7
Longerview Z IR #ERT BB B ZHF - BLEH R
EIRPIEXVEME  THELEE  THREER
TR % £ % 8 F I #518 /E % A Longerview FT £
1,490,000,000 i {7 &) T B 5 SR 4 - UL - AR AR
BERBERD TEREENRKEFERAS
Longerview#% A £ 1,490,000,000 A& A% 7 & 4 25 °
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(@)
=
=
[V
=
=
«Q
@
) (b) Interests in the shares of associated corporations (b) REBEERGOPIES
©
T
% Name of Approximate percentage
=] associated of interest in the
g Name of Directors corporation Nature of interest Number of shares associated corporation
5 1Ak W
o EEgR MHEEEEE ERME R EE BABEDL
Z
= Mr. TING Man Yi Firmsuccess Personal interest 1 100%
® . v
= THERETE B A#E =
o Longerview Corporate interest 415 (Note 1) 41.5%
o N e Ay N
= EE R (PFEET)
S
- Mr. TING Hung Yi In Holdings Personal interest 1 100%
62 THEREE B A=
Longerview Corporate interest 405 (Note 2) 40.5%
EEER (GE)
Mr. DING lJianer Willport Personal interest 1 100%
TERTAE B A#E =
Longerview Corporate interest 180 (Note 3) 18.0%
EEER (GEE=))
Notes: B 5 -
1 The 415 shares in Longerview are held by Firmsuccess, which is wholly-owned by 1 Firmsuccess$ A Longerview 41508 i& 15 + T 857
Mr. TING Man Yi. %t 4 Al 2 & # B Firmsuccess °
2 The 405 shares in Longerview are held by In Holdings, which is wholly-owned by 2 In Holdings#¥ A Longerview #1405 i A% {5 + T 1R
Mr. TING Hung Yi. S £ Rl EHAIn Holdings °
3 The 180 shares in Longerview are held by Willport, which is wholly-owned by 3 Willport#§ % Longerview £ 180% iR 17 + T & 7 5&

Mr. DING Jianer. A A2 & # A Willport »

BEXFEEEN BE-ZT-_—F+=-A
=+—HB RAQFAA BEESKARD
Bl @ THA B RIEE 2 HEARAR

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2021, to the
knowledge of the Company, none of the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company and any of their associates had or was

deemed to have any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which
had been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 or Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to
have taken under such provisions), or were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register required to
be maintained, or were required, pursuant to the Model Code.

Al R EAREAE (REBS A EGROIE TR
e R ) B E[ M - BRERY K EEE
EF‘ BEEIWBIEREAREES AT ‘7k1§\J
ETRIETREDIMHREDHERR

e 22 PfT B A (o] 4 2 lOK ?(@%*ET)@EZ%%
X%ﬁm?&*?ﬁ%%&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ’ﬂ*L RE)
HREEF LIS EPIE3526 R FRER
NEFE E’]%ﬁ‘nﬂﬁﬁqﬁ'}ﬁcﬂ%mi -1
RIFIRAET AR ERAE AR R B3 Pre
EERSIAE



Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and/or
Short Positions in the Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company

So far as the Directors are aware, as of 31 December 2021, the persons,

other than Directors and chief executive of the Company, having interests

or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company,

which were required to be entered into the register kept by the Company

pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

Name of substantial
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TERRRARARSG REER
DHREENERR HKR

BEERN BHE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—H0 »
RAGIRG RAAEROPHREESIAR - MRE
BHEMEHERIEIBCIEABLRARAEEFEN

BEMAMAL (EFEERAAT
mF -

BR=THAER)

Approximate percentage of

shareholders Capacity Number of shares interest in the Company*

TERRER 54 RGOEE AR RSN DL
(Note 1)
(GE)

Longerview Beneficial owner 1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
EmEAA (Note 2)
(P 5E2)

Firmsuccess Interest of controlled corporation 1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
AR S (Note 2)
(P 5E2)

In Holdings Interest of controlled corporation 1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
A E RS (Note 3)
(PR 5E3)

Willport Interest of controlled corporation 1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
A E RS (Note 4)
(P 5E4)

Notes:

The approximate percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued share capital
of the Company as of 31 December 2021.

The letter “L" stands for the substantial shareholders’ long position in the shares.

Longerview is owned as to 41.5% by Firmsuccess. As such, Longerview is a controlled
corporation (within the meaning of the SFO) of Firmsuccess. Firmsuccess is therefore
deemed to be interested in the 1,490,000,000 shares held by Longerview.

Longerview is owned as to 40.5% by In Holdings. As such, Longerview is a controlled
corporation (within the meaning of the SFO) of In Holdings. In Holdings is therefore
deemed to be interested in the 1,490,000,000 shares held by Longerview.

Pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement dated 18 November 2005 and entered into between
the Controlling Shareholders, each of the Controlling Shareholders (other than
Longerview) has agreed to enter into pre-emptive arrangements in respect of their
shareholding in Longerview. For the purpose of Part XV of the SFO, each of Firmsuccess,
In Holdings and Willport is therefore deemed to have effective voting power in respect of
the 1,490,000,000 shares held by Longerview. As such, Willport is also deemed to be
interested in the 1,490,000,000 shares held by Longerview.

Bt

HAARRSEHOBA L DERAATBE=
A=+—AmoB#ITRAHE -

TZ—F+=

FEMBIERRNBROTHOTE

Firmsuccess# A Longerview#941.5% ° [ it - Longerview
JFirmsuccess 8 4% 5 A @ (1R 3E 5 R BB GO HRE) -
HUIE - Firmsuccess# 1% {F % A Longerview # A £
1,490,000,000 % f% 17 B 4 %5 ©

In Holdings#E 4 Longerview #740.5% = E it + Longerview &
In Holdings i) 5 ¥ % B (327 % K& B E (R0 808 E) - 8
It - In Holdings# % £ # A Longerview# A &
1,490,000,000 % fi% {7 HO 1 25

BRESERBRER-_TTRF+—ATN\BTZHRER
BB RE (LongerviewBR N EREREER
Longerview Z R EFT L BB E LB - ShEF KA E KA
SEXVEBTE  Firmsuccess * In Holdings & Willport& B & it
7 1% {F % 5 Longerview FfT # 1,490,000,000 A% % 15 #) T BR 4%
S o A I - Willport 75 3 18 1E # A Longerview s B £
1,490,000,000 % fi% {7 HO # 25
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Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2021, the Directors were not
aware of any other person or corporation having an interest or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO.

Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’

Interest in Competing Business

As of 31 December 2021, none of the Directors and their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or the controlling shareholders
of the Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a
business, which competes or may compete with the business of the
Group.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the year ended 31 December 2021, appropriate insurance covering
for the Directors’ and senior management’s liabilities arising out of
activities of the Group has been arranged by the Company. As of the

date of this report, such insurance covering remained effective.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries of the Company’s shares during the year ended 31 December
2021.

Model Code for Directors’ Securities

Transaction
Details of compliance by the Directors with the Model Code are set forth
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 34 to 45 of this report.

B EXiEEEN BE—E - —F+-A=1+—
B BEHENBEMNEMATIOEERARFR
0 RARRIR D P B IR IBFE 5 LB IR DI 336 (%
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Etﬁﬁﬁw)*EEHEEE$EI¥FT%EZ§%%&EI§E
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Continuing Connected Transaction

Particulars of Transaction

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group entered into a
(as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 20 December 2019). A supply

contract dated 20 December 2019 was entered into between Hangzhou

non-exempt continuing connected transaction

Huasheng Accessories Company Limited (“Huasheng Accessories”) and
various members of the Group for a period from 1 January 2020 to
31 December 2022, whereby Huasheng Accessories has undertaken to
supply to members of the Group the required plastic bags and hangers at
such prices which are not higher than the prices offered to independent
third parties after taking into consideration the prevailing market rates for
providing similar products from time to time. On 30 September 2021, the
investment in Huasheng Accessories was disposed of by the Group to a
third party. For the nine months ended 30 September 2021, the
aggregate purchase of plastic bags and hangers by the Group from
Huasheng Accessories amounted to HK$1.7 million (for the year ended 31
December 2020: HK$3.1 million) which was below the annual cap of
HK$11.0 million.

Information on Connected Person

Huasheng Accessories

Huasheng Accessories is a company established in the PRC with limited
liability. Huasheng Accessories is owned as to 25% by Hong Kong
Fuhowe Fashion Company Limited and as to 75% by Mr. MO lJiangtao,
who is the brother-in-law of Ms. ZHOU Shi Min. Ms. ZHOU is the spouse
of Mr. DING lJianer, an executive Director, and thus, a connected person
14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules.
Huasheng Accessories is an associate of a connected person of the

as defined under Rule Therefore,

Company pursuant to Rule 1.01 of the Listing Rules.

Confirmations

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above non-
exempt continuing connected transaction of the Group and have
confirmed that these transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties;

(ili)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole; and

(iv)  have not exceeded the respective cap amounts set out in the relevant
agreements referred to above.
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The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 "Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group on page 65 of
this report in accordance with Rules 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Related Parties Transactions

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 20271 are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The purchases of accessories from Huasheng Accessories, being the
significant related party transactions of the Group, constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Group. The disclosure requirements in
respect of these continuing connected transactions have been complied
with in accordance with the Listing Rules. Save for the aforementioned,
other related party transactions as set forth in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements did not constitute connected
transactions/continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held by the
public.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee, comprising three
independent non-executive Directors, and has adopted terms of reference
which are in compliance with the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are to review financial information of the Group, make
recommendation on the external auditor and supervise the financial
reporting process and internal control system of the Group and to
provide comments and advice to the Board. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the audited financial statements of the Company and audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial year
ended 31 December 2021.

ARAZHBECEZREREETEGTMAGHEMZ
BB RBLEAERIE30005% BEFBER 2 EZ
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Auditor

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves

for re-appointment.

The Company’s Position, View and

Assessment on the Qualified Audit Opinion
The auditor has previously qualified their audit opinion in respect of the
Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 due to limitation of scope as they were unable to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence they considered necessary to
assess management’s valuation of the FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran to
determine whether any adjustments were necessary to the balance of the
FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran as at 1 January 2020 of HK$305 million and at
the date of disposal of 30 June 2020 of HK$299 million, respectively. Any
adjustments to the carrying value of FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran as at
1 January 2020 and at the date of disposal could have a significant
consequential effect on the fair value gain of nil, disposal gain of
HK$193 million and exchange loss of HK$6 million recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2020.

Because of the possible effects of this matter on the comparability of the
current year's figures and the corresponding figures for the year ended
31 December 2020 in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
related note disclosures, their audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 is therefore qualified.
The Company has considered the rationale of the auditor of the
Company and understood its consideration in arriving the qualified audit
opinion. Since the qualified audit opinion referring to the corresponding
figures for the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company expected no
such qualified audit opinion will be made in the forthcoming audited
financial statements.
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Report of the Directors
EFEgnE

The Views of the Audit Committee of
the Board on the Qualified Audit Opinion

At the meeting of the Audit Committee of the Board held on 30 March
2022, the independent non-executive Directors, being all members of the
Audit Committee, reviewed the Independent Auditor’'s Report on Audit of
the consolidated financial statements to the Board of Directors of China
Ting Group Holdings Limited covering the year ended 31 December
2021. The Audit Committee noted that the auditor is giving a qualified
audit opinion because of the possible effects on the comparability of the
current year's figures and the corresponding figures for the year ended
31 December 2020 in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
related note disclosures. The Audit Committee understood that except for
the basis of the qualification as mentioned above, nothing has come to
the auditor’s attention that causes the auditor to believe that the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 is not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. On this basis, the
Audit Committee has accepted the Report and agreed with the Company
position.

On Behalf of the Board
TING Man Yi
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022

ESEERZEESHREETNR
RNEZX

EEESEREEeN T _H=-A=+HET
VEF L BUFENTEE(BEZRZES2ENX
B)EMTHESESETERERAPNESTSAEE
BHE-_Z-_—F+_A=+—HLFENGLH
BHREZ BB RS - EREZEFET - &
HEM AR A Z2EARAR RS ER S BR I KGR
MEEBENAFERTHEBEE_S_EF+=A
=T BLEFENHAESTHILEAEZITE
MEXRTREFEZER - BERZBETHY KL
MRBEwmZ AR BT EFZINEAS
B SEREREREE - —F+_A=1+—
AI-FENGEMBRREMEERT AL ERE
EBETMAG ((EESTMAE]) FIBNEEM
TSR 2B AR BB BB R RHEBI A B R T i 4
Bl FERN ERZEBCEDEMZBELRER
NAEIL

REEES
TE
TH#R

BB —EBE-_—_#=A=+—H



Independent Auditor’s Report
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To the Shareholders of China Ting Group Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Qualified Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China Ting Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set
out on pages 78 to 185, comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

J the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

J the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,;
and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our qualified opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects on the corresponding
figures of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section
of our report, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

As discussed in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group held financial asset at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL") in
Zhejiang Haoran Property Company Limited (”Zhejiang Haoran”) up to 30
June 2020 (the "date of disposal”), which represented the Group’s equity
interests in, shareholder’s loans and advances granted to Zhejiang Haoran.
The Group disposed of this FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran to the major
shareholder of Zhejiang Haoran at a consideration of approximately
HK$491 million on 30 June 2020 and recognised a disposal gain of
HK$193 million in the Group's consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2020.

We have previously qualified our audit opinion in respect of the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
due to limitation of scope as we were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence we considered necessary to assess
management’s valuation of the FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran to determine
whether any adjustments were necessary to the balance of the FVPL in
Zhejiang Haoran as at 1 January 2020 of HK$305 million and at the date
of disposal of 30 June 2020 of HK$299 million, respectively. Any
adjustments to the carrying value of FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran as at 1
January 2020 and at the date of disposal could have a significant
consequential effect on the fair value gain of nil, disposal gain of
HK$193 million and exchange loss of HK$6 million recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Because of the possible effects of this matter on the comparability of the
current year’s figures and the corresponding figures for the year ended
31 December 2020 in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
related note disclosures, our audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 is therefore qualified.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.
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Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
o Impairment of trade receivables

o Impairment of inventories

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Key Audit Matter
HRENSRE

Impairment of trade receivables
JEW B 5 8- 50 E
Refer to notes 3.1(d),
financial statements
B2 HERE M EmERMTE3 () -~ 4@) 14

4(a) and 14 to the consolidated

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had gross trade
receivables of HK$423 million and provision for impairment of
trade receivables of HK$116 million.
RZB-Z—F+ZA=+—RH EBE5EHEAEWEIHENRE
FABEBETNERE SEIRERBE1I16AEET -

Provision is made for lifetime expected credit losses on trade
receivables.

BEDREREZIRTNFERRBEEBHEE -

Management applied judgement in assessing the expected
credit losses. Receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on collection of
receivables are assessed individually for provision for
impairment allowance. Expected credit losses are also
estimated by grouping the remaining receivables based on
shared credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for
likelihood of recovery, taking into account the nature of the
customer, its geographical location and its ageing category,
and applying expected credit loss rates to the respective gross
carrying amounts of the receivables.

EIR B TR E B AR HIET - BT AN IR BTSN B
= B R A IER FE O IR ) B B R B R W R IR BB AT (G
SHRRERE - EREEBETRBE S HE HAE SRR
Ar R AT (4 0 AT B ME R FIRR E WK IEAR R EEE P T
B B IR S N ARE KA Bl DA K BT UK IE 00 AR FE BRI A2 RE B
AEBAEEBRERMEEE -

The expected credit loss rates are determined based on
historical credit losses experienced from the past 12 months
and are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information such as macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
RHREEEEXDERBET _HANEENBEEEBEM
BE - WEABRURMEFRAELEEN  fINFETF&EH
JEWFRIRRE NV RSB E = -

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the trade
receivables and the estimation and judgement involved in
determining the expected credit losses allowance of the trade
receivables.
BMEAEWEZERSEEAUREEEEWE SR8 EH
EEBERERSEMG KA MA@ -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN BT NAEEERENER

We understood and validated the credit control procedures
performed by management, including its procedures on periodic
review of aged receivables and assessment on expected credit
losses allowance of receivables.
BMTHREBREEERBUITNEEEGER  FEHLBRTERS
BT E E R R RO B FIE A R EKRIEEREEEE
BENIER -

We obtained management’s impairment assessment on the
receivables relating to customers with known financial
difficulties or with significant doubt on collection. We inquired
and assessed management’s judgment on the recoverability of
those receivables and corroborated and validated management's
assessment taking into account the financial conditions of the
relevant customers.
HMEEGEIRE Y EE ML RN E Sk E A= R
JRE W R I ) %2 = /5 R ) B WBR SR VE W Y RUE RT 1 o RAMTERE %
AT B 1R B 4T 52 55 PR WOIR R 0 AT i (Bl 1 1 R A 2 B - 30 AR
B P B IS AR R B S B B IR B PR AR RT A -

We tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing profile of
trade receivables by checking to the underlying sales invoices.
BM@EZEEREEEZERRARERE S RERE RN ER
1 o

We tested on a sample basis, the subsequent settlement of
trade receivables against bank receipts.

BPERRTEREMEAABREZERNRESEBR -

We obtained management’s assessment on the expected credit
losses allowance of receivables. We corroborated and validated
management’s assessment based on the historical settlement
pattern from the past 12 months, correspondence with the
customers, evidence from external sources including the relevant
public search results relating to the financial circumstances of
the relevant customers and market research regarding the
relevant forward-looking information such as macroeconomic
factors used in management’s assessment.
HMEEGSEREYRKHIEREREEBEBENTE - BN
ERBET _EANBEAERN - BESHBM - BBINERK
RERSER (BREEEBEFVBERAEBOARATER)
REEBENGEMARBEERNZSHABRELEENEBNT
I SRR I B R B IR E PR AT A o

We consider the estimation and judgement made by
management in respect of the expected credit losses allowance
and the collectability of receivables are supportable by the
available evidence.

HMRA - ERERERFENAREEBEEE LA KO
FRYE(E & R HIERRE S LA AT S BB IR VE S 85 ©



Key Audit Matter

BREGEE

Impairment of inventories

FERE

Refer to notes 4(b) and 12 to the consolidated financial
statements
B2B e M mRMEAb) K2

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held net inventories
amounting to HK$998 million. Inventories are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value (“NRV”) in the
consolidated financial statements. The cost of inventories may
not be fully recoverable if they are aged and damaged, or
become obsolete, or if their selling prices have declined.
RZZEZ—F+TZA=+—H BXEFEFEEEINSE
BT - FERE ﬁ?fﬁk#&%ﬂﬁﬂ&ﬁiﬁiéﬁiT“fﬁ@E (MeT#R
FEDZBREEINR -EFEEERE RIE BRHXEET
B AR ERATT R A 2 i E -

Management determined the lower of cost and NRV of
inventories by considering the ageing profile, physical
condition and estimated selling price of individual inventory
items.
EREEEFENRAENSRFENRIEER -
FEEAMNER MR RETEE -

&= B ER

Management calculated the NRV at period end based on the
estimated selling price less selling expenses, taking into
account historical experience of selling products of similar
nature and expectation of future sales based on current
market condition.
ERELERHNERMTEERMBELR IR TR YR
FEHERTE - BB EEREER A ERRN AT EHF
1H -

Management applied a provisioning methodology for slow
moving inventories based on inventory ageing and made
specific provision for long aged inventories. It also conducted
periodic review on inventory obsolescence, including
performance of periodic inventory counts and review of
holding period for individual inventory items.

ERERFRERIBETERRABEN L  LREHRER

‘E"i{’ﬁﬂj%iﬁéﬁ CERENERFERTBRETEHES
BREHENTFERMLEHNENFERENFEH -

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the
balance to the financial position of the Group, and the
significant judgement and estimates involved in determining
the provision for impairment of inventories.

HME BESEEUBRRRBBRAAREEEFERBEEB
W E et LA meE T s m -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMHESNAEERRERTEE

We understood and validated the control procedures performed
by management, including its procedures in estimating the NRV
of the inventories and conducting periodic review on inventory
obsolescence.
BMTHEREFEEREENITHZESNER
REERTHERFEARNIERT

BEAGFENE

We observed management’s inventory counts to identify
whether there is any damaged or obsolete inventories.

E54 Fﬁ“TMIEFD%%T_f}Eﬁ L8 BRI B BB EREER
BEEE -

We assessed the reasonableness of the provision for impairment
of inventories by comparing management’s forecasts of
estimated future utilisation, corroborating explanations with the
inventory ageing, sales orders and marketability of the relevant
finished goods by using our industry knowledge.

HMBALRERBYHGEATE ﬂiXEﬁHTE’ﬁEE‘J BB M
HITENRD  ERERFEELR  HER S RABREENK R EH

e KEHEFE ﬂfﬁ%%ﬂ@éﬁ'l‘io
We tested the mathematical accuracy of the provision for
impairment of inventories made by management.

BV A E R E e R ER BN E MR -

We also tested, on a sample basis, the NRV of selected
inventory items by comparing the selling price subsequent to the
year end against the carrying values of individual finished

goods
HMMARMEST N EETFEEE 2SR FE - £AT
A BB A F AR BB R A RMEE - -

We consider the provision for impairment of inventories as at
31 December 2021 was supportable by available evidence.
HMRR KRB F+ A=+ —BNFEREREER
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section above,
we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about the fair
value of the FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran and the related exchange reserve
balance as at 1 January 2020 and at the date of disposal, the fair value
gain, disposal gain and relevant exchange loss for the year ended 31
December 2020. Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or not
the other information is materially misstated with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

3 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

3 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Chiu Kong, Edmond.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
mEBEEBEXR

g
=
g__)! As at 31 December 2021 RZ-Z-_—F+=-A=+—8
e
()
5
£ 2021 2020
T —E-—fF —ETF
% Note HK$'000 HK$'000
8 Ff 5 FET FHT
[
S
=4 ASSETS BE
o
3§ Non-current assets ERBEE
5 Property, plant and equipment W BERRK 6 328,561 533,320
é Right-of-use assets EREEE 7 174,374 176,457
9 Investment properties TEWE 8 863,436 476,556
= Intangible assets BB E 9 18,175 42,901
S Investments accounted for using FAESEARNEE
- the equity method 11 12,041 1,544
78 Promissory note ZS S 14 16,117 31,949
Deferred income tax assets BREFFEMEE 21 105,940 99,809
1,518,644 1,362,536
Current assets RBEE
Inventories T8 12 998,371 923,289
Trade and other receivables FE WS 5 R AR e H At FE W SR IR 14 678,294 1,080,058
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEINGRERRRPREE
profit or loss (“FVPL") LERMEE 15 7,111 6,248
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAEMEEEAZ
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) TREE 16 9,752 8,640
Promissory note HHER 14 11,991 9,382
Tax recoverable G EE 8,744 6,585
Pledged bank deposits EEPEITFER 17 737 5,193
Fixed deposits TEHTF K 17 — 26,128
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEHBEER 17 752,195 577,172
2,467,195 2,642,695
Assets held for sale FELEEAE 18 — 8,880
2,467,195 2,651,575
Total assets EEHAE 3,985,839 4,014,111

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with L ilt4R& & B 8 & & FE B2 BE P Y 5 — O B9 3E -
the accompanying notes.



As at 31 December 2021

Consolidated Balance Sheet
KEeEEEREBEX

RZF-_—F+=-A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—%F —TZTHF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B FBT FH&ET
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to equity holders ZAATREFHE AEGER
of the Company
Share capital &N 19 209,982 209,982
Reserves #E 20 2,470,863 2,633,364
2,680,845 2,843,346
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR R 33,113 31,169
Total equity AR 2,713,958 2,874,515
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities RBEME
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMGHRAE 21 143,809 114,378
Lease liabilities HEGE 7 15,276 17,026
159,085 131,404
Current liabilities FrEaE
Trade and other payables FET B 2 BR 3R E fth FE A 5018 22 664,668 569,777
Contract liabilities aRAaE 5 54,456 37,794
Lease liabilities HEARE 7 9,898 9,721
Bank borrowings RITER 23 250,976 270,129
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFT ST B & 132,798 120,771
1,112,796 1,008,192
Total liabilities EEAHE 1,271,881 1,139,596
Total equity and liabilities EEkEEBERARE 3,985,839 4,014,111

The financial statements on pages 78 to 185 were approved by the Board
of Directors on 31 March 2022 and were signed on its behalf.

TING Man Yi
TR
Director

EF

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with

the accompanying notes.

B8R ISSEMIMBHMEN T _F=HA=+—
HREFSHE YHATEERAEE -

TING Hung Yi
TR
Director

EF

batiar G B E A AR e SRR I R — OFRIRE -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive

e 2 mHIW AR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZZ

——FtZASt—ALEE

Income

2021 2020
—E=-—F —E-TF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B o FEx FHET
Revenue WA 5 1,609,266 1,542,425
Cost of sales B E A 28 (1,475,386) (1,318,699)
Gross profit EF 133,880 223,726
Other income, net H Al g A58 24 18,129 22,610
Other gains, net Hith Wz 5 58 25 25,557 608,271
Provision for impairment loss of CRIAEREBBEEFE
financial assets, net (13,980) (109,667)
Selling, marketing and distribution costs 4% + 4§ K& 2 A A 28 (212,003) (188,174)
Administrative expenses THHAX 28 (267,125) (259,189)
Operating (loss)/profit B (FR),RA (315,542) 297,577
Finance income AU A 26 9,973 5,127
Finance costs BMERA 26 (2,596) (9,604)
Share of results of investments accounted {5 i FA1E A ABRHIRE
for using the equity method E¥ 11 (4,031) 166
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETEH AT (BE), HER (312,196) 293,266
Income tax expense SR> 27 (19,998) (140,272)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE) BT (332,194) 152,994
Other comprehensive income Hig 2 EH KA
Items that may be reclassified to AR B AR B m A B -
profit or loss:
— Currency translation differences — EMmEERE 79,570 135,947
— Fair value gains on transfers of — BERMEERRENME
owner-occupied properties to N EWNR - MBRTIE
investment properties, net of tax 91,067 49,833
Item that will not be reclassified HETSET A EE B A
subsequently to profit or loss: EH
— Fair value gains/(losses) on FVOCI — BRAVEFAEMEEK
AZ EMBEE 2 A FER
&=/ (f5#E) 1,000 (1,749)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax  HE b2 EUKA » HERFIE 171,637 184,031
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2 (F8) WALHE (160,557) 337,025

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be  Filt4R&

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

2 T A 3R B LR P I 5 — D B AE -



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
g A

For the year ended 31 December 2021

WIN

HE-_Z-_—F+-A=1+—HBLEFE

AT HEEAR

2021 2020
B —F —EFF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
F 5 F#ET FHIT
(Loss)/profit attributable to: DT ALTEEZ (BE)GER
Equity holders of the Company RAFIREREA (333,295) 146,044
Non-controlling interests FE 12 i1 A 2 1,101 6,950
(332,194) 152,994
Total comprehensive (loss)/income UTATEEZ2E (ER)
attributable to: WA
Equity holders of the Company RATRERE A (162,501) 328,823
Non-controlling interests FEAE I 1,944 8,202
(160,557) 337,025
(Loss)/earnings per share for (loss)/ FRAEARREFE AEMNG (&
profit attributable to equity holders B) BAzEk (5B &
of the Company during the year F (A5 R R 0 E AL 2 5)
(expressed in HK cents per share)
— basic — AR 30 (15.87) 6.96
— diluted — #5 30 (15.87) 6.96

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

AR A 2 O SR FE R BER Y R — F B RE o
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Consohdated Statement of Changes in Equity

\/
j[ =

/\\/ \

% B) 1

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-Z-_—F+_A=+—HIEFE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
RARREREAER
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserves  earnings Total interests equity
FeEht
Rax  ROEE HitRE REER @it Bi  ER4E
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
k3 FER FER FET FER FER FEL FER
Balance at 1 January 2021 W=B--%5-A-AH 209,982 978,251 762,749 892,364 2,843,346 31,169 2,874,515
Comprehensive income 2EUA
Loss for the year FREE - - — (333295 (333,295 1,101 (332,194)
Other comprehensive income Hit2EHA
Currency translation differences ERREEE 20 - - 78,721 - 78,721 843 79,570
Fair value gains on FVOCI BRATEFAEM2EKAZ &R 16 - - 1,000 - 1,000 - 1,000
BEZDTEKE
Revaluation surplus upon transfers of owner-occupied BEMEEARENFR 2 EMR - - 91,067 - 91,067 - 91,067
properties to investment properties, net of tax Btk HBHE
Total comprehensive income 2ARABE - — 170,794  (333,295)  (162,501) 1,944 (160,557)
Transaction with owners BREBAZRS
Transfer to statutory reserves BRTETHE - - 30,188 (30,188) - - -
Total transaction with equity holders of the HARARBEEAZRAAE - - 30,188 (30,188) - - -
Company
Balance at 31 December 2021 R-B--£+-f=+-H 209,982 978,251 963,731 528,881 2,680,845 33,113 2,713,958

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

read in L&A
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERZH MK

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE_ZT_—F+_A=+—HBIEFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AREREREAEE
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserves earnings Total interests  Total equity
FEHE

Bx BOEE EbiEE RIEA st #a  EEER
Note  HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000
i TET  TAR  TER  TARL AR TER  TER

Balance at 1 January 2020 R-E-85-f-H 209,982 978,251 527,986 798,304 2,514,523 22,967 2,537,490

Comprehensive income EEUA

Profit for the year EREF - - — U044 146,044 6950 15299

Other comprehensive income/(loss) Et2ERA/ (BB

Currency translation differences ENBEEE 20 — — 134,695 — 134,695 1250 135947

Fair value losses on FVOCI RAFEFAABZARAZER 16 - - (1,749) - (1,749) - (1,749)
EEZATERR

Revaluation surplus upon transfers of owner-occupied BRMEEARENER 2 EfR - - 49,833 - 49,833 — 49,833

properties to investment properties, net of tax

B ABRA

Total comprehensive income 2EUNEE — — 182,779 146,044 328,823 8202 337,025
Transaction with owners BRBEAZRS

Transfer to statutory reserves EREETRE - — 51984 (51,984) — — —
Total transaction with equity holders BARARBEBAZRALE - - 51,984 (51,984) — — —

of the Company

Balance at 31 December 2020

R-B-2F+=-A=1-H

209,982 978,251 762,749 892,364 2,843,346 31,169 2,874,515

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in b ilt4R & 2k & B) R 5% e CARERT B 5 — GFRIE -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

I\‘/\ Eﬁ/ \/ ;}ili = i&%

(@)
=
]
= For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T-—F+-A=+—HILFE
@
()
e 2021 2020
< —g--F —E-THF
o Note HK$°000 HK$'000
s B o FER FET
«Q
(2]
. Cash flows from operating activities ®EZFEHRESHE
3 Net cash used in operations KEARS FE 31(a) (132,735) (93,856)
o Interest paid [EENEAESA (2,596) (9,604)
> Income tax paid BB (20,483) (7,385)
=
é Net cash used in operating activities EEEYMARS TR (155,814) (110,845)
é? Cash flows from investing activities RETHRLRE
g Purchases of property, plant and BEWE BERZE
) equipment (138,495) (162,232)
ga Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYZE - BRE REESHIE
plant and equipment 31(b) 17,152 2,321
84 Compensation from expropriation of T RMEHAHES
land and properties 31(c) 305,432 189,202
Purchases of intangible assets BEELEE — (15,758)
Purchases of FVOCI BERATEFAEMEZE
WAZEREE — (1,267)
Purchases of investments accounted for ~ FBEFERAEREAKRNRE
using the equity method (14,528) —
Repayment of promissory note BEALEE 18,564 —
Repayment of entrusted loan EELZTER — 5,643
Proceeds from disposal of FVPL in HE RIS AR A T ES)
Zhejiang Haoran REERRTRE eMEE
B P15 5R0R 15 118,765 376,723
Proceeds from disposal of an associate HeE— %Hﬁ"M"TFﬁ?ﬁE‘%’\IE 8,425 —
Decrease/(increase) in fixed deposits with ¥4 HAR 28 =@ B = & Hi
initial term of over three months FRORD,/ (&) 26,128 (16,108)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits B AFFOR L, (35 ) 4,456 (378)
Interest received 2 YA E 5,599 3,334
Net cash generated from investing BEFZEFBESFE
activities 351,498 381,480
Cash flows from financing activities METBHRERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIEHR A RIE 158,763 480,453
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITHER (179,533) (639,425)
Lease payments AERK (12,443) (13,138)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEE TR %8 31(d) (33,213) (172,110)
Net increase in cash and RERRESHEBEENFR
cash equivalents 162,471 98,525
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January WK—A—AZRE&IRESFE
HH 577,172 455,596
Exchange difference FE W ZE 12,552 23,051
Cash and cash equivalents at R+ZA=+—HZzHR& K
31 December Re%EER 17 752,195 577,172

AR A IR S 2 3R A SR R MY P R — R -

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General information

China Ting Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 31 May 2005 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law
(Cap. 22, Law 3 of 1961, as combined and revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s registered office is
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
engaged in manufacturing and sales of garments and property
investment.

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 15 December 2005 (the “Listing”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

Summary of significant accounting

policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong). They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of FVPL, FVOCI and investment properties,
which are carried at fair value and assets held for sale which
are carried at fair value less cost to sell.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAE BT R R M R

EXRSTBEME (&)

2 Summary of significant accounting 2
policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 B EZE(E)

(a) FEEEHZEEERINEET
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(a) Amendments to existing standards adopted

by the Group

The following amendments to existing standards have
been adopted by the Group for the first time for the
financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2021:

Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, Reform — Phase 2
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The adoption of these amendments to existing
standards did not result in any substantial change to
the Group’s accounting policies. The amendments to
existing standards listed above did not have any
significant impact on the amounts recognised in prior
years and are not expected to significantly affect the
current or future years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BmEKNE
2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EAREHHEME (&)
policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 mEEZE(E)

(b) The following new standard, amendments to existing (b) BATERTZER] - IRBERIME
standards and annual improvements have been issued, IR RFEICED M - BR
but are not effective for the financial year beginning R —F—F—ARBNE
on 1 January 2021 and have not been early adopted: BFEE W RER - INERBTER

i
Effective for RUAT RS
accounting periods A {3} -pd
beginning on or after FEHREN
HKFRS 16 (Amendments)  Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions 1 April 2021 EEMBRLENS 68 —T--FXA=tHE 3%
beyond 30 June 2021 (B31%) WHEEEEERS MA—H
e
Amendments to Annual  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 1 January 2022 ERMEER (BiTA)  ARUBHREEN-Z k- S
Improvements Project 2018-2020 -N\FE-2°%% -A-8
LEEUE
Amendments to HKFRS 3, Narrow-scope amendments 1 January 2022 BRRMBREENEN . JEEET kS
HKAS 16 and HKAS 37 BEGHENZ 16N -A-H
BREGHENER
(BHTE)
Revised Accounting Merger Accounting for Common 1 January 2022 BRI ESHE  AREHAKHAGEH “BCCE
Guideline 5 Control Combinations RE -A-A
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as 1 January 2023 EREIENE R BEPBARDAERY ity
Current or Non-current (B3T%) -A-H
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023 ERUBHREENETS RRAD —E-=
=
Hong Kong Interpretation  Presentation of Financial 1 January 2023 %}%?E%Sﬂ@ BIBRREN — A i
5 (2020) Statements — Classification by (ZZ-%f) HERRELERR -A-H
the Borrower of a Term Loan FHTHEERNAE
that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023 ERAGHEAZINRER SRURRE ZTCEF
and HKFRS Practice HEREENERRS -A-H
Statement 2 F25 (BIE)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023 BAEGHER 8% SHEHNES ZZC=E
(B3TE) -A-H
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax related to assets and 1 January 2023 BRGIEAE R HE-RHEENEER Z%z=
liabilities arising from a single (B3TE) AERENEERE -A-8
transaction
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets To be determined ERUBREENE0 REEREABEARLS BE
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its REREHEAZNE  ERECHLERE
Associate or Joint Venture NEE
None of the above new standard, amendments to U ET R BAEERIMISET AR RFE W
existing standards and annual improvements is HEERTEUAEEGEVBRREEEXN
expected to have a significant effect on the 2

consolidated financial statements of the Group.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAE BT R R M R
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£ 2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EREBHEHEHME (&)

z policies (Continued)

:

2 2.2 Principle of consolidation and equity accounting 22 HFEREREZEARNEREA

S

g (a) Subsidiaries (a) HEARE

> Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured MEARIEASEHEEGE

3 entities) over which the Group has control. The Group HEZMEEE(REEBE

s controls an entity where the Group is exposed to, or B BASEmE AR H

3 has rights to, variable returns from its involvement S HEEFEMmMG TSR &LE

8 with the entity and has the ability to affect those BEETERESH 2 ENME

g; returns through its power to direct the activities of BN EZERR  AIAER

o the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the HERBEENE - WBQA
date on which control is transferred to the Group. miEflEEETAERE AR

88 They are deconsolidated from the date that control 2EGAERE - W EHIRER
ceases. IEERFIEGFEAEKRE ©
Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised SERNRARFEZARRRS
gains on transactions between group companies are HEHRER G 2 REBWZEE T
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless NEHE - REREBETSE
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of W MEERBRERRSTIE
the transferred asset. Accounting policies of FEAELBRAERIBRI - B
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to NAIZ BT BERDRBEED
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the BE - DARRERE BTN
Group. Z BT
The acquisition method of accounting is used to W EARNE R EENE
account for business combinations by the Group. BEMETEERE -
Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of BB 2 I SE 48 I b 2 R B 3F
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated ZHl RS B EBEREE R
statement of comprehensive income, statement of HBAR EmZEHRERE
changes in equity and balance sheet respectively. EBERANIR -

(b) Associates (b) BELNF
Associates are all entities over which the Group has BENTEASENERESE
significant influence but not control or joint control. SO BN A 1 il i sk
This is generally the case where the Group holds HREAZEHENMBEELRE - K&
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. E—MFHEE20% E50% K%
Investments in associates are accounted for using the ER-RBERRZRENY
equity method of accounting (see (d) below), after BRAERE A EREFAA
initially being recognised at cost. 8k (R TFx(d)) »
(c) Joint arrangements ) BEZH

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments in BEEBHERELERE 115
joint arrangements are classified as either joint ERERH RELETHMRA
operations or joint ventures. The classification depends DEAHRAKLENELENF -
on the contractual rights and obligations of each DERTEREAEZENER
investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint LEEME MIFEEGELHEZ

arrangement. SRR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Principle of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

(9]

(d)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint
ventures. Interests in joint ventures are accounted for
using the equity method (see (d) below), after initially
being recognised at cost in the consolidated balance
sheet.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in
profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements in
other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or
receivable from associates and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of
the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in
the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group. The carrying amount of
equity-accounted investments is tested for impairment
in accordance with the policy described in Note 2.10.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Principle of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

(e)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised
in a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value with the change in carrying amount recognised
in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.3

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred,
3 liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business;

3 equity interests issued by the Group;

3 fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement; and

3 fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest's proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:

J consideration transferred;

3 amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity; and

3 acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity

interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.3

24

2.5

Business combinations (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate,
being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as
a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’'s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee's net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The executive directors, who assess the
financial performance and position of the group and makes
strategic decisions, has been identified as being the chief
operating decision maker.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.6

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
HK$, which is the Company’s presentation currency.
The functional currency of the Company is United
States dollars (“US$").

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in
profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they
relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying
net investment hedges or are attributable to part of
the net investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, within finance
costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a net basis within other
gains, net.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets such as
equities classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EREBHEHEHME (&)
policies (Continued)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 26 EBE(E)
(c) Group companies ) EEFAQF
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The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign
entities, and of borrowings and other financial
instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment are
repaid, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss
on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated
at the closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.7

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, except for construction in
progress, are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to

allocate their cost or revalued amounts, net of their residual

values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 20-40 years or shorter of
remaining useful life

Leasehold improvements 5 years

Plant and machinery 5-10 years

Vehicles 3-10 years

Furniture, fittings and 5-10 years
equipment

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit
or loss.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation and is
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Cost
includes the costs of construction of buildings, costs of plant
and machinery, and borrowing costs arising from borrowings
used to finance these assets during the year of construction
or installation and testing. No provision for depreciation is
made on construction in progress until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and ready for intended use.
When the assets concerned are brought into use, the costs
are transferred to respective property, plant and equipment
and depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated
above.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the
Group’s entities,
Investment property is initially measured at cost, including

is classified as investment property.

related transaction costs. Subsequently, they are carried at
fair value. Changes in fair values are presented in profit or
loss as part of “other gains, net”.

Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity, and acquisition-date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquired entity over
the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9

Intangible assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

Goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose. The
units or groups of units are identified at the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating
segments.

Trademarks

Trademarks are shown at historical cost. They have a
finite useful life and are subsequently carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
the cost of trademarks over their estimated useful lives
of 10 years.

Customer relationships
Customer relationships acquired
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and are
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the expected life of the
customer relationship of 10 years.

in a business

Supply rights

Supply rights represent the rights to sell pre-
determined amount of garments to customers over
certain periods of time pursuant to the legal binding
agreements entered into between the Group and the
customers. Supply rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Supply rights are amortised over the unexpired periods
of the agreements.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets
(cash-generating units). assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for

Non-financial

possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is
considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell,
except for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising
from employee benefits, financial assets and investment
property that are carried at fair value and contractual rights
under insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from
this requirement.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a
disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised while they
are classified as held for sale. Interest and other expenses
attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group classified as
held for sale continue to be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets
of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented
separately from the other assets in the balance sheet. The
liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale are
presented separately from other liabilities in the balance
sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.12 Financial assets

(a)

(b)

()

Classification
The Group classifies
following measurement categories:

its financial assets in the

— those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income or
through profit or loss), and

— those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAE BT R R M R

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.12 Financial assets

©

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are two measurement categories into
which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

— Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

— FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.12 Financial assets

()

(d)

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

there s

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see Note 3.1(d) for
further details.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.13

2.14

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the balance sheet where the Company has a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts,
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty. The Group has no offsetting
arrangement of financial instruments.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted-average
method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade receivables is expected in one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and

consideration that is unconditional

therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. See Note 14 for further
information about the Group’s accounting for trade
receivables and Note 3.1(d) for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.16

2.17

2.18

2.19

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented
as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12
months after the reporting period. They are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.20 Borrowing costs

2.21

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and considers whether it is probable
that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either
based on the most likely amount or the expected
value, depending on which method provides a better
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss
and does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
property that is measured at fair value is determined
assuming the property will be recovered entirely
through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred tax
relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

balances
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAE BT R R M R

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

2.22 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations

The Group participates in a number of defined
contribution plans in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC"), the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds.
The pension plans are generally funded by payments
from employees and the relevant Group's entities. The
Group pays contributions to the pension plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis which are
calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to
make further payments once the required
contributions have been paid, even if the plans do not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior
years.

The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due and are not reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave
the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(9]

(d)

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments. The
Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of options granted
is recognised as an employee benefits expense with a
corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted, including any market
performance conditions (for example the entity’s share
price), excluding the impact of any service and non
-market performance vesting conditions (for example
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period),
and including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example the requirement for employees
to save or hold shares for a specific period of time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest
based on the non-market vesting and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited directly to equity.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.23

2.24

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that
outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management'’s best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of goods and services in
the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is

shown net of value-added tax (“VAT"),

returns and

discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

(a)

Sales of goods — OEM garment sales

Sales are recognised when control of the garment has
transferred, being when the goods are delivered to
the customer, the customer has full discretion over the
goods and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customer’'s acceptance of the goods.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped
to the specified location, the risks of obsolescence
and loss have been transferred to customer, and
either customer has accepted the products in
accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance
provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective
evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied.

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the
price specified in the contract, net of the estimated
volume discounts. Accumulated experience is used to
estimate and provide for the discounts, using the
expected value method, and revenue is only
recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that
a significant reversal will not occur. A refund liability
(included in trade and other payables) is recognised
for expected volume discounts payable to customers
in relation to sales made until the end of the
reporting period. No element of financing is deemed
present as the sales are made with credit terms that
are consistent with market practice. The Group’s
obligation to provide a refund for faulty products
under the standard warranty terms is recognised as a
provision.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

REMBHRERWE

REFBERME (&)

2.25 AR
WA AEBEER TS 2 EHiBIE
R EEYRIRG Y SRR B
ZAFE - WA TR IZER - RE
eI R A E BN E B IR ©

(a)

HERY — RRBERER
THE
BRKE RS RERE (B8R
ERNTERF BFPHER
BEEERE BMEYER
PEMNERHNRBITEER)
AIMEREHE - BEMEXTE
THEHBEIMNNETK - ER
PERBIHEEAAEMNER X
%%ﬁ%a%@ AAREEE
BRBAMBEMNZRES
E%EXE# EmRE AR RIE
K2 B\ B 8 % PR o

ZEHENRATIER AL
ERER - RHNBREERT
RHER - AR AFARIEH LK
BEBEEEEGT TR
FTIREE - BRAERERE
Bl R K AT RE N & E AR TE R -
HEREHR  BRHAETP
e B8 8 & 2 eV T RS R
BRBEGIAENESERERK
HipERFIE) - REEZE
ERFAaTHEN  SXTF
ERERZ - AKERERS
NRBEERRHERNEFE
WHER R

FEME KRN BREX
ARG - JEYRIATT ]
SR REZEBFIAER
iy R HERS B R B HA PR A -




o
=
=1
o
=
=
Q@
(0}
=
o
c
o°
a5
o
=
=
Q@
7}
C
3
=
®
o
>
=1
=
c
o
By)
@
e}
<)
=
N
o
S
=

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAE BT R R M R

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

Sales of goods — OEM garment sales
(Continued)

If the services rendered or products delivered by the
Group exceed the payments made by the counter
parties, a contract asset is recognised. If the payments
exceed the services rendered or products delivered, a
contract liability is recognised.

Sales of goods — retailing of branded
fashion apparel

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity
sells a product to the customer. Retail sales are in
cash or by credit cards or collected by department
stores on behalf of the Group. The recorded revenue
includes credit card fees payable for the transaction.
Such credit card fees are included in selling,
marketing and distribution costs. It is the Group's
policy to sell its products to the end customer with a
right of return. Accumulated experience is used to
estimate and provide for such returns at the time of
sale. Because the number of goods returned has been
steady for years, it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur. The validity of this assumption and the
estimated amount of returns are reassessed at each
reporting date.

Commission income
Commission income is recognised over the period
when the services are rendered.

Rental income

Rental income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any contracts
where the period between the transfer of the
promised goods or services to the customer and
payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a
consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the
transaction prices for the time value of money.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A VB REMFE

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EAREHHEME (&)
policies (Continued)

2.26 Leases 2.26 HE

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

3 the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;
and

3 any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.26

2.27

2.28

2.29

Leases (Continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets mainly
comprise IT equipment and small items of office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the
reporting period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchases of property,
plant and equipment are deducted from the carrying amount
of the relevant assets. Such grant is recognised in the profit
or loss over the life of the depreciable asset as a reduced
depreciation expense.

Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the
effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

Interest income from FVPL is included in the net fair value
gains or losses on these assets as part of “other gains, net”
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Interest income from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes is presented as “finance income”
where it is earned. Any other interest income is included in
“other income”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.30 Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

o the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares;

3 by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.

(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account:

3 the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and

3 the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3 Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk, cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk,
concentration risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the
PRC. Sales are made to overseas customers as well as
the customers in the PRC while purchases are mainly
from suppliers in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
functional currencies of the Group’s entities in Hong
Kong and the PRC are US$ and Renminbi (“RMB"),
respectively.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Foreign exchange risks arise on monetary assets and
liabilities being denominated in a currency that is not
the functional currency. The Group's entities in the
PRC have monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in US$, which is not their functional currencies. The
Group does not speculate on foreign currencies.

At 31 December 2021, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% (2020: 5%) against the US$ with
all other variables held constant, results for the year
and equity holders’ equity would have been
approximately HK$7,633,000 (2020: HK$4,321,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
losses/gains on translation of US$ denominated
monetary assets and liabilities held by the Group's
entities in the PRC.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
because certain listed securities held by the Group are
classified in the consolidated balance sheet as FVPL
and FVOCI. Result for the year and equity holders’
equity would increase/decrease as a result of gains/

losses on listed securities classified as FVPL and
FVOCI.
At 31 December 2021, if there had been a 5%

(2020: 5%) increase/decrease in the market value of
FVPL with all other variables held constant, the
Group's result for the year would have been
approximately HK$356,000 (2020: HK$312,000)
higher/lower.

At 31 December 2021, if there had been a 5%
(2020: 5%) increase/decrease in the market value of
FVOCI with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s equity would have been approximately
HK$331,000 (2020: HK$609,000) higher/lower.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

()

(d)

Price risk (Continued)
The Group has not entered into derivatives to manage
such exposures.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates except for bank deposits, as most of the
interest-bearing assets including promissory notes and
The Group's

rates

loan receivables are at fixed rate.
exposure to changes in interest is mainly
attributable to its bank deposits and borrowings. Bank
deposits and borrowings at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. Borrowings at
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. The interest rates of the Group’s bank deposits
and the rates and terms of the Group’s borrowings
are disclosed in Notes 17 and 23 to the consolidated

financial statements, respectively.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2021, if interest rates had been
increased/decreased by one percentage point (2020:
one percentage point) with all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s result for the year would
have been HK$1,879,000 (2020: HK$1,659,000)
lower/higher and HK$6,287,000 (2020:
HK$5,081,000) higher/lower, respectively, resulting
from the change in the interest expense on bank
borrowings and interest income on bank deposits.

Credit risk

() Risk management
The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation
to its cash and bank balances, promissory notes
and trade and other receivables (except for
prepayments). The Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk is the carrying amounts of these
financial assets.
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REMBHRRME

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Risk management (Continued)

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products are made to customers with
an appropriate credit history. OEM garment
sales to large or long-established customers
with good repayment history comprise a
significant proportion of the total Group’s OEM
garment sales. The Group also has policies on
granting different settlement methods to
different customers to monitor the credit
exposure. Letters of credit are normally required
from new customers and existing customers
with short trading history for settlement
purposes. Sales to retail customers are made in
cash, via credit cards, through online payment
service providers or collected by department
stores/online retailers on behalf of the Group.
The Group's historical experience in collection
of trade and other receivables falls within the
recorded allowances. At 31 December 2021,
trade and bill receivables amounted to
approximately HK$423,231,000 (2020:
HK$425,172,000) were due from companies
operating under international and domestically
well-known brand retailers and PRC department
stores. Loss allowances of HK$115,680,000
(2020: HK$99,859,000) has been provided for
such trade and bill receivables as at 31
December 2021.

The Group has policies to place its cash and
bank balances only with major financial
institutions with good reputation and does not
expect any losses from non-performance by
these financial institutions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

(7ir)

Security
For certain trade receivables the Group may
obtain security in the form of letters of credit
which can be called upon if the counterparty is
in default.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets
that are subject to the expected credit loss
model:

— Trade receivables

— Other financial assets at amortised costs

While cash and bank balances are also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9,
the identified impairment loss is immaterial.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables, except for those
individually significant trade receivables or trade
receivables at default which are tested
individually.

Measurement of expected credit loss on
individual basis

Trade receivables relating to customers with
known financial difficulties or significant doubt
on collection of receivables are assessed
individually for provision for impairment
allowance. As at 31 December 2021, the
balances of such individually assessed trade
receivables and the loss allowance in respect of
these receivables are HK$104,882,000 (2020:
HK$68,000,000) and HK$72,411,000 (2020:
HK$32,907,000), respectively.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HXBERERE(E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B¥XERBREE(E)
(d) Credit risk (Continued) (d) EFEEE (&)
(iii)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) EEEEmE (E)
Trade receivables (Continued) W E 5 B (1)
Measurement of expected credit loss on %ﬁ§+i BRI
collective basis TE .
RITETEHEERBE

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
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AEBEREEBENE
B RS E & m B 8
HEWE S RFETD

4 b4 A
payment profiles of sales over a period of 12 e ﬁi@i%ﬂ_ﬁ%ﬁf
months before 30 June 2021 or 2020, T%\J;A_?__iﬁ:
respectively, and the corresponding historical FFERA=THA

receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
The expected loss rates are based on the

credit losses experienced within this period. The lf:ﬁ %Fﬁﬁf«]%%%ﬁ‘ﬁ
historical loss rates are further adjusted to i E’RM&EQ%F Wﬁf
EHHEELEER

reflect current and forward-looking information

B-ELBERgE—
FEHAE AR
BEPHBHARYG AIE
N EBERERENE
AR ATHEIEE L -

on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.

. - =
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 1RO E R - =
December 2021 was determined as follows for _¢+%ﬂ + E
trade receivables: B 5t R 5 B 5
T EERE
Up to 31 to 61 to 91 to Over
30 days 60 days 90 days 120 days 120 days Total
30K A 31Z60K 61Z90K 91£120K 120K A £ @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FER FER FER FER FER
At 31 December 2021 R-ZB-—-%+=-A=+-8
Expected loss rate TEHEE X 1.4% 2.4% 3.6% 21.2% 57.7%
Gross carrying amount REESE 133,815 61,159 29,621 41,953 51,801 318,349
Loss allowance EERE 1,922 1,480 1,061 8,899 29,907 43,269
Up to 31 to 61 to 91 to Over
30 days 60 days 90 days 120 days 120 days Total
30K AR 31E60K 61290k 91E120K 120K A £ Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FET FHET FET
At 31 December 2020 R-B-EH+ZA=+-H
Expected loss rate TEH R R 2.4% 2.6% 8.4% 24.7% 69.0%
Gross carrying amount REESRE 167,369 40,278 33,078 48,061 68,386 357,172

Loss allowance BEEE 4,063 1,028 2,790 11,864 47,207 66,952
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss on
collective basis (Continued)

Trade receivables are written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent

amounts previously written off are credited

recoveries of

against the same line item. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, trade receivables
amounting to HK$29,002,000 have been
directly written off and trade receivables
previously provided for amounting to

HK$15,035,000 have been written off.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
promissory note and other receivables (except
for prepayments).
credit quality of the counterparties, taking into

Management assesses the
account the historical risk of default and
capacity to meet
obligations in the near term.

its contractual cash flow

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
into a debt
arrangement with the issuer of the promissory

Group entered restructuring
note to rearrange the settlement of such
debtor’s
promissory note (See Note 9 for more details).
An impairment loss of HK$29,656,000 has been
such debt

certain trade receivables and

provided for as a result of

restructuring.

3

REMBHRERWE

Bt 3 BB B 1R (AR
B B B R 3 ()

3.1

(d) FEFERERE(E)

(i)

=M A E R E (E)
FEWE 5 R ()

HEAF=EHEER
B (E)
& 4 A 12 U [0] T8 HA BF I
SHIEWE SR - FEUR
B ERNBEBER
KERFMANZY ARE
B EF R - SoRTE WS
Z&REEBWKE AIET A
HAKERN -BEZZ
—ZEF¥+=ZRA=+—H
FFEE - &8 A
29,002,000 JT K fiE 48
SRR E EEME
i %5 Bl B 5T IR B R A9 B
I & 5 8k 5%15,035,000
T INE MY o

REESHA ARSI BR 2 B
& B EE
TR SR B BR 2 B
SPREEBEALER
K E A fE WK TE (TR
THERIN) - BERELEE
FEREORR KITERA
MEAEHNRERERT
ERSHFH
EEHEX-

HE-Z=-ZF+=A
=+t—BLFE K&
H A BB EIT AET
VEBEALTHE UE
HRHZBEBAZET
ERE SRR KA E
BOEE (ELFBRM

o) Ot EBEAR
HoROR B B B

29,656,000/ 7T °
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3

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

(iii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost
(Continued)

Deposit and other receivables of HK$1,117,000
has been fully impaired as at 31 December
2021.

As at 31
impairment

December 2021, a reversal of

loss of HK$966,000 (2020:
provision for impairment loss of HK$4,807,000)
has been provided for the revised non-interest
bearing promissory note.

Also, the amount due from a joint venture of
HK$3,265,000 (2020: HK$3,910,000) has been
fully impaired as at 31 December 2021 (See
Note 14 for more details).

as at 31
the Group’s other financial

Other than mentioned above,
December 2021
assets at amortised cost are considered to be of
low credit risk primarily because historically they
had no history of default and the debtors had
a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term (2020: Same).
No impairment losses are provided for such
financial assets as at 31 December 2021 as the
impairment losses are considered immaterial
(2020: Same).

3

BB ERERE ()

B b R & ()

3.1

(d) fFEmEE (&)

(i)

M EER R E ()

HE AR 2 B
temEE(B&)
WZEZ—%F+=A
=t+—B ®E&kHEM
FEUFRIE 1,117,000 7T
ERERE -

WZZEZ—F+=A
=t+—B8 EREET
T B R
1B /&5 18 # [81966,000/8
TL(ZEZFF  BEE
1B#1%4,807,000787T) °

AN Bl —EE A A
A 3T 3,265,000 7T
(Z % = T &
3,910,000 L) A = F
——%+=ZA=+—H
BEEERE(EZHS
MiEE14) o

LA ERTaiE SN - A
F_F+ZA=1—
A - AN B AR
FlBR 7 Hib & B & EW
REBEEERR  *
ERARBEREITE
BN AEBAES
SRR RE N im B E AL H
RNNENEEREST
(ZZE=ZZF :MRA) -
WZZEZ—F+=A
=+—B FREEE
WAE AT EMY R
BRZESRMEETIR
BEBERE(ZE=F
F MR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A VB REMFE

3  Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HBERERE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HIBEREBREZR(HE)

(d) Credit risk (Continued) (d) =EERE (&)

(iv) FVPL (iv) LR FEIKERZ
KABEZ 2 EE

The entity is also exposed to credit risk in BERITRZAFEIE
relation to investments that are measured at EERRTEEB 2 KRA

FVPL. The maximum exposure at the end of the nEEREERRE - RN W

SHRNZ KRR %

reporting period is the carrying amounts of

(e)

these investments. LREMKREE -
The total loss allowance for the financial assets FARERMEERAL
recognised during the year is as below: BREEBRENT
2021 2020
—B=—F T FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FET
Provision for impairment loss of & 5 & U B B B /&5 18
trade receivables B 14,474 71,294
(Reversal of)/provision for HH R (EE B
impairment loss of (BeEl),
promissory note (966) 4,807
(Reversal of)/provision for B —REE & QAR
impairment loss of amount HREEE (ER),
due from a joint venture e (645) 3,910
Provision for impairment loss of &7% 2 485 (A & 18 &
debt restructuring 29,656
Provision for impairment loss of 1% & K& E b & Uk 7118
deposit and other receivables 5 1B &5 18 7 & 1,117 —
13,980 109,667

Concentration risk

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group’s sales to the top 5 customers who are
international well-known brand retailers accounted for
approximately 23.8% (2020: 27.5%) of the total
revenue. long-term
relationship with reputable customers in the expansion
of its business.

The Group aims to maintain

(e) HEHEE

HE—

FoFFTZA=1—

HIEFE AEERMAAEFR
(WAEBEBRMNEREZER)Z
HERBIHAIAL23.8% (=&
ZTF 1 275%) c AEE AR
RER BB ER T
BEZREBRF-
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@
()
g 3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HXBERERE(E)
T
% 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 H¥EAEREZR(HE)
>
«Q
; (f)  Liquidity risk () mEELERE
3 Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining MEBECRREBEEE  ©K
g sufficient cash and the availability of funding through SEEFRARE RBERT
> an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. REAZEERMENFES -
é The Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by REEz BRTEBRBIRG
Q:—; keeping committed credit lines available. EHRBEERE #FEEAeCE
C‘g V& o
S The Group's primary cash requirements have been for REEFZHRSFRLIDANK
= purchases of materials, machinery and equipment and BEM R - MR R SR A R A
payments of employee benefit expenses. The Group BERAMAX - REBELALE
122 finances its working capital requirements through a XBRBITEFAEEREN
combination of funds generated from operations and HEB@AeFZ K - AEHEE
bank loans. The Group generally operates with a Ee—mREHRH -
working capital surplus.
As at 31 December 2021, except for the lease RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—
liabilities and term loans as shown in the table below, H BRTITEATZEEABER
all the Group’s contractual obligations mature within EHETIN AEBRMAEELN
1 year. BEHER —FREE -
The following table summarises the maturity analysis THRBM—IBEE R B
of a term loan with a repayment on demand clause Aol ERABREERER
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the &R DIRBER MRS 2
loan agreement. The amounts include interest MEERKHEEME - ©EE
payments computed using contractual rates. Taking BEERGHMEFE 2RISR
into account the Group’s financial position, the Ko KERAER 2 BN
directors do not consider that it was probable that the Ao BEBRARITETAEETT
bank would exercise its discretion to demand {0 H B 15 e LA Z SR BB (542 o
immediate repayment. The directors believe that such EEHEEZEHERERES
term loan will be repaid in accordance with the A =R S E
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan FLAEE -
agreements.
Within Between Between Over
1year 1and2years 2 and5 years 5 years Total
—FR —E@ME —ERE BBREF Eoby
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FER FTER FET FER FTER
At 31 December 2021 R=F2=-%+=-A=t+-H
Bank borrowings RITER 231,338 8,905 4,238 14,617 259,098
Lease liabilities HEAE 10,536 6,876 8,999 — 26,411
241,874 15,781 13,237 14,617 285,509
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REMBHRERWE

3  Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HBERERE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HERAKREZE(E)
(f) Liquidity risk (Continued) () HEELEE (&)
Within Between Between Over
1year 1and2vyears 2 and?5 years 5 years Total
—FR —ZWF —ERE BBAF wat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHERT FET FET FHERT
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-ZE+-A=+—-8H
Bank borrowings RITRER 182,847 29,673 54,070 15,782 282,372
Lease liabilities HEEE 10,403 5,788 10,434 1,696 28,321
193,250 35,461 64,504 17,478 310,693
3.2 Capital risk management 32 BXERER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or increase debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt to
equity ratio. This ratio is calculated as bank borrowings of
approximately HK$250,976,000 (2020: HK$270,129,000)
divided by total equity of HK$2,713,958,000 (2020:
HK$2,874,515,000). The ratios as at 31 December 2021
and 2020 are 9.2% and 9.4%, respectively.

AEBERERA BERRERAEH
BENSEEELE 2N #UR
s BR 75 20 0 g e A LA R s AR R B
M A REFEEZENRE
T EERKA - BERFHHRE
AR AEEFTHEN FRE 2K
SEBFHHE  AEREDMEARN
BATH A IE DA -

AEEUBEH B RERER -
2 ALK ZE TR IITERYD
250,976,000 L (=T =T 4F :
270,129,000 70 ) B LA 2= 42 58
2,713,958,000 L (Z T =T F :
2,874,515,0008 L)t H - R =&
TR ZETF+-_RA=+—H
ZHEDRE9.2%%9.4% °
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3

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

(i)

3

BERERERE (&)
3.3 AFEMGE

Fair value hierarchy (i) RFEER
This section explains the judgements and estimates 7N ED ) A TE R B S R AR
made in determining the fair values of the financial AFEBRREFEZEMIA
instruments that are recognised and measured at fair B A B B P4 2 B R A A o
value in the financial statements. To provide an BEHEBEEATEMAH AR
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in BOAEEEESR  AEER
determining fair value, the Group has classified its BestEABEERTIADR
financial instruments into the three levels prescribed —EER - SEBZHAWT
under the accounting standards. An explanation of KR ©
each level follows underneath the table.
R-B=-—F
At 31 December 2021 +=B=+-—H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
&5l # Bl2 & B3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FEx FEx
Assets BE
FVPL BAFEIRERAER
PEREEBEZEREE
— Listed equity securities — ETRAES 7,111 — —
FVOC| BAFESARELEE
WAZ &mEE
— Listed equity securities — ETRAES 6,611 — —
— Unlisted equity securities — ELETRAFS — — 3,141
13,722 — 3,141
R-ZZE_THF
At 31 December 2020 +=ZA=+—H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
FEIIN 2 #5I3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Assets BE
FVPL BRTEIRERER
PEREZEHEE
— Listed equity securities — ETRARES 6,248 — —
FVOCI BATEFAEMLEZR
WAz @REE
— Listed equity securities — ETRARES 7,297 — —
— Unlisted equity securities — FLETRAES — — 1,343
13,545 — 1,343
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3
during the year (2020: Same).

See Notes 8 and 9 for disclosure of the investment
properties and intangible assets that were measured
at fair value.
Level 1 The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets (such as publicly
traded derivatives and equity securities) is
based on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period.

Level 2 The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market
(for example,
derivatives) is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little
as possible on entity-specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value
an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

over-the-counter

Level 3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs). This is the case for

unlisted equity interests.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
approximate their fair values as at the reporting date
since either the instrument are with short maturities
or the interest rate is close to the current market
rate.

Valuation techniques used to determine fair
values

The basis of fair value measurement and valuation
technique of such FVOCI are set out in Note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

3

REMBHRERWE

B ERERE (&)
AV A ()

3.3

(i)

(i)

RFEER (&)
FRERRN - 28327 H I
EITER (ZZE2ZF AFR) °

BRARATEFENREDE
MEFEENREBEER &2
B89 »

&Rl RERTHEENS R
TE(WAREENAT
BRBAESR) HRTFE
DEAREHERNTS
HE -

TERERTHEEN
ERTAWSIMIET
AR FERRBRHER
i - %S HERM
EENAUBRESZ
MRS ETEDKREE
BRREME - Wit E
IARFEMFRHE
R2BHBUBRESR
Z28E MZIAIA
RA2 -

&2

53 BERBELFRED
BRESZMSHE (D
TUBREG 22805
HZ 28 FLETRA
BEBRILER

74 S5 22 7 o 4 5 51 B
2 4B AREEARNER
EREATEIEE HART
) BRI B0 o R S T 2 A
L LES

BE R FEANIEES %

ZIEAFEFAHEMBEEEA
ZEMEEMNAFETEEE
REEREHEREE MBRE
MizE16 ©
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RAE BT R R M R

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(iii)  Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)
The following table presents the changes in level 3
item — unlisted equity securities for the year ended
31 December 2021 and 2020:

B % Rk EE (F)
3.3 AFEfH ()

(iii) BHEATJEHEERZZ
B R FEE (RE3)
THRENBE_ZT-_—FK=
T_TF+_A=Z+—HLHF
EZH/BIB3EE — ELMRA

BHNED -
2021 2020
—E-—F —TZTHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
At 1 January n—H—H 1,343 304,858
Addition NE — 1,267
Disposal & — (306,779)
Net fair value losses charged to FFAEZAATERE
equity 8 1,725 —
Exchange differences FEHZ% 73 1,997
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8 3,141 1,343
4 Critical accounting estimates and 4 EBEEGTHEFTRHAE
judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(@) Trade and other receivables (including promissory
note)
The Group makes provision for expected credit losses of
trade and other receivables based on an estimate of the
recoverability of these receivables. Provisions are applied to
trade and other receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of impairment of trade and
other receivables requires the use of estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying amount of receivables and
the provision for expected credit losses in the period in
which such estimate has been changed.

PHBERNBEFTEEB LG M3
A REEERHEASRANERER - B2
[ERE M AR B S 5T BRI i 2EMH
B o

REBFEFEMT AL - ZE G R
BERBECRLIABERE  BEATEE
EREAMBYEARBAMEHERSRE
ZARWERATAN °

(a) EWESZERIRHEMmEWRNE (8
BAELRERE)
REBERHEYE 50N R EHAME
R TR m] M (o] 1 1 5T 3t % S P UK
FitREHEEBERE - EEEMN
SHIBERNEE R AR AT BE T & U Ol By
5 FE WU 5 B SR K% L A FE WK IR E A
Bl - MEERWE SR R B R
REMBERZER LT - EBYA
MR RIEEE - BEERGH &
A B 8 HAR #O FE AR AR T (B S TR R
EEERRBELEYE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(9]

Trade and other receivables (including promissory
note) (Continued)

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well
as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are
disclosed in Note 3.1(d).

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and selling expenses. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste and competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycles. Management will reassess the estimations by
the balance sheet date.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. It
could change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

At each balance sheet date, management review internal and
external sources of information to identify indications that
the property, plant and equipment may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amounts. If an indication of impairment is identified, the
Group is required to estimate the recoverable value,
representing the greater of the asset’s fair value less cost to
sell or its value in use. Changes in any of these estimates
could result in a material change to the asset carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements.

4

AV BEERWME

EZgsH A R (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

EWEZERERREMmERRE (2
FEARERE)(E)
CREENBRBEDENEGREY
BB RFEHEBERNRE - ERERB
FESE - RITMBERRRRERE SR
ﬂia’am%fma?r AEEBREEBRR

BEBFERENS AABRERH
@ﬁ BHEBRERBRE LB ABNGFER
TR EE3.1(d) °

FENTSREFEE
FEMNAERFERBEREHREL
EREPH[ESERG T ITRR
R ERXEE - X[ NERE
AR R AR E E mH) B RE
HELREBL Bt eRARERIK
MITREEM S BB P RIF REFY
FOEmMERKERS - EEEHR
BEBRBEHEZEMEE -

ME BERREBEZTEAEH
REE

AEEEEEETNE BERRE
ZEE A E AR BEREENE
ER - BB DERNEULE R
BEZYE  BEMIXBZERAER
FHNBELRSH  BkeRRE
H BRIk 117 2B B T 5| BT T I
BFEEFTEmHBRERD o A
1 F A B D OB A A R B S 8
SEHOR AT AR R E ZELE LA
BREEE  BREMGINTEER -

RE@EER BRESEMAINTE
BRR LB REEFRERY
¥ BEEREAELBRRE HE
AR R \WEJE‘ET” BN BIFHESA
BEE AR o HHEEA R bt EJT%
AlghtEEZIREEE - 5 EE
MEREEBBEATKRESE - BlEgR

BEEANERREEE - FERM
BEYR  AEBEAMGAIWEEE -
EZEEN RN TEBHERARLERE
REEARSERE)  EEAZSE
HRFEEAENE - BN e SR A ER
RAMBHRERANKREEREEAN
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4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(d)

(e)

()

Fair value of intangible assets with finite useful
lives

The Group held certain exclusive supply right, supply right
which arose from debt restricting arrangements entered with
customers or linked to other investment the Group made in
the customer. The fair values of these intangible assets will
reflect market participants’expectations at the acquisition
date about the probability that the expected future
economic benefits embodied in the asset will flow to the
entity and are determined by discounting estimated future
net cash flows generated by the assets as there is no active
The use of different
assumptions for the expectations of future cash flows and

market for such assets exist.
the discount rate would change the valuation of the
intangible assets.

Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties is determined at each
balance sheet date based on valuation techniques (Note 8).
In making the judgement,
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions

consideration is given to
existing as at the balance sheet date, expected rental from
future leases in the light of current market conditions and
appropriate term and reversionary yields. These estimates are
regularly compared to actual market data and actual
transactions entered into by the Group.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required
provision for income taxes. There are transactions and

in determining the

calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
are recognised when management considers it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. When the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and income tax charges in the period in which such estimate
is changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors. The executive directors review the Group's
internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. Management has determined the operating segments
based on these reports.

The executive directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on profit before income tax, which is consistent
with that in the financial statements. Other information, as noted
below, is also provided to the executive directors. Starting from 1
January 2021, the executive directors consider the Group has three
reportable segments: (1) manufacturing and sales of garments on
an original equipment manufacturer basis (“OEM"); (2)
manufacturing and retailing of branded fashion apparel (“Retail”);
and (3) property investment in the PRC (“Property investment”).
Property development business in the PRC (”Property
development”) ceased to be one of the reportable segment starting
from 1 January 2021 as the Group was no longer engaged in such
business activities.

Total segment assets exclude certain investment properties located
in Hong Kong, corporate assets and listed and unlisted equity
securities at FVPL and FVOCI, all of which are managed on a
central basis.

Turnover represent sales of goods and rental income. Sales
between segments are carried out based on agreed terms similar to
terms offered to third parties. The revenue from external parties
reported to the executive directors is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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g
]
=
@
@
£ 5 Segment information (Continued) 5 SHEIERE)
3
o Property
g OEM Retail investment Total
— PESE T 28 VESS @3
3_ HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
g FHRT FHER FHER FHER
Z _
5 Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-Z--f+ZHA=+—-H
5 EEE
= Total revenue LNt 1,132,278 451,740 47,415 1,631,433
8 Inter-segment revenue 2 R A (10,212) (7,836) (4,119) (22,167)
S
N Revenue (from external customers) WA (REIEPES) 1,122,066 443,904 43,296 1,609,266
Timing of revenue recognition L T 3R 0 i
At a point in time R (AR 1,122,066 443,904 — 1,565,970
Over time R—BRERA — — 43,296 43,296
1,122,066 443,904 43,296 1,609,266
Segment (loss)/profit before income tax  BR B /S5 b K + 3t o W) 2 4 R Uk
and gain on expropriation of =D E(E1E) & F
land and properties (251,583) (95,376) 13,403 (333,556)
Gain on expropriation of T R R e
land and properties 25,553 — — 25,553
Segment (loss)/profit before income tax  FRFT {57 A1 5 & (&518) /15 F (226,030) (95,376) 13,403 (308,003)
Fair value losses on REMENRFEBR
investment properties — — (10,627) (10,627)
Depreciation of property, ME - WERRENE
plant and equipment (56,122) (25,335) — (81,457)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREBENTE (9,847) (6,975) — (16,822)
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERH (9,979) (775) — (10,754)
Finance income A& WA 9,792 181 — 9,973
Finance costs BhAE R A (1,548) (1,048) - (2,596)
Share of results of investments DEE AR EARNREEE
accounted for using the equity
method (4,031) — — (4,031)
Income tax expense g b3 (17,901) 1,254 (3,351) (19,998)
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Segment information (Continued) 5 o2FHER(E)
Property Property
OEM Retail development investment Total
[RER B RUE ZTE ESE MERE gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FHET FET FET
Year ended 31 December 2020 HBE-Z_-Z4
+ZA=t+-BLEE
Total revenue ONE- 1,144,935 382,069 — 25,880 1,552,884
Inter-segment revenue DER YA (6,610) — — (3,849) (10,459)
Revenue (from external WA CGREINDER)
customers) 1,138,325 382,069 — 22,031 1,542,425
Timing of revenue recognition LS T 3 ) g
At a point in time 7 — BB 1,138,325 382,069 - - 1,520,394
Over time R—BRERA — — — 22,031 22,031
1,138,325 382,069 — 22,031 1,542,425
Segment (loss)/profit before BRETERIA Rt R EEA
income tax and gain on WD (8518), SR F
expropriation of land and
properties (301,391) (24,326) 176,877 14,419 (134,421)
Gain on expropriation of land T R E R K
and properties 366,746 64,792 — — 431,538
Segment profit before income tax [ BT 1538t Al 2 203 FI 65,355 40,466 176,877 14,419 297,117
Fair value losses on investment B EWENAFEEE
properties — — — (1,013) (1,013)
Gain on disposal of FVPL in HEMINTERAIRATED]
Zhejiang Haoran FEARKRTERE 2R
BENKE — — 193,275 — 193,275
Depreciation of property, ME - WERRENE
plant and equipment (65,723) (19,968) — — (85,691)
Depreciation of right-of-use CREEENE
assets (10,833) (8,489) — — (19,322)
Amortisation of intangible assets & fi/ & & # $4 (5,734) (775) — — (6,509)
Finance income AE A 4,951 176 — — 5,127
Finance costs MERA (6,768) (2,836) — - (9,604)
Share of results of investments 2 {F R AABENZE
accounted for using the S
equity method 166 — — — 166
Income tax expense Frig B < (118,827) (9,918) (7,922) (3,605) (140,272)
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g
]
-
@
@
£ 5 Segment information (Continued) 5 SHEIERE)
él:
o Property
g OEM Retail investment Total
— PESE T 28 VESS @3
3_ HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000
g FHT FHRT FHRT FHER
33> —
5 As at 31 December 2021 R-Z=--F+=-A=+—-H
s Total segment assets DIPEELMLTE 1,608,252 1,496,048 833,436 3,937,736
o)
Xo]
S Total segment assets include: NHMEERERE
N Investments accounted for using the EREREARNRE
K equity method 12,041 — — 12,041
Additions to non-current assets (other  REIFABEE (SR TARET
132 than financial instruments and PSR & &R SN
deferred income tax assets) 122,440 25,757 — 148,197
Tax recoverable A E IR 5,444 3,300 — 8,744
Deferred income tax assets BERMBHAE 17,998 87,942 — 105,940
Property
OEM Retail investment Total
[RF| M EIE ZE MERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET FET FET
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZZB-ZE+ZA=+-8H
Total segment assets PHEELE 2,159,002 1,362,716 446,556 3,968,274
Total segment assets include: DEEELERE
Investments accounted for using the FRESREANRNRE
equity method 1,544 — — 1,544
Additions to non-current assets (other  REFFRBEE (BT AREL
than financial instruments and PSR & ERIN)
deferred income tax assets) 179,167 33,867 — 213,034
Tax recoverable EEER 3,816 2,769 — 6,585

Deferred income tax assets BEMEHEE 18,383 81,426 — 99,809
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Segment information (Continued) 5 o2FHER(E)
A reconciliation of reportable segments’ (loss)/profit before income RS D2 BRATSBAT (B518), 5% T =5
tax to total (loss)/profit before income tax is provided as follows: FTS®ia (B18), "wF @ s WRmT -
2021 2020
—E-—F —TZTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Total segment (loss)/profit before income tax ERFTEFIRI D 6 (EE),
i M 4B FE (308,003) 297,117
Net fair value gains on FVPL BEATEINGEEEREYR
BremEAERNTFERS
EER 871 1,275
Corporate overhead TELEER (5,730) (6,673)
Fair value gains on investment properties REWEDHANTFERZ — 1,200
Rental income HEWA 666 347
(Loss)/profit before income tax per FAEEWARIIBRAME
consolidated statement of comprehensive Fial (B8),&H
income (312,196) 293,266
A reconciliation of reportable segments’ assets to total assets is AREDBrEEREELE 2 HERMT -
provided as follows:
2021 2020
—B-—F e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FiBT
Total segment assets DEEAEELTE 3,937,736 3,968,274
FVPL BRAFEIIRERRERT
BREZEMEE 7,111 6,248
FVOCI BRAFEF AR EEA
ZERMEE 9,752 8,640
Corporate assets hEEE 1,240 949
Investment properties BB E 30,000 30,000
Total assets per consolidated REEEEBRMIEE
balance sheet FERE] 3,985,839 4,014,111
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5 Segment information (Continued) 5 SWMER(E)
The Company is domiciled in the Cayman Islands. The results of ARG AESRSTMKL - AEEKRB
RUATHEZ IMNBEFHBAZRNAT

the Group’s revenue from external customers located in the
following geographical areas are as follows:
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2021 2020
—E-—F —TZTHF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FET

The PRC A 1,102,077 842,020
North America b= 366,903 494,824
European Union (G| 105,608 174,879
Hong Kong BB 17,799 26,710
Other countries HAaBExR 16,879 3,992
1,609,266 1,542,425

The total of non-current assets other than investments accounted
for using the equity method, promissory note and deferred income

URATHRZIFRDHEELE(TRIERE
RREARNRE - ALRELRLRE

tax assets are located in the following geographical areas: MEE) T :

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
The PRC i 1,176,926 1,005,205
Hong Kong BB 194,594 209,135
North America SIS 13,026 14,894
1,384,546 1,229,234

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there is no HE_Z - FR-Z-_TFE+_A=+—

customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the Group's ALEFE BEE-FPEHEASEZEAN
total revenue. 10% A £ o
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e BmKME
Segment information (Continued) 5 SHEER(E)
The contract liabilities represent the advance payments received :.,\\’]E\TE?EFJ’ﬁﬂi%ﬁéé%ﬁ?ﬁfﬁ%i%iﬁﬁﬂ’\]
from counterparties for goods or services that have not yet been B RS B3 5% 5 WERR AR K »
transferred or provided to the counterparties. As at 31 December T —F+-A=+—8" ﬁ’%@ﬁﬁm/\%
2021, the Group has recognised the following liabilities related to PEAEBOATEE :
contracts with customers:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E_BF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current contract liabilities mEAHNEE 54,456 37,794
The following table shows the amount of revenue recognised TR#EVEBE_ZE-_—F+_A=+—HIL
during the year ended 31 December 2021 relating to carried- FERAEBANEEMERNWASE
forward contract liabilities:
2021 2020
—EB-—fF —E-BF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue recognised that was included in the s+ AFHIALNEBBELEBHE
contract liabilities balance at the beginning  FEFRUA
of the year 37,794 20,096
The Group expects the performance obligations under the contracts AEBERNEFPENETHENEEHEE

with customers to be satisfied primarily over a period of one year. ER—FHEARNTK °
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£ 6 Property, plant and equipment 6 ME- -BERRE

T

o

o Furniture,

8 Leasehold Plant and fittings and ~ Construction in

@ Buildings  improvements machinery Vehicles equipment progress Total

- BT HENEEE BERER RE B LERRE ERIE EAES

= HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

g 57 5 57 57 5 57 57

1

35 At 1 January 2020

g% Cost 599,964 280,027 320,215 35,403 58,921 110,910 1,405,440

_',_U Accumulated depreciation ZitHE (320,846) (223,358) (290,982) (33,598) (56,448) - (925,232)

3

% Net book amount REFE 279,118 56,669 29,233 1,805 2,473 110,910 480,208

S

% Year ended 31 December 2020 #E-T-TF

TZA=+-RLLFE
Opening net book amount FENEAFE 279,118 56,669 29,233 1,805 2473 110,910 480,208
Exchange differences ENER 9,818 3239 147 105 619 11,333 26,585
Additions HE - 33,569 24,706 1,247 2,782 99,928 162,232
Disposals e - - (4,151) (134) (53) - (4,338)
Transfers a% - - 2,731 - 9,416 (12,153) -
Depreciation & (24,819) (32,577) (24,841) (1,328 (2,126) - (85,691)
Expropriation (Note 25) EEIGEYD) (23,704) (6,560) (6,044) (120) (66) - (36,494)
Transfers to investment properties (Note) BEZRANE (W) (9,182) - - — — - (9,182)
Closing net book amount FRERFE 231231 54,340 23,11 1,575 13,045 210,018 533,320
At 31 December 2020 RZF-RE+-A=+-H
Cost A 545,111 318,641 314,300 35,950 74,375 210,018 1,498,395
Accumulated depreciation LitHE (313,880) (264,301) (291,189) (34,375) (61,330) - (965,075)
Net book amount REFE 231,231 54,340 231 1,575 13,045 210,018 533,320
Year ended 31 December 2021 -
TZA=+-RLLFE

Opening net book amount FNEAEE 231,231 54,340 8,111 1,575 13,045 210,018 533,320
Exchange differences EiER 4,955 1417 723 92 31 2,512 10,070
Additions AE 10,037 31,562 13,364 6,911 2,453 74,168 138,495
Disposals HeE - (10,404) (6,119) (488) (107) - (17,118)
Transfers a% - - - - 20,192 (20,192) -
Depreciation bl (18,650) (34,983) 2.212) (4,193) (21,359) - (81,457)
Impairment loss REERE - — - - (6,038) - (6,038)
Transfers from assets held for sale (Note 18) BREERBELHELE (W) 5,286 - - - - - 5,286
Expropriation (Note 25) B (FiEE25) (1,376) - - — = - (1,376)
Transfers to investment properties (Note) BEZRANE (W) (3,193) — - - - (249,428) (252,621)
Closing net book amount FRERFE 228,290 41,932 28,807 3,897 8,497 17,138 328,561
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ-5+ZA=1-H
Cost A& 554,364 345,824 319,450 38,758 98,691 17,138 1,374,225
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZHHERAE (326,074) (303,892) (290,643) (34,861) (90,194) - (1,045,664)
Net book amount REFE 228,290 41,932 28,807 3,897 8,497 17,138 328,561




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Property, plant and equipment

(Continued)

Depreciation expenses of approximately HK$37,324,000 (2020:
HK$31,850,000), HK$24,442,000 (2020: HK$21,809,000) and
HK$19,691,000 (2020: HK$32,031,000) have been charged to cost
of sales, selling, marking and distributing costs and administrative
expenses, respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, buildings with net book amount of
approximately HK$65,066,000 (2020: HK$139,678,000) were
pledged as securities for the Group’s bank borrowings (Note 23).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has
recognised approximately HK$6,038,000 (2020: Nil) for impairment
loss of certain specific furniture, fittings and equipment.

Note:  During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group transferred
certain owner-occupied propertied located in Hangzhou to investment properties

REMBHRERWE

2 BERRE (&)

WE R X #37,324,0008 L (T - T F ¢
31,850,000 L) * 24,442,000 T (—Z =
T4 :21,809,0007 7T) % 19,691,0007 7T
—ZT T4 132,031,000/ L) B2 B
ERA - HE - B R WA RITHER
SRR o

KRB —F+-A=+—H REFEDH
65,066,000/ 7T (= F =4 : 139,678,000
ATT) ZBFRERE R AR EIRITE R (M
iE23) 2R -

HE-_ZEZ--—#+-_A=+—ALLEE &
EEERE THEERM - EE R EERR
{E/F518476,038,0008 L (ZE_FF : &) -

fiad: BE-F--—FR-F-_FFT_A=+—LF
o AKERCATMOETAERYEERKRE

and rented them out (Note 8): P A (FF3E8)
2021 2020
—E-—F —TETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
On the date of transfer Sz =kl
— Fair value of properties transferred — FTERMENATE 373,595 59,101
— Carrying amounts of properties transferred — FTERMENREA (252,621) (9,182)
Excess of fair values over carrying amounts ATEBAREENSE 120,974 49,919
Less: Deferred taxation (Note 21) R RIERAE (M E21) (30,244) (12,480)
Revaluation surplus recognised in other RE M2 E AR B H A%
comprehensive income 90,730 37,439
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£ 7 Leases 7 HE
T
a () Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance () RESEERAERBIANEH
a sheet
(2]
[
3 2021 2020
2 —E-—F —TTHF
> HK$'000 HK$'000
2 FHER FHET
o
o)
< Right-of-use assets ERESE
i Leasehold land and land use rights TRE T & (0 151,046 151,325
S Properties LIES 23,236 24,967
Office equipment E NS S 92 165
174,374 176,457
Lease liabilities HEAR
— Current portion — BIEAER & 9,898 9,721
— Non-current portion — FEENERER 15,276 17,026
25,174 26,747
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended HE-_T-—F+-A=+—HILF
31 December 2021 were approximately HK$9,702,000 ERENEAEEELR9,702,000%
(2020: HK$9,844,000). T (ZZFZZF4F : 9,844,000/ 7T) °
As at 31 December 2021, leasehold land and land use rights RZBZ—F+ZA=+—08 " KE
with net book amount of approximately HK$82,476,000 TFE#82,476,0008 L (Z 2T F:
(2020: HK$104,597,000) were pledged as securities for the 104,597,000 7T) 2 & T [ + 3
Group’s bank borrowings (Note 23). FARERRIEAARERZIHRITHE

FMHEE23) 2 AR -
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e BmKME
7 Leases (Continued) 7 HEE)
(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance () REECEEABRERNSEH
sheet (Continued) (#&)
During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the HE_Z_—FK_Z_ZTF+_A

=t—HLEEE" Zﬁ%@ﬂviﬁéﬁ Al
MERTERRNETHOERR

Group transferred certain portion of owner-occupied land
use rights located in Hangzhou to investment properties and

rented them out (Note 8): BN A (HEEs) -
2021 2020
—E-—-F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
On the date of transfer R uEE H Ef
— Fair values of land use rights — PTEE R L AR
transferred ~EE 1,390 19,566
— Carrying amounts of land use rights — P& + i {F F#E 89
transferred BREE (940) (3,040)
Excess of fair values over carrying AT EERAREOENSRE
amounts 450 16,526
Less: Deferred taxation (Note 21) B EIERLIE (MFE21) (113) (4,132)
Revaluation surplus recognised in other #Hfth 2 FE U AFEREEH
comprehensive income A8 337 12,394
(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (i) REEEZEVARBIANSE
statements of comprehensive income
2021 2020
—B-—F e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FiBT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FRAEEAENEER
assets
Properties L/ES 11,788 13,578
Leasehold land and land use rights ME TR R 4,961 5,671
Office equipment FENS 73 73
16,822 19,322
Interests on lease liabilities HEAGEMNE 801 895
Expenses relating to short-term leases fHIFAEM X 10,101 6,322
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7

Leases (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income (Continued)

Depreciation expenses of approximatelyHK$2,552,000 (2020:
HK$2,707,000), HK$6,468,000 (2020: HK$7,986,000) and
HK$7,802,000 (2020: HK$8,629,000) have been charged to
cost of sales, selling, marking and distributing costs and
administrative expenses, respectively.

The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended 31
December 2021 was approximately HK$22,544,000 (2020:
HK$20,355,000).

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various properties and office equipment.
Rental contracts are typically made for fixed term of 1 to 3
years, but may have extension options as described in (v)
below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease arrangements do not impose any covenants.

Variable lease payments

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that
are linked to sales generated from a store. For individual
stores, up to 100% of lease payments are on the basis of
variable payment terms and there is a wide range of sales
percentages applied. Variable payment terms are used for a
variety of reasons, including minimising the fixed costs base
for newly established stores. Variable lease payments that
depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which the condition that triggers those payments occurs.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number
of property leases across the Group. These terms are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing
contracts. The majority of extension and termination options
held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.

7

HE ()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

RESZEHBRARERNESHE
(&)

WERME492,552,0008 (=2 =%
4 12,707,000 L) * 6,468,000/ T
(ZZE %% :7,986,0008 1) &
7,802,000 L (=T =T & :
8,629,000/ L) ED R B EK A -
HE - EHE D HEK A RITERRF X
B o

HE-_Z-—F+-_A=+—HLF
EHHER:THLBOAR
22,544,000 L (Z T =T F :
20,355,000 1) °

FEENEHEESRASTEE

NEBERELBEYERBREE -
EAHN—REB—E=FMETH
R B RAERZERE (R
TX(v)) °

HEGRREBEIHGE BEREZEIRE
BB R kA - E LB & @mE
[EESE

A E N
BoMERERSHEHEEANEE
BB EMAR) A S FRIE R o ERMERIE
FME - ERABMRUEROBES
@A E100% « BEFTERAREE
EELL B S EEK o F A A E SRR
WRABZE  BEEFLEHOE
ERAEHZ/IME - BURRHERER
AERENREBE T ERENRLN
IR EEBRIBRENTER -

ERRAILREZR
AEEETHEMEERSRERKL
BB - ZFRANEMR B MERE
BHRBEEMBERLTERKNL - I
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BmKME
Investment properties 8 REWZE
2021 2020
—sS-—F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAERT
At 1 January ®n—A—H 476,556 371,232
Exchange differences FEHZE 22,522 26,470
Transfers from owner-occupied properties HaaRAYE MEeRT7)
(Notes 6 and 7) 374,985 78,667
Fair value (losses)/gains (Note 25) NFE(EE) W
(BF&E25) (10,627) 187
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 863,436 476,556
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of BEXEHWARER S/
comprehensive income:
Rental revenue from property investment in  FREI¥ ¥R ENTHE WA
the PRC 43,296 22,031
Other rental income HinfA 2 WA 12,151 6,295
Direct operating expenses arising from EEHESBAZEEMER
investment properties that generate rental EEMNERLERY
income (7.642) (241)
47,805 28,085

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the fair values of the Group's
investment properties located in Hong Kong and Hangzhou are
determined on the valuation carried out by the directors or with
reference to the valuation performed by an independent qualified

valuer (the “Valuer”), respectively.

Valuations were determined either with reference to current prices
in an active market of similar properties, or where such information

is not available,
considered including:

information from a variety of sources were

(i) current prices in an active market for properties of different
nature or recent prices of similar properties in less active
markets, adjusted to reflect those differences;

(ii) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates

of future cash flows; or

AEBERAFEFEEAREDR -

RZEZ—FRZFZEF+_A=+—
B AEBUREBRMMNOEEMEZ A
FEDDIEREFHTNHERLE R
B AERMEAER ([EEM]) B MG EE

E e

HEMNEE2LZRAUMENZRETSNE R
B WZBRESEZERSR  AZ2EUT
FHRROESR

() ARAMEZMENREDSZERE
BB RN E G RT IS 2 T4
B (AR Lt Z RAEH R E)

(i  RERAKRBFRREZ A FEHMIED
ZHBBSREFAN ¢ K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAE BT R R M R

8 Investment properties (Continued)

(iii)  capitalised income projections based upon a property’s
estimated net market income, and a capitalisation rate

derived from an analysis of market evidence.

Fair values of the Group’s investment properties located in Hong
Kong are determined by the directors of the Company with
reference to current prices in an active market of similar

properties.

Prevailing market price are estimated based on recent sales
transactions within the subject properties and other comparable
properties. The lower the prices, the lower is the fair value. As at
31 December 2021, prevailing market prices ranged from HK$17 to
HK$24 (2020: HK$21 to HK$25) per month per square meter were
adopted in the term and reversionary analysis for the Group's

investment properties in Hangzhou.

Fair values of the Group’s investment properties located
Hangzhou are derived by the Valuer using the investment method
of the income approach, by taking into account the current rental
income from the existing tenancy agreements and reversionary
income potential by adopting appropriate term/reversionary yields,
which are derived from analysis of sales transaction and the
Valuer's interpretation of prevailing investor requirements or
expectations. For the reversionary potential of the properties, the

Valuer refers market price of similar comparable properties.

Term and reversionary yields are estimated by the Valuer based on
the risk profile of the investment properties being valued. The
higher the yields, the lower the fair value. As at 31 December
2021, yield ranged from 5.75% to 6.25% (2020: 6.0% to 6.5%)
were adopted in the term vyields analysis for the Group’s

investment properties in Hangzhou.

The valuation gains are included in “Other gains, net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income (Note 25). The
following table analyses the investment properties carried at fair

value by valuation methods.

As at 31 December 2021, investment property of approximately
HK$30,000,000 (2020: HK$30,000,000) was pledged as securities

for the Group’s bank borrowings (Note 23).

BREYZ (&)

i) AR R AR BB
B TSR DTS 2 A AL KT
et 2 AR -

REBREBNRENEZ X2 FELARF
EE2ERUMERERTISNENERE

T o

WATMISERDERBEMENREMATE
LR ERT R SIERERT o EREIE -
AFEME R-_BE-_—F+-_fF=+—
A AEBERATINEIZE D ER IR &
FESWMARANBITEERNTEAE
FEHKITABTE24BT(ZEZFF : 218
JLE25HTT) °

AEERME R EY 2 D FER G EED
ERKREEZWEE  EERBEAHERZ
ZBBHESWARES EHAEN (FRAEE
HE/ e EAREROTHER S M
EMHEFREENERITFAHNRES
H)SH - MEESENTE - (HEME2
RECIATLERYE 2 TIHER

HEMEREEE 2 REMEN R RE
TEARR NS EAE - EARYE - AFE
BE - RZZ-_—F+=-_A=+—H &%
B RATUNOREMENRBE EAE 25
I EAEN F575%%6.25% (=%
—TF 6.0%E6.5%) °

EERETIF ARG 2EBARZE YK
wFREI(MIRE25) - TRAMAGBEZEE R
FEIFRZEREME -

R-_ZET-_—F#+-_A=+—8 "%
30,000,000/ jT (== = Z 4 : 30,000,000
BT 2 B EREIRE AR EBIRITHE
FR(HIFE23) ZHER o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A VB REMFE

Investment properties (Continued) 8 REWE (A

Fair value hierarchy

DR ERE

Fair value measurements using

RANTEEZATENR

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active markets  other observable unobservable
for identical assets inputs inputs
HREER HAE AT BEART
ERTEZRE BE2Y B2y
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(& 5B11) (#512) (4% 513)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET FET FET
Recurring fair value measurements REUATEFE
Investment properties as at RZEZ—F+ZRA=1+—HzKE

31 December 2021 mE
— The PRC — — — 833,436
— Hong Kong — &% — — 30,000
— — 863,436

Investment properties as at RZBEZZTF+TZA=+—HAZKRE

31 December 2020 mE
— The PRC —# — — 446,556
— Hong Kong — &% — — 30,000
— — 476,556

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change

in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year

(2020: Same).

ToTE AR -

ARE T RE AR A2 B LB RE
S¥ARREARSE 2 ATERY -

RERNERR - 2R3 2B EETER (=
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8 Investment properties (Continued) 8 KREWX (&)
Fair value measurements using significant unobservable FERAERTAHESH (KB3) 2 DF
inputs (Level 3) HEtE
Investment properties
REYE
Hong Kong PRC Total
BB Gl et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FATT FAIT
At 1 January 2021 RZZFE-_—F—HA—H 30,000 446,556 476,556
Transfers from owner-occupied EoERmE
properties — 374,985 374,985
Losses from fair value adjustment — AFEFHEAEEIE — (10,627) (10,627)
Exchange differences EHERE — 22,522 22,522
At 31 December 2021 RZTZ—4F
+=—A=+— 30,000 833,436 863,436
Total valuation losses for the year — 7E[H bz F5 ] T F R
included in profit or loss for s EET ABERZF
assets held at the end of the N EE B AR
year, under “Other gains, net” — (10,627) (10,627)
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-ZTF—A—H 28,800 342,432 371,232
Transfers from owner-occupied EwaERwE
properties — 78,667 78,667
Gains/(losses) from fair value ANEERBABRE
adjustment (EB#E) 1,200 (1,013) 187
Exchange differences EHER — 26,470 26,470
At 31 December 2020 RZE_ETF
+=-—A=+—H 30,000 446,556 476,556
Total valuation gains/(losses) for the 7&[H bz F5 ] TR FE R
year included in profit or loss for — Fi#EEEFF ABRHRZF
assets held at the end of the Wik EWR S (EE) 258
year, under “Other gains, net” 1,200 (1,013) 187




Intangible assets

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B IS R R BT

9 EIEE

Customer
Goodwill Trademark relationship ~ Supply right Total
wE g EFB% e @gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET FHET FHT FET
At 1 January 2020 R=-Z2-ZF-H—H
Cost KA 92,786 55,740 14,691 44,723 207,940
Accumulated amortisation B £ — (50,749) (14,691) (35,140) (100,580)
Accumulated impairment ES A (92,786) — — — (92,786)
Net book amount EEFE — 4,991 — 9,583 14,574
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z2-%H
+tZAZ+-BLEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE — 4,991 — 9,583 14,574
Additions (Note) RE (F) — — — 40,958 40,958
Amortisation #iH — (775) — (5,734) (6,509)
Impairment WA — — — (7,074) (7,074)
Exchange differences ERER - — — 952 952
Closing net book amount EREEFE — 4,216 — 38,685 42,901
At 31 December 2020 R-B_%F
+=A=t+-~H
Cost A 92,786 55,740 14,691 77,790 241,007
Accumulated amortisation ESE — (51,524) (14,691) (32,031) (98,246)
Accumulated impairment Z5HRE (92,786) — — (7,074) (99,860)
Net book amount REFE — 4,216 — 38,685 42,901
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-E-—-fF
tTZA=+-HBLEE
Opening net book amount FNREFE — 4,216 — 38,685 42,901
Amortisation 5K — (775) — (9,979) (10,754)
Impairment PERE] - - — (14,490) (14,490)
Exchange differences ERER - — — 518 518
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE - 3,441 - 14,734 18,175
At 31 December 2021 RZB=Z-—-F
t=B=+-8
Cost AR 92,786 55,740 14,691 77,790 241,007
Accumulated amortisation it EH - (52,299) (14,691) (41,492) (108,482)
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (92,786) - - (21,564) (114,350)
Net book amount BREFE - 3,441 — 14,734 18,175
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Intangible assets (Continued)

During the year, amortisation expenses of approximately
HK$775,000 (2020: HK$775,000) and HK$9,979,000 (2020
HK$5,734,000) have been charged in selling, marketing and
distribution costs and against revenue, respectively.

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s additions of intangible assets
represented supply right for Bernard Chaus, Inc. (“Bernard Chaus”) and Cartelo brand
apparel products amounting to HK$25,200,000 and HK$15,758,000, respectively.

On 1 August 2020, the Group entered into a debt restructuring agreement (“Debt
Restructuring Agreement”) with Bernard Chaus pursuant to which the then outstanding
promissory note principal of US$5,000,000 (approximately HK$38,675,000) (Note 14) and
the outstanding trade receivables of US$9,092,000 (approximately HK$70,330,000) (Note
14) were converted into a consolidated debt, of which US$8,000,000 (approximately
HK$61,880,000) is to be repaid by 40 equal monthly instalments of US$200,000
(approximately HK$1,547,000) with the first payment to be made on 1 August 2020 and
the balance of US$6,092,000 (approximately HK$47,125,000) to be recovered through
the supply right for at least 1,500,000 units of garments that Bernard Chaus is obligated
to purchase from the Group annually for 40 months starting from 1 August 2020. As at
1 August 2020, the fair value of such exclusive supply right was determined by the
Valuer using the income approach. Key inputs to the valuation include forecasted return
rate of such supply right and discount rate. There are no interrelationships between those
inputs. The better the forecasted return rate, the higher the fair value. The higher the
discount rate, the lower the fair value. The forecasted return rate and discount rate of
9.88% and 10.73%, respectively, are adopted in the valuation for the Group's supply
right for Bernard Chaus.

On 24 August 2020, the Group entered into an exclusive supply agreement with an
investee (the “Investee”), which is a company incorporated in the PRC principally
engaged in development and trading of Cartelo brand apparel products, pursuant to
which the Group was granted exclusive supply right by the Investee for Cartelo brand
apparel products for a term of 88 months from the date of the agreement. As at the
date of the agreement, the fair value of such exclusive supply right was determined by
the Valuer using the income approach. Key inputs to the valuation include forecasted
return rate of such exclusive supply right and discount rate. There are no
interrelationships between those inputs. The better the forecasted return rate, the higher
the fair value. The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair value. The forecasted
return rate and discount rate of 6.87% and 13.33%, respectively, are adopted in the
valuation for the Group's exclusive supply right for Cartelo brand apparel products.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, management considered there was an
impairment indicator on the exclusive supply right with Bernard Chaus and has performed
an impairment assessment as at 31 December 2021 to determine the recoverable amount
using value-in-use calculation. Based on the results of the assessment, management is of
the view that the recoverable amount of the exclusive supply right with Bernard Chaus as
at 31 December 2021 became lower than its carrying amount and such shortfall led to
an impairment of exclusive supply right of HK$14,490,000 during the year ended 31
December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, management considered there was an
impairment indicator on the exclusive supply right with Xcel Design Group, LLC (“Xcel”)
and has performed an impairment assessment as at 31 December 2020 to determine the
recoverable amount using value-in-use calculation. Based on the results of the
assessment, management is of the view that the recoverable amount of the exclusive
supply right with Xcel as at 31 December 2020 became lower than its carrying amount
and such shortfall led to an impairment of exclusive supply right of HK$7,074,000 during
the year ended 31 December 2020.

BEEE (&)
FREHEATH7750008 (= =%
F 1 775,000 7C) 529,979,000 T (= E =
T4 15,734,000 ) ENRIBHE - &iE
R SR AN A R A RARR o

i)

HE-ZT-ZF+-_A=1+—"HBULEFE AEEFEER
& » $8Bernard Chaus, Inc. ([Bernard Chaus]) & Cartelo
mEREELOMERE - 5 B A25,200,000%8 T &
15,758,000/ 7T °

RZZEZTFNF—H ' ANEBEHBernard Chausi] M EH
SEGE ((EBEARZ]) - Bt EEREZREER
7K 4 #5,000,0003 7T (438,675,000 7T) (Fff £ 14) & &
18 3% 8 W8 2 5 BR 509,092,000 JT. (#970,330,0005% 7T.) (Kt
14RO —HAHER - K $8,000,000% T (4
61,880,00078 70) #$ 40 HA(E 8 - & B £ 14200,000%
T (#91,547,000%70) « BEENFRERZZ_2F/\A—H
A+ - T #E£26,092,0003 7T (747,125,000 7T ) #5 i@
fEREWE - BNE T _ZF N\ A —BE40EANERRA
Bernard Chausf@ 4 /A 5 (£ [A A % [ & B = 41,500,000
KK -RZZ_ZFN\A—H ZBREEEHNATED
MIEEMRAREAEE - FERERNEZHALEE
FERZ LA B TE R W s R RNBEIR R - 32 S8 A BUR 2 B
SRR BAKSRES  AAFEYS - BHRERH
& A AFEBIE - AE@MEBernard Chaush L FEHE(GE
5 FITER AR O TEURI M 2 SR ANBE IR K 55 51 5 9.88% 2. 10.73% ©

R-ZZ-_TFEN\A=+WNA AEBE—HRFE MK
VA FEER FCartelom IR IREE RAR RE HOWIREH
(MR ER DAL BREE R - B REERKIRE
T FCartelom i AREEMBBREER - AREET 2
B R8s A - Mp#EI 2 ZBREEEHR T
BT hREEMRARGEET - AERERNEZHAR
BEREZBRHEENEAKRZEMNERE - ZEEAH
BB EBEREER ks EEs  IAFERS -
BB EME - A D FEMIE o AREE Y Cartelof b R E
7 ) 7 SR A5 AR (R T BP0 TR M 5 R AN B IR K 5 Bl
/56.87% [ 13.33% °

HE-T-—F+-A=+-BLFE EEERRA
Bernard Chausk)B Rt EEFERENR MR T =—
FHZA=+—-BETTRENE  EREAEGETER
BEAKESE REBETIEER EEERAR T =_—
F+= A=-+—HEBernard ChausH) B R o] U@l
SHERHEERME MzE8g88Ez_2-—45+=-8
=+ —BIEFEZBERHEERR(E14,490,000/ 7T

HEZ-_ZFT_A=+—HILFE  EEERAHMXc
Design Group, LLC ([Xcell) 8978 R MEEFIERERR
BMR-ZZ-TF+-A=+—B#T T RETE  ERE
AEAHERETATRESE RETEER TEER
RRZZFZTF+ A=+ —HEXcelWBRE BT
WEIGFEENEREME  MZERE8REE_T-2F+=
A=+—RBIFEZBRMEHEMET 074,000 T
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Subsidiaries 10 KB4 E]
The particulars of the Group’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H £EEXZ
December 2021 are set out as follows: MEARZFFEHINT :
Country/place of Particulars of
incorporation/establishment  Principal activities and issued/paid-in Equity interest attributable
Name and type of legal entity place of operations capital to the Group
EMAYL/ BIER/ %R BRT/BK
A% EERBER TEEBREEHY RAE AEBEERE
2021 2020
e —E-%F
Indirectly held:
BERE:
Bolinding Hangzhou Textile Technology The PRC, wholly foreign owned  Garment manufacturing and US$30,000,000 100% 100%
Limited enterprise retailing, trademark
holding and property
investment in PRC
RSN SLRRARA A TEHEBELE RRMERTE  F5EBER  30,000,000%7T 100% 100%
MERE (PE)
China Ting Fashion Trading Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding HK$5,000,000 100% 100%
company in Hong Kong
ERRREFERLA Bk BERAR RERR(ER) 5,000,000 7T 100% 100%
China Ting Garment Mfg (Group) Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Garment trading HK$5,000,000 100% 100%
company in Hong Kong
ERAR(EE)FERAR Bk BERAR KKE 5 (F#E) 5,000,0007 7T 100% 100%
Concept Creator Fashion Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Garment trading HK$200,000 100% 100%
company in Hong Kong
EHBRBRDA Bk BERAR KKE 5 (F#E) 200,000%7¢ 100% 100%
Concept Creator Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Garment trading HK$10,000 100% 100%
company in Hong Kong
ElHBR AR Bk BRAR KKE 5 (FE) 10,0007 7T 100% 100%
Concept Creator Investments (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding HK$100,000 100% 100%
Limited company in Hong Kong
EIHRE (BR)ARAR Bk BERAA RERR(FE) 100,000 7T 100% 100%
Diny (Hangzhou) Fashion Company Limited ~ The PRC, wholly foreign owned ~ Garment manufacturing and US$3,130,000 100% 100%
enterprise retailing and trademark
holding in the PRC
B MM BERFRAF PECNEEELE KREERTERBAEE  3,130,000%7T 100% 100%
()
Finity Fashion (Shenzhen) Company Limited  The PRC, wholly foreign owned ~ Garment manufacturing and HK$10,000,000 100% 100%
enterprise retailing and trademark
holding in the PRC
S ORI BRAF hENEBECE MREERTERSAEE 10,000,000 T 100% 100%
(R E)
Finity International Fashion Company Limited The PRC, wholly foreign owned ~ Garment manufacturing and US$10,900,000 100% 100%
enterprise retailing and trademark
holding in the PRC
FRBEEREERAR hECNEBECE AREERTERBEHE  10,900,000% T 100% 100%
(&)
Hangzhou China Ting Fashion Company The PRC, wholly foreign owned  Garment manufacturing US$4,180,000 100% 100%
Limited enterprise in the PRC
RMESBEERAF hEMEBERE R EE (DE) 4,180,000 7T 100% 100%
Hangzhou China Ting Tailored Fashion The PRC, wholly foreign owned  Garment manufacturing US$8,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limited enterprise in the PRC
RNERARBEERAA TR AMEBERE R EE (P E) 8,000,000 71 100% 100%




o
=
=1
o
=
=
Q@
(0}
=
o
c
o°
a5
o
=
=
Q@
7}
C
3
=
®
o
>
=1
=
c
o
By)
@
e}
<)
=
N
o
S
=

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=
A

10

M HRME

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Country/place of
incorporation/establishment

10 KE2F (&)

Principal activities and

Particulars of
issued/paid-in

Equity interest attributable

Name and type of legal entity place of operations capital to the Group
WAL/ BLER HER BRT/EYW
£ EERBER TREBREEHE BRAFE rEBEGRE
2021 2020
—E--F% —Z-%F
China Ting Woollen Textile Company Limited The PRC, wholly foreign owned ~ Wool textile and garment US$59,500,000 100% 100%
enterprise manufacturing in the PRC
ERMMMN) EHFEERAA TENEBELE EPERREAREE(RE)  59,500,000%7T 100% 100%
Hangzhou Fuding Fashion Company Limited ~ The PRC, wholly foreign owned ~ Garment manufacturing US$2,000,000 100% 100%
enterprise in the PRC
MMERREERAR TEEBELE PR ESE () 2,000,000 70 100% 100%
Hangzhou Fuxi Fashion Company Limited The PRC, wholly foreign owned ~ Garment retailing in the PRC US$200,000 100% 100%
enterprise
MM EREREFRAR RECNERERER KKEE (PE) 200,000 7T 100% 100%
Hangzhou Huaxing Silk Printing Company The PRC, wholly foreign owned  Printing and dyeing of silk US$8,000,000 100% 100%
Limited enterprise and other high-quality
fabrics in the PRC
MMEEHBNRAERAF TEIEBELE HAREMEEERNE 8,000,000% 7T 100% 100%
(&)
China Ting (Hangzhou) Textile Technology ~ The PRC, wholly foreign owned  Garment manufacturing US$16,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limited enterprise in the PRC
Z5 MM HBHRERAT TEEBELE RKEE (P E) 16,000,000%7C 100% 100%
He Shan Tri-Star Silk Dyeing and Printing The PRC, wholly foreign owned  Printing and dyeing of silk US$3,321,000 100% 100%
Work Limited enterprise and other high quality
fabrics in the PRC
BUZERANRACEARAR REIMEBERE HARAMEERAR 3,321,000% 7T 100% 100%
(&)
Zhongshan Tri-Star Textile Printing The PRC, wholly foreign owned  Printing and dyeing of silk RMB6,250,000 100% 100%
Technology Company Limited enterprise and other high quality
fabrics in the PRC
PUZEHBHERBEERAR TEIEBELE HARAMEEEADE  ARN6,250,0007T] 100% 100%
(hE)
Hong Kong Fuhowe Fashion Company Hong Kong, Limited liability Investment holding in HK HK$100,000 100% 100%
Limited company
ERERHREARAT BE BRAR RERR(ER) 100,000 7 100% 100%
Interfield Industrial Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Fabric printing and dyeing HK$23,410,000 100% 100%
company
THEXBRAT BE ARAR [HEEEIES 23,410,000/ 7T 100% 100%
Shenzhen Fuhowe Fashion Company Limited  The PRC, wholly foreign owned ~ Garment manufacturing US$1,610,000 100% 100%
enterprise in the PRC
R EEHEBERAA TEMEBELE PR ESE () 1,610,000% 7T 100% 100%
Zhejiang China Ting Brand Management The PRC, wholly foreign owned  Garment manufacturing and US$8,200,000 100% 100%
Company Limited enterprise retailing and trademark
holding in the PRC
MIERREERERAF TESEBELE RERBERTERSEHRE 820000057 100% 100%
(&)
Zhejiang China Ting Jincheng Silk Company  The PRC, wholly foreign owned  Silk fabric weaving US$2,520,000 100% 100%
Limited enterprise in the PRC
HIZEREHNGRABRDA TEHEBELE AT RS (P E) 2,520,000% 7T 100% 100%
Zhejiang China Ting Knitwear Company The PRC, wholly foreign owned  Knitwear manufacturing US$3,820,000 100% 100%
Limited enterprise in the PRC
HTZERHERERRA TENEBALE stiimslE (hE) 3,820,000% 7T 100% 100%
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Subsidiaries (Continued)

Country/place of
incorporation/establishment

AV BEERWME

10 KIEBRAE (&)

Particulars of

Principal activities and issued/paid-in

Equity interest attributable

Name and type of legal entity place of operations capital to the Group
MR/ RIER HER BRT/BK
A% EERBRER FTEEBRCE L RAF#E AEEEGRE
2021 2020
—F--% e 33
Zhejiang China Ting Textile Technology The PRC, wholly foreign owned ~ Home textile weaving US$11,200,000 100% 100%
Company Limited enterprise in the PRC
IESHBMRERAR TECIMEBERE RPERGIE(PR) 11,200,000 7 100% 100%
Zhejiang Concept Creator Fashion Company  The PRC, wholly foreign owned  Garment manufacturing US$5,000,000 100% 100%
Limited enterprise in the PRC
HTAIBERERAA TECIMEBERE K EE (P E) 5,000,000% 7T 100% 100%
Zhejiang Fucheng Fashion Company Limited ~ The PRC, wholly foreign owned  Garment manufacturing US$4,000,000 100% 100%
enterprise in the PRC
HIERBEERAR RECIMEBELE R BLE (FE) 4,000,0005 7 100% 100%
Zhejiang Fuhowe Fashion Company Limited ~ The PRC, wholly foreign owned ~ Garment manufacturing US$4,200,000 100% 100%
enterprise in the PRC
FTERHEERAR TECIMEBELE R BLE (FE) 4,200,0005 7 100% 100%
Zhejiang China Ting Group Company Limited The PRC, wholly foreign owned  Properties holding and RMB50,000,000 92% 92%
enterprise garment trading
FIESEEEREALA hESHEBELE BENERRKES AR #50,000,000 92% 92%
7T
Zhejiang Huali Fashion Company Limited The PRC, wholly foreign owned  Garment manufacturing US$2,150,000 100% 100%
enterprise in the PRC
HIEBREARAT HEAEEELE PR BLE (P ) 2,150,000% 7T 100% 100%
Zhejiang Huayue Silk Products Company The PRC, sino-foreign joint Spun silk fabric weaving US$2,500,000 55% 55%
Limited venture in the PRC
TEBHARREBR R RE RN AELE BHEREE(PE) 2,500,000% 7 55% 55%
Zhejiang Xinan Fashion Company Limited The PRC, wholly foreign owned  Garment manufacturing US$3,580,000 100% 100%
enterprise in the PRC
HLERREARAT HEAEBELE PR BLE (P ) 3,580,000% 7T 100% 100%
China Ting Finity International Fashion Retail ~The PRC, wholly foreign owned ~ Garment manufacturing and US$8,500,000 100% 100%
Company Limited enterprise retailing and trademark
holding in the PRC
ERFREERERTEFRAF hEMEBERE RREERTERFAEHE  8,500000%7T 100% 100%
()
Hangzhou Weiding Technology Limited The PRC, wholly foreign owned  Garment trading and retailing ~ RMB30,000,000 100% 100%
enterprise in the PRC
MMERNEERAR RECMEBELE KRREHREE (FR) AR #30,000,000 100% 100%
7T
Yudu Chuangyue Huali Intelligent Garment ~ The PRC, wholly foreign owned  Garment manufacturing RMB19,073,307 97.6% 97.6%
Company Limited enterprise in the PRC
THHREDERREARAT hEHEBELE R BLE (R ) AR 19,073,307 97.6% 97.6%
T
China Ting Fashion (Ganzhou) Company The PRC, wholly foreign owned ~ Garment manufacturing US$2,644,853 96% 96%
Limited enterprise in the PRC
ERRE (BN FRAF TR MEBERE R EE (P E) 2,644,853% 7T 96% 96%
Guizhou Tianzhu China Ting Garment (Mfg) ~ The PRC, wholly foreign owned ~ Garment manufacturing RMB5,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limited enterprise in the PRC
EMERREERHRERAR hEOMEBERE K EE (P E) AR #5,000,0007T 100% 100%
Finity Garment Company Limited The PRC, wholly foreign owned ~ Garment manufacturing and ~ US$15,000,000 100% 100%
enterprise retailing in the PRC
FRBREBRAT PR NERALE REBERTE (PE) 15,000,000 7 100% 100%
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10 Subsidiaries (Continued)

1

The English names of certain subsidiaries referred herein represent
management’s best effort in translating the Chinese names of
these subsidiaries as no English names have been registered.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. Giving details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Investments accounted for using the
equity method

Set out below are the associates and joint ventures of the Group
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. The entities listed below have
share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held
directly by the Group.

10

1

By /8~ =) (4

AR RIE 2 B T HB A T A B R
XEH MESEXABNERERNEE
Hop AT -

LREREER/IEXEFANEERER
AEERBNEEFEZASERBAT -
BEERA TEEOHBRARZENERR
fEBE -

EREREARNKRE

TERBINAEBR T _—FR_T_FTF
+ZAZt+—BZBERREREEAR T
JEREFERYRRERMBRAN  ZFY
BRBHAEEEESS -

Country of
incorporation and Equity interest attributable Nature of the ~ Measurement
Name type of legal entity  Principal activities to the Group relationship method Carrying amount
EMALEARR
8 EEERER TERH rEEELRE BEHE HEAE REE
2021 2020 2021 2020
SECD-F | ZECZEE SECD-F | ZECZEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TiER TET
Hangzhou Ranyue Clothing The PRC, limited liability ~Garment wholesaling 28.57% 28.57%  Associate Equity method 151 901
Company Limited ("Hangzhou company and retailing
Ranyue")
IMBRREERLT (A HE FRAA REBEREE 28.57% 2857% BERAE Bk 1571 901
Hangzhou Huasheng Accessories The PRC, wholly foreign  Accessories and plastic - 25%  Associate Equity method - 643
Company Limited (“Huasheng owned enterprise bags manufacturing
Accessories”)
MNEEBHARAR ((ZEBH]) PE HHBELE  REBBREZHER - 5% BERF EiE - 643
Hangzhou Gaoming The PRC, limited liability ~Garment retailing 14% — Associate Equity method 8,842 —
company
&S TE - BRAA RKEE 14% — BERE B 8,842 -
Ting Camuto Enterprises Limited Hong Kong, limited Garment retailing 51% 51% Joint Venture Equity method - -
("Ting Camuto”) liability company
Ting Camuto Enterprises Limited &% BRAA KXZE 51% 51% AERFE ERE - -
([Ting Camuto])
CT Fashion Hong Kong, limited Garment manufacturing 55% — Joint Venture Equity method 1,628 —
liability company in Vietnam
ERBR % BRAR R EE (875) 55% — RERA Eak 1,628 —
Total equity account investments 12,041 1,544
BRARARE 12,041 1,544
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Investments accounted for using the
equity method (Continued)

Movements of investments accounted for using the equity method
are as follows:

REMBHRERWE

1M ERERZEARNKRE (F)

EAEREARNREZEHNT

2021 2020
—B-—F e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
At 1 January —HA—H 1,544 1,236
Additions (Note) ANE (M) 14,528 —
Share of (losses)/profits D15 (E518),/ % F (4,031) 166
Elimination of profits from downstream TR 5% T
transactions (233) —
Exchange differences FEH ZE 233 142
At 31 December W+ZA=+—H 12,041 1,544
Note: B3
On 28 January 2021, the Group entered into an investment agreement and an entrusted RZBZ—F—-A=Z+N\A XEETL-HRERR

shareholding agreement pursuant to which the Group effectively acquired 14% equity
interest of Hangzhou Gaoming Information Technology Company Limited (“Hangzhou
Gaoming”), a company incorporated in the PRC at a net consideration of approximately
RMB8,540,000 (approximately HK$10,263,000). Upon the completion of the above
transactions, Hangzhou Gaoming became an associate as the Group is able to exercise
significant influence through the appointment of director to its board.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group entered into a shareholders’
agreement with Delta Industries Limited, a Hong Kong incorporated company (the “JV
partner”), pursuant to which the Group and the JV partner converted China Ting Fashion
Limited (“CT Fashion”), a then wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, into a joint
venture. In May 2021, CT Fashion set up a subsidiary in Vietnam namely Concept
Creator Delta Garment Vietnam Limited, which have been engaged by the Group as a
contract processor.

As at 31 December 2021, the total capital injections made by the Group and the JV
partner into CT Fashion amounted to US$550,000 (approximately HK$4,265,000) and
US$450,000 (approximately HK$3,489,000), respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the investment in Huasheng Accessories was
disposed of by the Group to a third party at a consideration of HK$8,425,000 and a
disposal gain of HK$8,425,000 was recognised accordingly in the Group's consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2021 which is
calculated as the difference between the consideration and the then carrying value of the
investment in Huasheng Accessories at nil.

The Group has no contingent liabilities relating to its investments accounted for using the
equity method.

Directors of the Company are of the view that the financial information of the
investments accounted for using the equity method is not material to the Group and thus
no disclosure has been made with this regard.

—IEEFERRBE - Bt m%;&‘%uﬁz,@%m)\lﬁﬂ%ﬁ,_\
BirERAR ([HMNES] - —RRFBEEMRZHRR])
B14% R #E REFERNHARYES540,0007T (4
10,263,000/ 7T) « R Ll R HFEMIE& - ARAE @4 %ﬁ‘@
BEAEFENMNESRONEFSMHUHBMERLEN
Fit M e Bk A —REEE QA -

REE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE FEEE=H
BEEARAA([EERRAEEREH]  —KREBZIMK
AR R —HEERGE - Bl AEERSERFE
ERHBESREAERAR([ELER]  AEEERKH
—R2EMBRAR) BELE-REEQA - R_T-_—FH
A EZESRERBMRBY —RKMB2RAF - BlConcept
Creator Delta Garment Vietnam Limited * 2 A BB AR5
EEERBHMIN -

RZB-—F+-A=+—H AELERALQFAER
Y EE QRS S @5 5 B /550,000 7T (414,265,000
7 7L) % 450,000 7t (493,489,000 7T ) °

REBE-Z-—F+-A=+—HIEFE FEBEHRE
BEHOREHETE=S - RE/R8,42500087T - HE

12 %58,425,00078 7T 18 ERA A R @ EH = ——%+=A
St-BUEFENFE2EKRARANER  EHRRE

HNERRHNBREERERRET 2 MOZEAHE -

AEEWBEAHGAESEARNREBAOIARARE -

ARAREERAREMRDENENREZ M BENE AL
B 5w IEEAR - F UL E R
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(@)
=
3
Q0
=
=)
(o]
(0]
o . ‘€
£ 12 Inventories 12 &&
T
o
s 2021 2020
@ —EB-—F —ECTF
g HK$'000 HK$'000
= FHT FET
o
> . N
= Raw materials JR A 104,532 119,752
C
o Work in progress R m 191,480 153,189
2 Finished goods UK @ 1,026,144 820,326
IS
§ 1,322,156 1,093,267
- Less: Provision for inventories W R ERE (323,785) (169,978)
152

998,371 923,289

HERABAI W ABEERAZTFEXNELD A
759,967,000 t (=T = Z &F :
738,222,000 7T) °

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost
of sales amounted to approximately HK$759,967,000 (2020:
HK$738,222,000).

Movements on the provision for impairment of inventories are as GFERERBBNEHOT -
follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —TZTHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January Rn—A—H 169,978 101,867
Charged to the consolidated profit or loss FTAGREEE 193,748 105,704
Write-off I 58 (48,034) (47,094)
Exchange differences fE R =% 8,093 9,501
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 323,785 169,978
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eV BmEKNE
13 Financial instruments by category 13 RENES2ZEMI A
2021 2020
—sS-—F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at amortised cost RBEAATEZSREE
Trade and bill receivables FEUE 5 BR 3R FE W = R 307,551 325,313
Other financial assets at amortised cost BB AR e
AE = 169,648 580,814
Pledged bank deposits B IRITF R 737 5,193
Fixed deposits EHTFR — 26,128
Cash and cash equivalents RekBAeEFEES 752,195 577,172
FVPL BAFEIREERRTE
BramEE 7,111 6,248
FVOCI BRAFEF AR 2 EEA
ZERMEE 9,752 8,640
1,246,994 1,529,508
Financial liabilities kA== R
Liabilities at amortised cost REHEARIIREZBE
Trade and other payables FERTE SRR R H fth B
IR 588,544 480,679
Lease liabilities HEAE 25,174 26,747
Borrowings BR 250,976 270,129
864,694 777,555
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14

Trade and other receivables

14 EBWESRRKEMEWRRE

2021 2020
—s-—F —E B4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHTT
Trade and bill receivables (Note (i) JEWE 5 B % % FE W = 15
(B &E()) 423,231 425,172
Less: Loss allowance (Note 3.1(d)) B BB R (M RE3.1(d)) (115,680) (99,859)
Trade and bill receivables, net FEWE 2 BR R K IR N IR
ikl 307,551 325,313
Amounts due from related parties JE W B 2 75 k38 (B RE33(0))
(Note 33(c)) 40,074 36,386
Compensation receivable from government  EULEX T # & & (Bi3£25)
(Note 25) 5,408 283,802
Disposal proceed receivable of FVPL in HE RIS RN AT E
Zhejiang Haoran (Note 15) FIBREIERRTRELS
B EE ) FE UL AT 15 3k 3A (B
15) — 118,765
Prepayments T8 RIE 213,824 192,382
Deposits and other receivables R R EH A pE YR IE 111,437 123,410
678,294 1,080,058
Promissory note (Note (i) A =R (FEG))
— Non-current portion — FEENERER 16,117 31,949
— Current portion — RVERE 11,991 9,382
28,108 41,331
The amounts due from related parties are unsecured, interest-free EWEES RIEREER 2 RIREKRE

and repayable on demand.
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14 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

Trade and bill receivables
The ageing analysis of gross trade and bill receivables based on invoice date is as
follows:

AV BEERWME

14 BRESBRAREMERRIER

(%)

GEX

EWE SRR REREE
FEE SRR AR I e R B R A M2 R
I

2021 2020

—EB-—F —ZT=%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
0 to 30 days 0%F30H 157,622 157,004
31 to 60 days 31E60K 66,187 50,284
61 to 90 days 61%F90K 30,645 51,521
91 to 120 days 9INEI120K 42,066 66,172
Over 120 days E#BiB120K 126,711 100,191
423,231 425,172

For OEM garment sales, the Group's trade receivables from its customers are
generally settled by way of letters of credit or telegraphic transfer with credit
periods of not more than 90 days.

For sales of branded fashion apparel to franchisees, the Group normally requests
payments in advance or deposits from such customers, with the remaining
balances settled immediately upon delivery of goods. The Group also grants open
account terms of 30 credit days to long-established customers with good
repayment history.

Retail sales are settled in cash, by credit cards, through internet payment service
providers or collected by department stores/online retailers on behalf of the
Group. The agreed credit terms with credit card companies are usually within 14
days. Department stores and online retailers are normally required to settle the
proceeds to the Group within 2 months from the date of sale.

Bill receivables are with average maturity dates of within 2 months.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate their fair
values.

As at 31 December 2021, the trade receivables from five customers accounted
for 27.1% (2020: 24.0%) of the total trade receivables. The loss allowance
increased by HK$14,474,000 (2020: HK$71,294,000) for trade receivables during
the current year. Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risk and the
impairment of trade receivables can be found in Note 3.1(d).

Movements on the allowance for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

RERBRERREEMNS  ARERBHEP
ZEERESER—RIAEARKEESTEMHE
EEMTHEBI0A -

REHEREEETZRERBREEN S - K%
H-REBERZEETFANRARES - BREAR
BRERNEERE ARETEAERCEHER
FzRETEFPEHBEAFER ZRERZHR -

ZEDNASKERT  BEM LXTRBHE
BEESEEEAR/ B ETERRARE YRR -
HEBRARBEZERRBERI4AUA K
SE-RBEREERARKETEBHNHEE AL
FHE A AR A S BB EMS R

KRB FHEMARRBEAR -

KR SRR R EMERKAZ RAERE AT
[ELiEES

RZTBZ—F+-A=+—0 REAREFH
FEWE SRR L FEIE S IR AR 27.1% (=%
ZEF 24.0%) c RAFE - BIRE HERDE
B IN14,474,0008 T (Z T T4 :
71,294,000 7T) - FRAAEEAEBRNEERR
K EWE 5 RO EN E M AT 2B M 3.1(d)

PR SRR FURERENE BT

2021 2020

—EBC-—fF —E-THF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHET

At 1 January w—A—H 99,859 72,304
Charged to the consolidated profit or loss FALREER 14,474 71,294
Write-off i 85 — (44,037)
Exchange differences [EH =% 1,347 298
At 31 December KR+=ZA=+—H 115,680 99,859
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14 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 14 EWEZEF R HiEWFIE

——
(%)
Notes: (Continued) e« ()
(ii) Promissory note (ii) EREE

AEEBE—HEUKAEE-—ZETERTFNER
A HEER HEAKXE R R8,000,000% T (4
61,880,000/ 7T) * 1§ 40HiEIE B =T =TF
NA—B®&EA%F&EXM200,000% T (4
1,547,00087) - RZT=_—F+=-—A=+—H "
ZAEAR BB KRERE XS /4,600,000% 7T (49
35,581,0007# 7C) (= Z =T 4 : 7,000,000% 7T (47
54,145,000 7T)) °

The Group held an interest-free promissory note due from a major customer of
the Group with a principal of US$8,000,000 (approximately HK$61,880,000)
repayable by 40 equal monthly instalments of US$200,000 (approximately
HK$1,547,000) commencing from 1 August 2020. As at 31 December 2021, the
outstanding principal of the promissory note was US$4,600,000 (approximately
HK$35,581,000) (2020: US$7,000,000 (approximately HK$54,145,000)).
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AREEE EWE 5 IR E U IR (&
BRNHRBARALRR) FEZREAEBENLT

The carrying amounts of the Group’s net trade and other
receivables (excluding prepayments and promissory note) are

denominated in the following currencies: F|EHEEE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —TTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FH&T
HK$ BT 3,708 1,549
RMB AR 343,405 743,903
us$ ETT 117,353 140,695
Euro BT 5 1,529
464,471 887,676

The carrying amounts of other receivables are current and do not H bW 2 REE AR ERIE - AWk
contain any impaired assets. BIEEMREEE -

15 FVPL 15 BATEIREBESRRDPEE
ZEMEE

2021 2020

—E-—F —TTHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Listed equity securities (Note (i) ETRAEF (B EEG) 7,111 6,248




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A VB REMFE

15 FVPL (Continued) 15 BAFEIREEZRPEE

ZEMEE (&)

AERBE—_T-_—FR-ZT-_ZTF+_HA
=t+—BLFENRATFEIFRERZRSD

Movement of the Group’s FVPL for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 is as follows:

RIBZEREESIHOT :
Listed FVPL in
equity Zhejiang
securities Haoran
(Note (i) (Note (ii)) Total
RAFEHR
EBERRFE
FHRARES BHEEREE
(B =E(i)) (B =E (i) st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FERT FERT
At 1 January 2021 RZZE=Z—F—H—H 6,248 - 6,248
Additions NE 285 — 285
Disposals BE (465) - (465)
Net fair value gains — unrealised N EW R FE
(Note 25) — KRE| (PF3E25) 823 — 823
Exchange differences EHERE 220 — 220
At 31 December 2021 RZT=——F
+ZA=1+—8 7111 — 7,111
At 1 January 2020 WRZZE-ZF—-A—H 5,647 304,858 310,505
Additions NE 478 — 478
Disposals BE (839) (306,779) (307,618)
Net fair value gains — unrealised N EW R FE
(Note 25) — KRE| (fF3E25) 600 — 600
Exchange differences EHEE 362 1,921 2,283
At 31 December 2020 RZEZZF
+ZA=+—8 6,248 — 6,248
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15 FVPL (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

The fair value of all equity securities is based on their current bid prices in an
active market.

FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran

Zhejiang Haoran is a company engaged in commercial property development in
Hangzhou. The principal asset of Zhejiang Haoran is a commercial property
project located in Hangzhou (the “Property”).

As at 1 January 2020, FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran represented the Group’s 29%
equity interest in, shareholder’s loans and advances granted to Zhejiang Haoran
totalled RMB272,511,000 (approximately HK$304,858,000). The Group had been
seeking for recovery of a portion of shareholder’s loans and advance to Zhejiang
Haoran and to enforce its right as a shareholder of Zhejiang Haoran through
legal proceedings since 2016.

The Group was unable to obtain sufficient financial information of Zhejiang
Haoran as at 1 January 2020 because management of Zhejiang Haoran did not
provide such required financial information to the Group. As a result, the fair
value of FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran as at 1 January 2020 was estimated by
management using the adjusted net asset value approach based on Zhejiang
Haoran’s financial information as at 31 December 2016 which was the latest
financial information available to the Group. The fair value of the Property and
construction costs incurred for the Property subsequent to 31 December 2016
was adjusted to take into account certain more up to date financial information
and other information made available in the process of legal proceedings in late
2019. No interest expense has been accrued subsequent to 31 December 2016.
A minority interest discount rate of 40% was applied in the valuation as at 1
January 2020. The directors considered that the above-mentioned assumptions
and basis applied in the fair value assessment of FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran were
appropriate and represented their best estimates as at 1 January 2020.

Management assumed there was no change in the fair value of FVPL in Zhejiang
Haoran during the year ended 31 December 2020 and the fair value of such
FVPL at the date of disposal was HK$298,971,000. On 30 June 2020, the FVPL
in Zhejiang Haoran was disposed of by the Group to a company designated by
the major shareholder of Zhejiang Haoran (the “buyer”) at a consideration of
HK$491,482,000 and a disposal gain of HK$193,275,000 was recognised
accordingly in the Group’s consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Disposal proceed of HK$376,723,000 was received by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2020 while the remaining balance of HK$118,765,000 was
received by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021.

15 BRAFEIRERERTERE
ZEMEE (&)

ERAZRNRFEDRENETRTISNRT
BEERSH -

RICTERNBEATPEIRERSERTE
BremEE
HTERR—HARTN R EREDERBENAF -
TERNEBEEERLNNMMNEEYEER
(Fzm%]) -

RITZTF—F—H  RIIEANKRRFE
G AR P RIE, SREEENEENNIT
Y IR 29 % ) A% AR LA B 1A 4 I 08 SR R H B0 AR SR B AR
Rk AR 272,511,000 (#9304,858,000

BIL) c BZR—ARFR - AKREESRBBE
REFREEINTERNBOBRER KB

W76 E AR R E R R ARER

AREEAESHTERAN -2 -_2F—A—H
WEDPBER - BANLERNEEERAAX
SEREHMBROFBER - Bt - BOTER
MIZAFEIIRERERTREZSRAER
ZoRF-A-AMNATEDREEBRENT
EARRZE—XNET A=+ —BOHBER (A
AEE A EREN U BEER) ERRHREETF
BEEMGEFEH - ZMENATFERZNER =
—RETZAZST-RREENBERES  BER
ER-E-NFFRETERFLNBEH AR
BHE TR BEN REMERRIEL A
B RZZE-RFE+-A=+—BRLEELF
BHX - -R-_Z_FTF-A-RMHERBRKAND
YRRERTEERLA0% - EERA - RATHE
ROBRAFENEERRRTEEZEREEN
AFEFEFAEAZ LUBRRRELERGE
ARRBER-_Z_FF— A - HNREME -

BEEBRENNIEANZATFEIIKEERSR
TREZECMEENATERNBE_T_TF+=
A=+—BUFET&ES  BZIRAFEIER
EEZRPREBEZSREERTEBHNDFE
/298,971,000 - RZZE-_FTFA=1H"
REEBRATEANIZATFEIIKLEBRZRST
REZGREELE TIIERAETZRIREN
—RAR(TER]) - R{E%491,482,000/ T I
BERAEREE 2 -_TF+-_A=+—H1t
FENGAZERAXRABEREE KH
193,275,000/ ¢ °

AEEREE T -_TF+_A=+—HILFE
2 BB B T8 51 18376,723,000/8 70 © AL E
ERBE-Z-_—F+-A=+—HLFEKST
#£%8118,765,0007 7T
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eV BmEKNE
16 FvOCI 16 RAVEFAEMZEKRAZ
TREE
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-FF
HK$°'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Listed equity securities (Note (i) ETRAE S () 6,611 7,297
Unlisted equity securities (Note (i) Ik E 70 AR AN E 25 (B EE (i) 3,141 1,343
9,752 8,640
Movement of the Group's FVOCI for the years ended 31 FEBBEE TR T _FTF+_A
December 2021 and 2020 is as follows: =+ —HBIEFEMNRAFEFAEMEER
AZERMEEZSHNOT :
Listed equity Unlisted equity
Securities securities
(Note (i) (Note (ii)) Total
EHRAES FLHBRAES
(PR EE () (GEAD)) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET FET
At 1 January 2021 RZZT=Z—F—HF—H 7,297 1,343 8,640
Net fair value losses charged to equity FFAERHATEES
F R (725) 1,725 1,000
Exchange differences EHEE 39 73 112
At 31 December 2021 RZTE=—F
+ZA=+—H” 6,611 3,141 9,752
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-TF—H—H 9,087 — 9,087
Additions NE — 1,267 1,267
Net fair value losses charged to equity FFAEZHATEEE
FEE (1,749) - (1,749)
Exchange differences MEHEE (41) 76 35
At 31 December 2020 »

=
=

(s

—E-TF
+=ZA=+—H 7,297 1,343 8,640
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16 FVOCI (Continued)

Notes:

(ii)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's FVOCI comprised 777,778 (2020: 777,778)
common stocks of Xcel Brands, Inc., a company incorporated in the United
States and listed in the NASDAQ. The fair value of all listed equity securities is
based on their current bid prices in an active market.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s unlisted equity securities represented 6.5%
equity interest of an investee (the “Investee”), a company incorporated in the
PRC principally engaged in development and trading of Cartelo brand apparel
products.

Fair value of the Group’s equity interest in the Investee as at 31 December
2021 was determined by the Valuer using the market approach, which is
considered to be a more appropriate valuation approach since the investee
started to generate revenue during the year ended 31 December 2021 and
market comparable are available. The fair value was within level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy. Key inputs to the valuation include the forecast of sales
performance and the projected earnings before interest and taxes (the “EBIT") of
the Investee and the selection of comparable companies. There are no
interrelationships with those inputs. The better the forecast of the sales
performance and the EBIT of the Investee, the higher the fair value.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group entered into two
agreements with the Investee under which the Group invested RMB15,200,000
(approximately HK$17,111,000) to purchase 6.5% equity interest of the Investee
and was granted exclusive supply right by the Investee for Cartelo brand apparel
(See Note 9 for more details). As at the date of the agreement and 31
December 2020, the fair values of the Group’s investment in the Investee were
determined by the Valuer using the net asset value approach. The fair values
were within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (Note 3.3). Key inputs to the
valuation include the net asset value of the Investee and discounts for lack of
marketability and control. There is no interrelationships with those inputs. The
higher the net asst value of the Investee, the higher the fair value. The higher
the discounts for lack of marketability and control, the lower the fair value.

16 BAVEFAEMZEBALZ
TREE (&)

(ii)

RZTZ—F+ZA=+—8 "EERATE
FTAEAMRE WA Z & /& E £ 15 Xcel Brands,
Inc. (—FIREB FE MY R ETER FTHA
A 777,778 (=T ZFF : 777,778MR) L i
B e BT ETRABFNATESERLEER
miH EMERIREMERT -

RoF-—#+-A=+—R AREHELD
B SR IR A (B 7 | - — B B
MRS B A - % B i F Cartelo MEAR 3 25 & 19
B% R EH) 196.5% IR -

RZB_—F+-A=+—R AEEREKRE
77 ) AR RO A A TS i G E AN A SR EEE
MHERRARTERRENMGBET L REARZK
RETKBE_Z-_—F+_A=+—-HILFE
FREL K BAIERTIBAIA LA - 18
BATEBRATFEBRTHOEIR - GHERER
NEIBWABBRERRETNHERRENR
TEFH SR AT &R (TEBIT)) LA K AT & L 8 X B] 4038
B-ZERABBZEYRBERE RERES
MIEERBIER REBITHE - BIAFEMS -

BE_Z-_ZTE+_A=+—HILFE KA&£E
HEREH MO BE - Fut - AEEBREA
R #15,200,0007T (£717,111,0005% 7T) & B 1 1%
BH6S%MRE MASEEHRRESIRT
Cartelof IR E M B R UL (2B RME
9) - RBEFIT AR ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—
B REEREREHRENRTEAEER
REBEFELET - HBAATEBRRTFEE
HM(FHE33)RNEIR - HERERNEZHA
R BIEWIRE B EFEM R E I RiE
FEEITEER - REEARR 2 Y SR BE -
WIREHHEEFELS ARTESS - BRZ
BRI BT EELS - B A TFEME -
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17 Cash and bank balances, fixed deposits 17 BE&RBTES  THERR
and pledged bank deposits EHEARITER

2021 2020
—B-—F —TZTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET

Cash at bank and in hand RITHEHREFHERS 611,917 448,933

Short-term bank deposits (Note (a)) EHRITHE R (M FE@) 140,278 128,239

Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEFHBEER 752,195 577,172

Fixed deposits (Note (b)) TE #A 77 3K (T 3% (b)) — 26,128

Pledged bank deposits (Note (c)) B IRTTF K (KM 7E(0) 737 5,193

752,932 608,493

The Group’s cash and bank balances are denominated in the REBMOIE S RIRITHEBRU T EBFHE -

following currencies:

2021 2020
—E-—F —EZTHF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FER FA5

HK$ BT 5,245 5,480

RMB (Note (d)) AR (H3E(d)) 520,909 374,588

us$ T 226,607 227,625

Other currencies Hip gk 171 800

752,932 608,493

Notes: Bt 3

(a) The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits is 2.82% (2020: 2.46%) (a) EBHRTERZERFANELAR282%(ZF=F
per annum; short-term bank deposits have a maturity ranging from 7 days to F:246%)  BERTERZIBHEANF7HES
less than 3 months. EAKRT -

(b) As at 31 December 2021, the effective interest rate on the Group’s fixed deposits (b) RZBZ—F+ZA=+—8 KAEEEHER
is nil (2020: 2.29%) per annum; fixed deposits have a maturity period ranging NERENEAT(ZF-FF 229%)  E£H
from 3 months to less than 1 year. FRZEGHMBENTIEAEIF -

() Bank deposits of approximately HK$737,000 (2020: HK$5,193,000) have been (o) #9737,000% 70 (= Z =T 4 : 5,193,000/ 7T) Z
pledged for trade finance facilities made available to the Group by relevant RITERED TFEM UAAEERGEBRTZ
banks. The effective interest rate on pledged bank deposits is 2.25% (2020: BORMAEER BEARTERZERFRERR
0.30%) per annum. 2.25% (ZZF T4 :0.30%) °

(d) The Group’s cash and bank balances denominated in RMB are deposited with (d) AEBAARBHEZR S RBTHEBHFRR

banks in the PRC. The conversion of these RMB denominated balances into
foreign currencies and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the
rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

PEZIRTT c RFUARKEHE Z MR L I]IMNE
EEEERDE  AXFPEBRFRMGZINEE
151l 482 81 K AR5 IR 51
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REMBHRRME

Assets held for sale 18 HEHEEE
As at 31 December 2020, properties and land use right of RZEZTF+-A=+—H BXAKEE
approximately HK$8,880,000 have been presented as held for sale 12 [ 1 R TE 73 B R S 5 498,880,000/
following the decision of the Group’s management to sell such THMER THERER  ZFEES 2T
assets in the near term. REELE -
During the year ended 31 December 2021, these assets ceased to HE_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HILFE ' H
be classified as assets held for sale, due to the change of the RAEEREHZEEENRERR %%
Group's disposal plan for such assets. Accordingly, properties and BETHREARELEEE At FE
land use rights with carrying value of HK$5,286,000 (Note 6) and {8 7%5,286,0007% 7T (Fff 516) [ 3,594,000
HK$3,594,000 (Note 7) have been reclassified to property, plant TT(MEE7) s R T fE D 5 Bl =
and equipment and right-of-use assets, respectively, and adjusted DEEYE BERZEREHAREEAE I
for depreciation amounting to HK$284,000 and HK$377,000 DRI ZEEEEARDEAFELREMARE
respectively that would have been recognised had these assets not TR H) I 85 284,000 7T % 377,000 S 1E
been classified as held for sale. FHE o
Share capital 19 KX
Number of shares Total
BHEEHE et
(in '000) HK$'000
(FA) FiBT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FRR0.10E T 2 i@k
Authorised: ETE
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 RZZEZZTFE—A—HI
and 2021 RZZT_TFR=T
——F+-A=+—H 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EBITRER
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 RZZT_TF—H—HU
and 2021 LZZT-FTEFER=F
——F+-_A=+—H 2,099,818 209,982
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20 f&#E

20 Reserves

Share-based Capital
Share Capital ~ Contributed Statutory i dempti | Exchange Retained
premium reserve surplus reserves reserve reserve reserves reserve earnings Total
DRBXA
REER EARE BARE EERE HHaE HEROEE Efihf HERE RERF @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T T T T T
(Note)
(W)
At 1 Jenuary 2020 K2 2F-A-R 978251 7,46 (@) 157066 7071 2241 BB IB03 T8I 230454
Profit for the year FRER - - - - - - - - 146,044 146,044
Transfer 1o statutory reserves BLNEERE - - - 51,984 - - - — (51,984) —
Currency translation differences EHREER - - - - - - - 134,695 - 134,695
Fair value gains on FVOCI BATES AR ARAZ
SREENHRTELR - - - - - - (1,749) - - (1,749)
Fair value gains on transfers of BRYEERRENE AT
owner-occupied properties to Bl MRHE
investment properties, net of tax - - - - - - 49,833 - - 49,833
At 31 December 2020 RZF-FF+-A=1-H 978,251 7,746 (4,624) 209,050 707 2241 283,547 257,718 892,364 2,633,364
At 1 January 2021 WZZ2--f-f-R 978,251 7,746 (4,624) 209,050 7071 2.4 283,547 257,718 892,364 2,633,364
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - - (333,295) (333,295)
Transfer to statutory reserves LNy | - - - 30,188 - - - - (30,188) -
Currency translation differences EBpEER - - - - - - - 78,727 - 78727
Fair value gains on FVOCI BAFEIALMZARAZ
SHEENRTELE - - - - - - 1,000 - - 1,000
Fair value gains on transfers of ERNFEARENEZAT
owner-occupied properties to Bl MR
investment properties, net of tax - - - - - - 91,067 - - 91,067
At 31 December 2021 RZZ--F+ZfA=1+-R 978,251 7,746 (4,624) 239,238 7071 2.4 375,614 336,445 528,881 2,470,863
Note:  Statutory reserves include statutory reserve fund and enterprise expansion fund. Mz : ZATHECEETAHERCERREES - RE

In accordance with relevant rules and regulations on foreign investment
enterprises established in the PRC, the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required
to transfer an amount of their profit for the year to the statutory reserve fund,
until the accumulated total of the fund reaches 50% of their registered capital.
The statutory reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the relevant
authority, to make good of previous years' losses or to increase the capital of

these subsidiaries.

The appropriation to the enterprise expansion fund is solely determined by the
board of directors of the subsidiaries in the PRC. The enterprise expansion fund
can only be used to increase capital of group companies or to expand their
production operations upon approval by the relevant authority.

REPBERIIEERECEZABRA LA - &
RAEAZFENBABTEN - EFEEHNSEE R
EXREAME  BEERFNARSMBEAEMA
A50% © EAABMEHAER  EAEARSERA
ARRBAEFEZBRIEMEENBARZA

N o

CEFRESZOARMBKATESHBARZE
FEET CHEBRELER CEXBREDE
AAEENEEBTRARZEAR  HAFERITH
EEXER -
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21 Deferred income tax 21
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the
same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

BB AMRORNIT 2 RERA BB IRE &
HENEAR IR B BRI BRI S R B A — Bt
THEMERE - NEREETMEREE R
BE - AEBELT

2021 2020

—E-—F —TZTHF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Deferred income tax assets EEMBHERE 105,940 99,809
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEMBHARE (143,809) (114,378)
(37,869) (14,569)

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are
expected to be settled after more than 12 months.

The movements in net deferred income tax liabilities are as

RIEFSBUE BE MIRIE PR ST B ETR N
Bt _{EARREME-

BEFSHABEFEIEHNT

follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
At 1 January w—A—H (14,569) (876)
Credited to the consolidated profit or loss &t A4R& 1828 (KisE27)

(Note 27) 7,268 1,747
Charged to equity (Note 27) BB (F3E27) (30,357) (16,612)
Exchange differences EHERE (211) 1,172
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H (37.869) (14,569)
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Deferred income tax (Continued) 21 EZEMREH (&)
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during RIEMEHEAERBBERFEN B8 (T5T
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of RRR—BE AR EE 2 &) BT
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:
Decelerated Provisions  Net fair value
tax for losses of ~ Government
depreciation  inventories FVPL grants Tax losses Total
RATEIIE
EBRRTR
BreREE
ZDTEER
HERERE RERE R BARENS HEFR M@t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TAT FAT TAR TAT TET
Deferred income tax assets ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁé
At 1 January 2020 i S - g = 31,667 61,743 2,523 316 829 97,078
Exchange differences ER%%”E 2,749 4,237 146 17 — 7,149
Credited/(charged) to the consolidated profit or K& 4 Bzt A/ (1K)
loss 709 7,909 (196) (45) — 8,377
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 WZZ_ZE+-A=1—H
k=T —-%-F— 35,125 73,889 2,473 288 829 112,604
Exchange differences Bz 566 2,537 80 9 — 3,192
Credited/(charged) to the consolidated profit or W& & Bzt A/ (1)
loss — 3,726 (156) (49) (829) 2,692
At 31 December 2021 WZZEZ-4+ZA=+-H 35,691 80,152 2,397 248 — 118,488
Revaluation of  Undistributed
Accelerated tax  buildings and  profits of PRC
depreciation land use rights entities Total
EfBFR PEGE
MRBEFE T fEFAE Ko EIBEF @gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET FiET FET FET
Deferred income tax liabilities ELREHEaE
At 1 January 2020 RZZE=TF—HA—H 1,132 85,884 10,938 97,954
Exchange differences 3R — 5,977 — 5,977
Charged to the consolidated profit or ~ B#% A BB
loss 129 611 5,890 6,630
Charged to equity BRERME — 16,612 — 16,612
At 31 December 2020 and RZFZZF+_A=+—HK
1 January 2021 T —%—-A—H 1,261 109,084 16,828 127,173
Exchange differences EHERE — 3,403 — 3,403
Charged/(credited) to the consolidated ~ E#r& Bz k(5T A)
profit or loss 123 (324) (4,375) (4,576)
Charged to equity BRER MRk — 30,357 — 30,357
At 31 December 2021 RZE=Z—F+=-A=+—8H 1,384 142,520 12,453 156,357
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21

22

Deferred income tax (Continued) 21 EEFREM (&)
As at 31 December 2020, deferred income tax liabilities of RZZZZE+_A=+—0 KpHhEE
approximately HK$9,555,000 have not been established for the T B B8 A R i R BE S & A ££191,100,0007%
withholding taxation that would be payable on the unremitted TENZEBEHNNERELERMESEREBED
earnings of certain subsidiaries in the PRC totaling 9,555,000/ 7T * AR GEGIZEMNE QR
HK$191,100,000 as the Company controls the dividend policies of MR BB AZENB AR T AR &
these subsidiaries and it is not probable that these subsidiaries RS IRZERBAF -
would distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried ) A8 B8 750 745 M) 1 BT 35 38 R R JE BR ) ) &
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit TR EgEREETEERRRBELMENREA
through the future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not BE o ZNE (B0 M O] 45 B DA S5 R R FE AR TR
recognise deferred income tax assets of approximately WA 2 E518491,107,715,0008 T (— T - &
HK$122,454,000 (2020: HK$103,662,000) in respect of losses F 661,812,000 7T) M HERIEILPTIFTHE
amounting to approximately HK$1,107,715,000 (2020: E#122,454,0008 L (Z T =ZZ F :
HK$661,812,000), that can be carried forward against future 103,662,000/ 7T) - MIBEEHR - - —
taxable income. The tax losses expire from 2022 to 2026 (2020: BT RF(ZEZTF ZT=—FZF
2021 to 2025). TECRF)ER-
Trade and other payables 22 ENEZRAREMESRE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBx FiBT
Trade and bill payables BB PERRRENER 432,995 340,233
Accrued employee benefit expenses FEEHE B @A 2 26,575 35,212
Customer deposits EPES® 54,648 50,587
VAT and other tax payables EEH R EER T IE 21,476 38,510
Accrued operating expenses FERT & BRI 51,692 49,361
Other payables H BT 5018 77,282 55,387
Amounts due to related parties FE A< B2 75 7R I8 (B RE33(0))
(Note 33(c)) — 487
664,668 569,777
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22 Trade and other payables (Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade and bill payables based on invoice
date is as follows:

22

FEft & 5 BRI H A B 7R

(%)

JERTE SR BN IR B
DITWR -

RHEIZRER

2021 2020

—B-—F e

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

0 to 30 days 0&30H 301,998 239,971
31 to 60 days 31260H 56,194 35,011
61 to 90 days 61290H 12,828 10,826
Over 90 days B3890 H 61,975 54,425
432,995 340,233

Bill payables are with average maturity dates of within 2 months.

The amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts of the Group'’s trade and other payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

RNEEREZFHEHASMEAA -

ENEERRIBEREER £

REBENRNE SRR HAM
E{EA T EEEHE -

BRIRERE

JEAS FIR A R

2021 2020
—EZ—-F —EFF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
HK$ T 51,470 35,572
RMB AR 561,836 442,322
Other currencies HME® 5,163 7,541
618,469 485,435

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate JERT B 5 IR & B A B R ARE B A

their fair values.

AFEME -
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£ 23 Bank borrowings 23 RITER
T
o
s 2021 2020
@ —EB-—F —ECTF
5 HK$°000 HK$'000
= FER FHET
o
> . A o
= Bank borrowings — secured IRITIER — AT 250,976 270,129
c
QL
o)
S Borrowings are analysed as follows: BRATOT
o
S 2021 2020
—E-—F T -THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Bank borrowing due for repayment within ~ —FREHIEETHEEE
one year which contains a repayment on KEBIGERZIBITER —
demand clauses — secured BHEA 200,916 107,246
Bank borrowing due for repayment after one —F & EIHIEET HEEE
year which contains a repayment on KEBIGERZBITER —
demand clauses — secured BHEA 24,161 91,493
Term loan due for repayment within one year —F A ZIEFEE 2 B HER
— secured — BHEF 25,899 71,390
Total bank borrowings RITIE AR 250,976 270,129
At 31 December 2021, the secured bank borrowings were secured RZZZ—F+-A=+—H BEHRRT

ERAMBBRME FELA177,542,0008 7T (=
T T AF 0 274,275,0008 T0) 2 E TEF
(ffske) - FREAE (M7 RIEEME
(M5E8) AR AR A B TH B R AR
A AERERR -

by certain buildings (Note 6), right-of-use assets (Note 7) and
investment property (Note 8) with aggregated net book value of
approximately HK$177,542,000 (2020: HK$274,275,000) and
corporate guarantees from the Company and certain subsidiaries.
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Bank borrowings (Continued) 23

An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s bank

R 17 & =X (&)

AEBRITEFRAERBEREE 25

borrowings by type and currency is as follows: N
2021 2020
—B-—F e
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
HK$ at floating rates BT FEIF R 225,077 198,739
RMB at fixed rates AR - BIE = 25,899 71,390
250,976 270,129
The effective interest rates per annum at the balance sheet date REZER 2 EBRERNEMT -
are as follows:
2021 2020
—EZ—-F —EFF
HK$ BT 1.87% 2.29%
RMB AR 4.24% 4.41%

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate their fair
values.

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

RITERZREERZEAFERE -

AEBARERERBENT

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FATT

Floating rate expiring within one year FEIRE - —FANER 240,000 405,236
Fixed rate expiring within one year BEEFME - —FANER 294,587 353,609
534,587 758,845

The facilities expiring within one year are annual facilities subject to
review at various dates during 2021 (2020: same).

—FARENCREAFERE AR
T FATRBRTFUEN(ZE=ZTF

GEICDR
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25

24 Other income, net 24 HAug A FEE
2021 2020
—s-—F —E B4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FET
Government grants gk 3,348 11,577
Rental income Ha A 12,151 7,217
Investment income FEBA 1,846 2,223
Building management income BFEBRA 520 1,150
Gain on sales of equipment to a joint venture [A—KA L R AIHEREN
(Note 33(a)) Wezs (P9 3E33(a) 184 —
Others EAh, 80 443
18,129 22,610
Other gains, net 25 Hilhz= F8E
2021 2020
—ES-—F —E-BF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHER FAET
Gain on expropriation of land and T R B M AR (B EE)
properties (Note) 25,553 431,538
Gain on disposal of FVPL in Zhejiang HERAINTERNIEATE
Haoran (Note 15) NERTEERRPEREECZS
B E Y (HFE15) — 193,275
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—REEE AT KE
(Note 11) (MHEE11) 8,425 —
Net exchange losses &N E B8 1,301 (16,426)
Net fair value gains on FVPL — realised %A F(EFIFEAERRTE
BrzemEENDTEY
wFE — BER 48 675
Net fair value gains on FVPL — unrealised %A F(EFEAERRTE
(Note 15) BrzemEENDTEY
R — REBH
(B=E15) 823 600
Fair value (losses)/gains on investment REWENRTE(EER),/
properties (Note 8) Yoz (FI7E8) (10,627) 187
Loss on disposal of property, plant and  HEWE « BE MEHH
equipment E5 18 34 (2,017)
Reversal of provision for customer claims &P & &% & &80 — 439
25,557 608,271
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Other gains, net (Continued) 25 Hthrz F8E (&)

Note: L
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's land and properties located in HEZ_Z-—F+-_A=1+—BLEFE AEELAMIM
Hangzhou with net book value of HK$1,485,000 (2020: HK$41,466,000), consisting of ) R [ F (8 41,485,000 7T (ZZ ZF 4 : 41,466,00078
property, plant and equipment of HK$1,376,000 (2020: HK$36,494,000) and right-of-use T T R E (B E - RE &R H1,376,00078 7T
assets of HK$109,000 (2020: HK$4,972,000) were expropriated by local government. (== £ :36,494,000/8 7T) & FI#E & & 109,000 7T
Relevant compensation amounting to HK$27,038,000 (2020: HK$473,004,000) were (ZT=FF : 4,972,000/ 70) ) # & BT B - &K
granted by local government in this regard, resulting in a net gain of HK$25,553,000 3B b 7% T AEBA 4 (8 £27,038,0008 L (Z T T F :
(2020: HK$431,538,000). 473,004,000787T) + A i EE AR MR 25 25,553,000 7T (=%
T4 2 431,538,000 7T) ¢

Compensation proceed of HK$21,630,000 (2020: HK$189,202,000) has been received by
the Group during the current year while the remaining balance of HK$5,408,000 (2020:
HK$283,802,000) was recorded as part of the Group’'s other receivables as at 31
December 2021 and 2020. The amount of HK$283,802,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020 was subsequently received by the Group during the year ended 31

REENAFE N B YR E © 821,630,000 7T (ZF
Z T4 : 189,202,000 7T) * i #4 %8 5,408,000/ 7T (=T
Z T : 283,802,000 L) ARFFAREBR T - —F
R—T-_THF+-_A=+—BMHMREKRE - AEERH
BREBE-T-_—F+-A=t+—PLEEEKIEE=

26

December 2021.

ToTFE+ZA=+—HIEFERFRIAE283,802,000 T

Finance income/(costs), net 26 BEEWA(RA)FEE
2021 2020
—EZ-F —EEF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Finance income — interest income on BMEWA — FEWAKRE
— bank deposits — RITFER 5,599 3,334
— promissory note — AHER 4,374 1,793
9,973 5,127
Finance costs =R %N
— interest expense on bank borrowings — RITEFRFEFRAZ (3,060) (11,457)
— interest expense on lease liabilities — HEEBNERX (801) (895)
(3,861) (12,352)
— amount capitalised (Note) — BEAR{ &5 (M) 1,265 2,748
(2,596) (9,604)
Finance income/(costs), net BMEWA(RA) F5E 7,377 (4,477)

Note:  The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be
capitalised is the weighted average interest rate applicable to the Group's
general borrowings during the year, in this case 1.16% (2020: 3.05%).

M : RETHTURANCHERKASRBERNE

AR B F R LM ) — RIS

FFIE116% (ZTFF :3.05%) °

i 3K AT 4 P 0 D0
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g 27 Income tax expense 27 FifS®iEX
T
o
s 2021 2020
@ —EB-—F —ECTF
5 HK$°000 HK$'000
a FET FET
Q
> . P vy
3 Current income tax BIHEIFT 2R
c > =g Y] B
o — Hong Kong profits tax (Note (a)) — BEFEH (k@) 188 3,357
2 — PRC enterprise income tax (Note (b)) — REIREMREH
o} .
S (B &£ (D)) 11,971 113,693
S — Over-provision in prior years — BAFEBEREE — (59)
i Withholding tax TE 15,107 25,028
Deferred income tax (Note 21) EEFTB R (MFE21) (7,268) (1,747)
172
19,998 140,272
Notes: Bt 3E
(a) Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 8.25% on the (a) HE_T-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE FHMHEa
estimated assessable profit up to HK$2,000,000 and 16.5% on any part of i FI S #8382,000,0008 i E - BEFE
estimated assessable profit over HK$2,000,000 for the year ended 31 December TLATE R 8.25% 1E I B & - T st (b 51 FERBUR A
2021 (2020: Same). #382,000,00078 7L A EEEEI BB A S - ALK
16.5% EHEE (ZZ 2 : {iR) «
(b) The PRC enterprise income tax is calculated based on the statutory profits of (b) FEMCERGSH AN EFBEEMK LA HER

subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC in accordance with the PRC tax laws and
regulations. The standard PRC enterprise income tax rate is 25% during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, one subsidiary of the
Group, Hangzhou Fuxi Fashion Co. Ltd., is qualified for a preferential income tax
rate of 20% under the tax breaks to small and micro business. The remaining
PRC subsidiaries of the Group are subject to standard PRC enterprise income tax
rate of 25%.

AR EBUE ROER A HEEE R B H - B
HE_Z-_—FRZF-FFT_A=+—HIt
FEEENPECEMEBBER25%

REE_FT-_—FR-F-_TF+-A=+—8
IHEE AEEH-RWBARNMMEERLES
FRARRE/ NI EE AR EEMA EREHF20%
WEBMERBE REEMHGTRENE QR
YA 25 % B 1R AE o B 1b 2 FT A5 BB AT -
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Income tax expense (Continued) 27

The tax on the Group’s (loss)/profit before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as

REMBHRERWE

FriEHF < (&)

AEBRLER TSR (518), 8 F 2 Bia R
e FRAR & B 205 ME A 2 IR FIa T R 5t
HzBE®BRERNT

follows:
2021 2020
—B-—F e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FiBT
(Loss)/profit before income tax BETS R AT (B518), % 7 (312,196) 293,266
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable %%& &)SAHE R %A@ B 2 A
to profits in the respective jurisdictions MR E 2B (71,027) 61,685
Income not subject to tax BERT 2 WA (6,099) (7,676)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax B ANERBER ZHIEEE
losses (3,783) (26,667)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes L b3 1,706 20,474
Over-provision in prior years W FEEERE — (59)
Tax losses not recognised KRR 2 BIEE 18 84,094 67,487
Withholding tax TEE 15,107 25,028
Income tax expense FrEHiA% 19,998 140,272

The tax charge relation to components of other comprehensive

Hih2mEK A, (BB BRE D < HIE S H

income/(loss) is as follows: UNNE
2021 2020
—B--F i Sl 33
Before tax Tax After tax Before tax Tax After tax
BRBEAT BE BRBi#% Rt A m R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TR TR TR
Currency translation differences ERHEER 78,727 - 78,727 135,947 — 135,947
Fair value gains on transfers of owner- ERMERTERESA
occupied properties and land use rights to & E 2 A FEYNS
investment properties (Notes 6 and 7) (BisE6%7) 121,424 (30,357) 91,067 66,445 (16,612) 49,833
BAFEFAZBZAEKA
ZEREENATAEK
Fair value gains/(losses) on FVOCI =/ (B8) 1,000 - 1,000 (1,749) - (1,749)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hiz2EKA/(BR) 201,151 (30,357) 170,794 200,643 (16,612) 184,031
Deferred tax (Note 21) RIERIE (MFE21) (30,357) (16,612)
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REMBHRRME

28 Expenses by nature 28 RMESEZHX
2021 2020
—s-—F —E B4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Auditor’s remuneration ZE R &
— Audit services — BER® 2,600 2,600
— Non-audit services — FEZRT 760 400
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) | A ERE () 775 775
Depreciation of property, plant and M REREEITE
equipment (Note 6) GEL) 81,457 85,691
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 7) {FREEEFE (Mix7) 16,822 19,322
Employee benefit expenses (including EERFMEZ (BEESM
directors’ emolument) (Note 29) %) (MiEE29) 363,986 343,934
Changes in inventories of finished goods and Rk @ R ERRFEE E)
work in progress 244,109 24,151
Raw materials and consumables used ERERRME REE R 515,858 714,071
Processing and subcontracting charges MI k5 EER 213,022 180,473
Direct operating expenses arising from EEHESWAZEREMEZ
investment properties that generate rental BEEEERY
income 88 241
Operating lease rental in respect of property, #1% - BMERZRHEZLE
plant and equipment HEMS 10,101 6,322
Provision for impairment for inventories FEREREE(MHE12)
(Note 12) 193,748 105,704
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ¥ % - [ &E MR ERE
(Note 6) (HizEe) 6,038 —
Others Hity 305,150 282,378
Total cost of sales, selling, marketing and HEKRA  HE - EHRD
distribution costs and administrative SHRC A DA R AT 2 42 58
expenses 1,954,514 1,766,062
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Employee benefit expenses (including 29 EERAFX (BEEEMH

directors’ emoluments) £)
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Salaries, wages and bonuses e TARTELA 282,648 283,741
Pension costs — defined contribution plans  EREKA — FEER
(Note) B GED 50,797 19,586
Staff welfare 8 T&EF| 30,541 40,607
363,986 343,934
Note: Bt
Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to participate in defined AEEMPHEWNBARIZEEELBEREMTBNERERE
contribution retirement scheme administered and operated by the local municipal Wz ERETRRAE - AKEFENBRARRKIERES
government. The Group’s PRC subsidiaries contribute 26.1% (2020: 26.7%) of EARHS2261% (ZF_FF : 26.7%) W Zat &5
employees’ basic salary to the scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the employees. REE ZRIKEFIEE -
The Group has also established a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF scheme”) in AEETRBEBRLAHE AR E ((RREtE)) -
Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF scheme are held in separate trustee-administered BEREHBZEERBUGETIAEE -AEMERERYEA
funds. Both the Group and the employees are required to contribute 5% of the BRALEERBWAZS%RIELHR FIRATEES
employee’s relevant income up to a maximum of HK$1,500 per employee per month. 1,500/ 7T ©
(a) Five highest paid individuals (a) EEEESFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in REBFASZETMHzAEALEE
the Group for the year include four (2020: four) directors of RARMNEESE(ZZT_FF: 9
the Company whose emoluments are reflected in the %) EM e R 3325 2947
analysis presented in Note 33. The emoluments payable to WM e FA - ENBRT—RBAL(Z
the remaining one (2020: one) individual during the year are ToTF—R)ZMEET
as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Basic salaries, housing allowances and EAH & - BEZ R EAM
other allowances AL 897 845
Contributions to pension plans RIKEE AR 18 18
Discretionary bonuses BB 4L — 90
915 953
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29

30

Employee benefit expenses (including
directors’ emoluments) (Continued)

(@) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
The emoluments fell within the following band:

BERIR (BEEEMH
%) (&)

(a) EEEREHMAL (E)
e &EEMT

Number of individuals

AH
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Emolument band B & &5 &
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,000
BT — _
HK$500,001-HK$1,000,000 500,001 7L 2 1,000,000
7T 1 1
1 1
30 BR(BR) BF

(Loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on the
Group's loss attributable to equity holders of the Company of
approximately HK$333,295,000 (2020: profit of HK$146,044,000)
and weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year of 2,099,818,000 (2020: 2,099,818,000).

Diluted loss/earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential shares.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were
no dilutive potential ordinary shares deemed to be issued under the
share option scheme as there are no outstanding options during
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

FREX(F18),/ BF TIREAQ B RiER
B AL AR EEEE49333,295,0008 7 (=
T~ TAE ¢ 5E7146,044,00058 7T) RERAD
1T IBAR 2 hnE T 15 202,099,818,000 %
—Z T4 :2099,818,000/%) 5t & -

GREEEE B DRE A BT ER
0 RIREITHEINORAD Z I 715
SN REAT -

HE-Z_—FR-_ZT-_FF+-_RA=*+—
BIEFE @ BESES TIREERET 8%
TEAMEE#SEER RAREBEZ-Z
R ZE_EF+_A=Z+—HLEFE
1A M AR TT R B BB AR A o
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31 Notes to consolidated statement of cash 31 HZABRESREHRKRHE
flows
(a) Reconciliation of operating (loss)/profit to net cash used in S (BB, /R REEMARSF
operations is as follows: HERMAT ¢
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Operating (loss)/profit e (B18),m T (315,542) 297,577
Adjustments for: HE
— Depreciation of property, plant — W BERRENE
and equipment 81,457 85,691
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets — {FFAEEEITE 16,822 19,322
— Amortisation of intangible assets — — & E Y 10,754 6,509
— (Gain)/loss on disposal of — HEME  BEKERE
property, plant and equipment W),/ KB (34) 2,017
— Gain on expropriation of land and ~ — i R ¥ EH R
properties (25,553) (431,538)
— Net fair value gains on FVPL — BRAFEIEEERK
PEREZEHEEDN
NFEW R FEE (823) (600)
— Gain on disposal of FVPL in — HERHIEARNE
Zhejiang Haoran N ESREERE
PREZGHEED
W= — (193,275)
— Gain on disposal of an associate ~ — HEB &R A/ (8,425) —
— Fair value losses/(gains) on — REME 2 ATE
investment properties BB () 10,627 (187)
— Provision for impairment of — FEREEE
inventories 193,748 105,704
— Provision for impairment losses on  — & &b & 2 R (E E 18 B 5
financial assets 13,980 109,667
— Impairment losses on intangible — BREEAEREER
assets 14,490 7,074
— Impairment losses of property, — W BERZEHRE
plant and equipment [=gi=] 6,038 —
— Elimination of profits from — HETHEX SR
downstream transactions 233 —
Changes in working capital: EEEe B
— Inventories — 58 (268,830) (46,970)
— Trade and other receivables — EWE Z R R EA
JE W kIR 14,586 (101,100)
— FVPL — BRAFEIRERRR
HEEBEZSMEE — 361
— Trade and other payables — Fgﬁ,%f%ﬁﬁ K EAth
JEAS SR 123,737 45,892
Net cash used in operations KEFTARE F5E (132,735) (93,856)
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31 Notes to consolidated statement of cash 31
flows (Continued)

(b)

(9]

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise:

REBRERE

(b) MEHEEHRZRE

R M (&)

WERN - HEME-

BB KRl SHRIARE

2021 2020
—B-—F —E_EH
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHT
Net book amounts BREFE 17,118 4,338
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEME  WE RE#E
plant and equipment (Note 25) Wz, (E18) (M 3E25) 34 (2,017)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BERKBS
plant and equipment ;I8 17,152 2,321
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, compensation () REEREN EEEW T R
from expropriation of land and properties comprise: BAfESE
2021 2020
—B-—fF —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Net book amounts BREFE 1,485 41,466
Gain on expropriation of land and T3 R M E EA U E
properties (Note 25) (Pt 5% 25) 25,553 431,538
Compensation from expropriation of — tHt REBAHES
land and properties 27,038 473,004
Representing: KNS
— Compensation received from — BEWBAHES
government 21,630 189,202
— Compensation receivable from — B ES (FE14)
government (Note 14) 5,408 283,802
27,038 473,004
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L8 R AR A ()

31 Notes to consolidated statement of cash 31 ZHZEBERK
flows (Continued)

(d) Net debt reconciliation (d) EEZEYER
This section sets out the reconciliation of liabilities arising REEFIRNEREFEREETDEE
from financing activities for each of the years presented. ZBEHE-
Lease
Liabilities Borrowings Total
HEEE (RN @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT FHEIT
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-ZF—H—H 29,424 424,855 454,279
New leases S 9,844 — 9,844
Financing cash flows RMERSME (13,138) (158,972) (172,110)
Exchange differences fE R =% 617 4,246 4,863
At 31 December 2020 RZE_TF
+=-—A=+—H 26,747 270,129 296,876
At 1 January 2021 RZEZ—F—H—H 26,747 270,129 296,876
New leases S 9,702 — 9,702
Financing cash flows MERERE (12,443) (20,770) (33,213)
Exchange differences EHEE 1,168 1,617 2,785
At 31 December 2021 RZTE=Z—%F
+=ZA=+—H” 25,174 250,976 276,150
32 Commitments 32 &IE
(a) Capital commitment (a) BAREIE
At 31 December 2021, the Group had the following capital RZBZ—F+ZA=+—08 &%
commitments: E A AT EARRE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Contracted but not provided for: BRI EREE
— Property, plant and equipment — W BERRE 1,073,981 15,371
Note: Bt T

RZTEZ—F+—AZ+0mA BERmMMEH+=
EHEF 2 R R R L AEETI Y — &
NEXBERESH ZEEFRERAEENAID
ERAZE IHR AEREBIGEUARAREME
A BHER-_T-_t+tF+-A=-+—Hfx
Io

On 24 November 2021, a series of Industrial Park Construction Contracts were
entered into for the land foundation and the concrete structure construction of
12 new buildings in Hangzhou as the Group’s headquarters and offices,
factories, warehouses and staff quarters, as well as for leasing purposes, which
are expected to be completed before 31 December 2027.
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32 Commitments (Continued)

(b)

(c)

32 #&¥E (&)

Operating lease commitments as lessor (b) REHFERE —EFRAEHAA
The Group leases offices, dormitories and plant under non- REERENATHHEALEEEHZE
cancellable operating lease agreements. The leases have EPRNE BEkEE ZEHEN
varying terms between 1 and 5 years, escalation claims and FHOFEESFE2MH) - NIERERELD
renewal rights. EZB TR -
At 31 December 2021, the Group had total future minimum R-ZTE-_—F+=-A=+—8 &&
lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases falling ERBE N AT F BRI 2 N A B
due as follows: EHE 2 RRREBERIBERA LT
T
2021 2020
—BC--fF —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
— No later than 1 year — THEB1F 45,964 28,066
— Later than 1 year and no later — BRI FETBE2F
than 2 years 40,209 24,430
— Later than 2 years and no later — BR2F(ETHBAE3F
than 3 years 21,975 18,849
— Later than 3 years and no later — BR3F(ETBAEIF
than 4 years 16,040 4,795
— Later than 4 years and no later — HBiR4AF(ETEBMASF
than 5 years 5,441 3,697
— Later than 5 years — S5F L E 18 15,445
129,647 95,282
Operating lease commitment as lessee () REHERE —FEREEA

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-

A EEHER T AR EE I

cancellable operating leases not recognised in the MERAERHBEREBENRERE
consolidated financial statements are as follows: mr
2021 2020
—B=-—-F —ECFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FET
Land and buildings THRET
— No later than 1 year — TEBB1F 3,185 966
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33 Significant related party transactions

The Group is controlled by Longerview Investments Limited
(incorporated in the British Virgin Islands), which owns 71% of the
Company’s shares. The remaining 29% of the shares are widely
held. The ultimate parent of the Group is Longerview Investments
Limited (incorporated in the British Virgin Islands).

The directors are of the view that the following companies are
related parties of the Group:

Name Relationship with the Group

Huasheng Accessories An associate
Hangzhou Ranyue An associate
Ting Camuto

CT Fashion

A joint venture
A joint venture

The name of Huasheng Accessories and Hangzhou Ranyue referred
to in the above represents management’s best efforts at translating
the Chinese name of these companies as no English name has
been registered or available.

(@) Transactions with related parties
In the opinion of the directors, the transactions below were
conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business and
the pricing of these transactions has been determined based
on mutual negotiation and agreement between the Group
and the related parties.

33

REMBHRERWE

EXRBERRXS

7N £2 B Blongerview Investments Limited
(REBRABSTMA) Frizs - BEfF
ARB TN % 2B BT Z229% BN B AR
A o AR E 2 & &8 D E Rlongerview
Investments Limited (5 22 88 iE 2 B &K

) e

BEERRTNRARAAREE ZBES

=L BEAREEZBR
R X /N
T 513 X /N
Ting Camuto RN
ERRE RN

P B SE BB AN 5030 B R o T 44
REXERE HEAXEBRNERERNEE
HEX BT -

(a) EBRRELETZXRE
BEERR TXZRGTIRAERIE
BERBBEPET MUFRXHZE
1B AR R AN = [ B 05 B ARTE P J
haE MEE

2021 2020
—sS=-—F —E T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAERT

Purchases of accessories from ) AR SRR BE s
Huasheng Accessories 1,659 3,073
Sales of garments to Hangzhou Ranyue A4/ /N £3-45 88 & Ak 7% 19,101 16,593
Sales of equipment to CT Fashion MERRREERE 3,629 —
Management fee to CT Fashion MEKKEINERE 1,587 —
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33 Significant related party transactions
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Key management compensation
The aggregate remuneration of key personnel management,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors and

33

EXHERTXRS (&)

(b) FEEEEZHRM
TEEEEBARNT

o B AR AR (BRI

?w&%%ﬁﬁﬁ%$ RAIEERE

certain of the highest paid employees, as disclosed in Notes SEFMALHEE) WT
29 and 35, is as following:
2021 2020
—EB-—F —TTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FH&T
Salaries and other short-term employee ¥ & K H b & #E 8 2 F
benefits 11,835 11,210
Post-employment benefits RIKAEF 131 108
11,966 11,318

Year-end balances with related parties

() EHEESZFRER

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHER FHET

Receivable from a joint venture FEW & & A EIRIE 1,237 —

Receivables from associates JE Wi Bk 8 A B RIE 38,837 36,386

Payables to associates FETESE & A BRI FRIE — 487
* The terms of balances with related parties are disclosed in Notes 14 and * BB 2 BB GER D BIR K14 %

22, respectively. 224" -
The carrying amounts of these balances approximate their EEHR REEEEATERE
fair values.

The amounts due from/to related parties were denominated N, FEAS R HOEIAA REEEHE ©

in RMB.

As at 31 December 2021, amount due from a joint venture
of HK$3,265,000 (2020: HK$3,910,000) has been fully
impaired.

RZZEZ—F+=ZA=+—8 Bk
—M & %A R FKI83,265,0008 7T (=
=T —F4F 3,910,000 ) & &R

B -
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34 Balance sheet and reserve movement of 34 AAQTZEEEEREFEES

the Company 1)
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZETHF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FET
ASSETS 5E
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR Z®RE 1,217,973 1,216,961
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries G NGIE S 535,894 536,241
Other receivables and prepayments b f& W B & T8 15 5118 302 290
Cash and bank balances R RIRITHEH 937 659
537,133 537,190
Total assets EEHATE 1,755,106 1,754,151
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to equity AAFRESHEAELESR
holders of the Company
Share capital f& 7 209,982 209,982
Reserves HE (a 1,542,200 1,541,722
Total equity AR 1,752,182 1,751,704
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals HtERNHRIERESER 2,924 2,447
Total equity and liabilities EEREEBEASE 1,755,106 1,754,151
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(@)
>0
2
)
=
=}
@
@
£ 34 Balance sheet and reserve movement of 34 AAFzEEBEBERNRHFES
T the Company (Continued) B (&)
a
2
] Note: Bt 5E -
[
g__ (a) Reserve movement of the Company (a) AKDTZHEES
@
= Other reserve Retained earnings Total
:g HitfH B REEF et
3 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
S8 FET FET FET
By}
@D
3 At 1 January 2020 R-Z-—ZF#—-A—H 1,455,617 85,529 1,541,146
~ Profit for the year FREF — 576 576
S
= At 31 December 2020 R-FE-TF+-A=+—A 1,455,617 86,105 1,541,722
At 1 January 2021 S 1,455,617 86,105 1,541,722
Profit for the year F RN F — 478 478
At 31 December 2021 W2 —%+-A=+—8H 1,455,617 86,583 1,542,200
35 Benefits and interests of directors 35 EEZEARER
The remuneration of each director of the Company paid or payable AEBEENRENAARSTEST ZHMHT
by the Group is set out below: R
For the year ended 31 December 2021: HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE:
Estimated
money value Contributions
Discretionary of other Housing  to pension
Fees  Basic Salary bonus benefit  allowances plans Total
HibER Bhe
He b:9.¥:53 BERL #ieREE EEERH HE 28 b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Name #e FEL FER TR FEL FER TR TAR
Ting Man Yi TER - 3,000 - - - 9 3,009
Ding Jianer TER - 2,130 - - - 18 2,148
Ting Hung Yi (Chief Executive Officer) THR(7TH%H) - 3,000 - - — 18 3,018
Cheung Ting Yin, Peter REZ - 1,534 - - — 18 1,552
Cheng Chi Pang 85 240 — - - — - 240
Wong Chi Keung BB 360 — - - — - 360
Leung Man Kit 2RE 240 — - - — - 240
840 9,664 - - - 63 10,567
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35 EECEAMNRER (B)

Benefits and interests of directors

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020: HE_Z_ZTF+_A=+T—HILFE:

Estimated
money value Contributions
Discretionary of other Housing to pension
Fees  Basic Salary bonus benefit allowances plans Total
H i8R Bike
#e EXFe BN [EHeBEE BERE TR @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name #4 TEL FET TR TEL FET TR TEL
Ting Man i TE% - 2813 - - - 18 283
Ding Jianer TER — 1,997 — — — 18 2,015
Ting Hung Yi (Chief Executive Officer) TR (TTHAEH) - 2813 - - - 18 2,831
Cheung Ting Yin, Peter RTE — 1,446 — — — 18 1,464
Cheng Chi Pang gEH 240 - - - - - 20
Wong Chi Keung BB 360 — - - — - 360
Leung Man Kit RRE 240 - - - - - 240
840 9,069 - - - n 9,981

FA-BERL LEEREMEZLMER
BEEXNREN T EABME  RAREH - R
REBH(—T—FF : E) - BEEHE
FIRB M EE = RE BN E =S ERR
B(—Z_Z2F :E) HELES  HiZH
EELHEEBMNEMRI L 2ER  EER
HEMIH (T _FF &) -

No emoluments, retirement benefits, payments or benefits in
respect of termination of directors’ services were paid or payable,
directly or indirectly, to the directors during the year (2020: Nil).
No consideration was provided to or receivable by third parties for
making available directors’ services (2020: Nil). There are no loans,
quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of the directors, their
controlled bodies corporate and connected entities (2020: None).

RERRFAEMBRGEFERRRRE

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation

to the Company’s business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year (2020: None).

m— G EARREERETERRERZER
EK%EZE@ﬂK"ﬂ%Vﬁ%ZEHEK?&
5 RERAGH(ZF_FF )
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) A summary of the published results and assets, liabilites and non- AEEBEIAGEGTRFELEHNEEREE A
_; controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set &R IFEFEHIMEEZMEIIHNOT -
o forth below.
o
g.
ﬁ For the financial years ended 31 December
5 BE+-A=t+-BLHEEE
g (Amounts expressed in HK$'000, unless specified)
- (REEERAND ZUTERET)
é 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
= “T—+E ZT-N\FE —T-NFE —T-TF |ZF--F
o)
3
i Revenue KA 2,335,429 2,274,818 1,899,011 1,542,425 1,609,266
Q Cost of sales HeEMAR (1,670,143)  (1,711,636)  (1,524,650)  (1,318,699) | (1,475,386)
Gross profit EF 665,286 563,182 374,361 223,726 133,880
Other income, net H A A FER 29,267 21,476 33,846 22,610 18,129
Other gains, net Hofth W 5505 58 53,435 52,115 62,886 608,271 25,557
Selling, marketing and distribution ~ $5%& + &8 &%
costs Ak [0 (277,417) (258,431) (228,630) (188,174) (212,003)
Administrative expenses THRAX (312,478) (310,324) (281,598) (259,189) (267,125)
Net (provision for)/reversal of CRMEERBEER
impairment loss of financial assets (¥ &), /B @558 — (19,025) 9,425 (109,667) (13,980)
Operating profit/(loss) RN,/ (B8) 158,093 48,993 (29,710) 297,577 (315,542)
Finance income/(costs), net BMERN(RAK)FE 2,678 (3,261) (6,244) (4,477) 7,377
Share of results of investment DEEREREARS
accounted for using the equity BEEE
method (3,423) (4,457) (1,158) 166 (4,031)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETS R AT A (EE) 157,348 41,275 (37.,112) 293,266 (312,196)
Income tax expense FERRAx (16,901) (14,067) (18,547) (140,272) (19,998)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREF/(E8B) 140,447 27,208 (55,659) 152,994 (332,194)
Non-controlling interests JEPR G MR 2 9,242 (6,163) 973 (6,950) (1,101)
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity RAFREREA
holders of the Company R, (EE) 149,689 21,045 (54,686) 146,044 (333,295)
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As at 31 December
W+=A=+—H
(Amounts expressed in HK$'000, unless specified)

(REEEBN 2UTETLS)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—FtF ZF-)N\F ZFT-NF ZT-TF | ZB--F
Non-current Assets ERBEE 870,359 1,030,889 1,167,662 1,362,536 1,518,644
Current Assets MEEE 2,668,188 2,788,853 2,452,687 2,651,575 2,467,195
Total Assets BELE 3,538,547 3,819,742 3,620,349 4,014,111 3,985,839
Non-current Liabilities FERBEE 21,752 83,136 105,832 131,404 159,085
Current Liabilities mEaE 967,534 1,096,597 977,027 1,008,192 1,112,796
Total Liabilities BELE 989,286 1,179,733 1,082,859 1,139,596 1,271,881
Total Equity RmaE 2,549,261 2,640,009 2,537,490 2,874,515 2,713,958
Net Current Assets MENEEFE 1,700,654 1,692,256 1,475,660 1,643,383 1,354,399
Total Assets Less Current BELER
Liabilities mEaE 2,571,013 2,723,145 2,643,322 3,005,919 2,873,043




Schedule of Principal Investment Properties
TEREVWER
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a
(9]
o .
s Approximate
T Gross Floor Area Group’s
% Particulars (Square meters) Lease Term Usage interest (%)
3 BARBEER AL
- B3 (FFHK) HE 5= (%)
3
=
- Portions of an industrial complex located at 66,960.2 Medium term Industrial 100%
z No. 18 Wu Zhou Road,
é Yun He Jie Dao,
C% Yuhang District, Hangzhou City,
g Zhejiang Province, the PRC
= R BT Gk T
N TN TR 2
- BB
188 FNEE 1857
B LEEED
Portions of an industrial complex located at 74,745.0 Medium term Industrial 100%
No. 195 Xin Tian Road,
Yuhang Economic Development Zone,
Yuhang District, Hangzhou City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC
7R R BT A h Hf I%
TN BRI R
ERILAC BB 2 &
R EE1955%
WIXERD
Portions of an industrial complex located at 50,753.0 Medium term Industrial 100%
No. 191 Xin Tian Road,
Yun He Jie Dao, Yuhang District, (No. 191 Xin
Tian Road, Yuhang Economic Development Zone),
Hangzhou City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC
R AR BN & H Hf I%
TN TR R
EATE
FREE1915%
(BRILACRE B 2 (2 3T R #8191 5%)
WIXERD
Flat G-J, 4/F. with portion of flat roof, 315.4 Medium term Commercial 100%
Lladro Center,
Nos. 72-80 Hoi Yuen Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 87
ERNEHE h Hf [GES
FR B % 72-805%
ird:y LRIV

MEGIE (EENREIER D)
(BB N ERB75%)
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